
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2016                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 15th Jun 2016 - Page 1 of 5 

 Item Purpose / Support 

 Agenda   

   

1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 

1.1. Roll Call  

1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session  

   

2. Closed Session Items  

2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 

Action 

2.2. Negotiations – Collective Bargaining 
Session (Govt. Code Section 3459.1(d)) 
GSCFT K-12 

Executive session between the public school employer and 
its designated representative, Molly Parks, for the purpose 
of giving direction and update regarding negotiations with 
the GSCFT K-12 Unit for 2016-17. 

   

3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 

3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  

3.2. Agenda deletions, additions, or changes of 
sequence 

 

3.3. Superintendent's Remarks prior to Public 
Comments 

 

   

4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 

Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Due to the legal constraints of the Brown Act, 
your Trustees are not allowed to comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 

   

5. Superintendent's Report  

5.1. Superintendent's Report  

   

1 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2016                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 15th Jun 2016 - Page 2 of 5 

 Item Purpose / Support 

6. Board Members' Reports  

6.1. Board Members' Reports  

6.2. Board President's Report  

   

7. Approval of Minutes  

7.1. Minutes May 25, 2016 Approval 

7.2. Minutes Special Closed Session Meeting 
June 1, 2016 

Approval 

7.3. Minutes Regular Meeting/Governance 
Session June 1, 2016 

Approval 

   

8. General Public Business  

   

8.1. Consent Agenda: These matters may be 
passed by one roll call motion.  

 

8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated Approval 

8.1.2. Personnel – Classified Actions Approval 

8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes & Bids Approval 

8.1.4. Warrant Register Approval 

8.1.5. Gifts Acceptance 

8.1.6. Classified Job Reclassifications Approval 

8.1.7. Title I LEA Plan Addendum Approval 

8.1.8. New Business: CSBA Board Policy 
Updates: First Reading Only 

Accept for First Reading 

8.1.9. New Business: Resolution 48-15-16 
Ordering November Election (Board of 
Education Seat Vacancies) 

Approval 

2 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2016                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 15th Jun 2016 - Page 3 of 5 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.1.10. New Business: Resolution 49-15-16 
Acceptance of Summer Bids Process 

Approval 

8.1.11. Resolution 51-15-16 Authorized Signature: 
Patrick Gaffney 

Approval 

8.1.12. Contracts and Consultant Service 
Agreements 

Approval 

8.1.12.1. Contract/Agreement/Bid: Business Services  

8.1.12.1.1. Contract: Schoolworks, Inc. Approval 

8.1.12.1.2. Agreement: DecisionInsite: Enrollment 
Projections Option B (3 yr option) 

Approval 

8.1.12.1.3. Bid: Brazos Urethane - Roof maintenance at 
various sites 

Approval 

8.1.12.2. Consultant Service Agreement: Human 
Resources 

 

8.1.12.2.1. CSA: SCHS Athletic Trainer Scott Hamill Approval 

8.1.12.3. Contracts: Educational Services/Special 
Education 

 

8.1.12.3.1. Non Public Agency: Special Education Approval 

8.1.12.3.2. Non Public Agency: Special Education Approval 

8.1.12.3.3. Non Public Agency: Special Education Approval 

8.1.12.3.4. Non Public School: Special Education Approval 

8.1.13. Disposition of Surplus Property Approval 

   

8.2. Report of Actions Taken in Closed 
Session 

 

8.2.1. Report of Closed Session Actions  

   

8.3. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  

3 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2016                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 15th Jun 2016 - Page 4 of 5 

 Item Purpose / Support 

8.3.1. Staff Report: Ad Hoc Facilities Committee  Committee Members will present a report. 

8.3.2. New Business: Parcel Tax Oversight 
Committee 

Recommendation: Accept the PTOC report. 

8.3.3. Staff Report: Presentation of LCAP The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and 
annual update provide details regarding Local Educational 
Agencies’ (LEAs’) actions and expenditures to support pupil 
outcomes and overall performance.  The LCAP must 
describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals 
for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified as 
English Learners, Foster Youth, Low-Income, pupils with 
disabilities, for each of the state priorities and any locally 
identified priorities. 

8.3.4. Public Hearing: LCAP 
The 2016-17 LCAP Public Hearing gives the community an 
opportunity to comment and provide input prior to our 
submitting it to the Board of Education for approval at the 
June 22nd Board meeting. After Board adoption, the LCAP 
will be submitted to the County Office of Education for final 
approval.  

8.3.5. Staff Report: Presentation of 2016-17 
Budget and Certifications 

This is an information item. The budget will be presented for 
action at the June 22, 2016 Board meeting. 

8.3.6. Public Hearing: 2016-17 Budget The Board is required by AB 1200 to conduct a public 
hearing on the 2016-17 Adopted Budget to allow for public 
comment prior to the Board approving the budget. Approval 
of the Adopted Budget will take place in Open Session at 
the Regular Meeting on June 22, 2016. 

8.3.7. Public Hearing: Adopt Findings and Award 
of Energy Services Contract: Govt. Code 
4217.10-4217.18 

The purpose of this public hearing is to receive public 
comment on the proposed Resolution to Enter into an 
Energy Services Contract with Climatec LLC for the 
implementation of energy conservation services, in 
accordance with Government Code Sections 4217.10 
through 4217.18. Fiscal Impact: None.  Funds will be 
expended from grant revenues. 

8.3.8. New Business: Resolution 50-15-16 Award 
Energy Services Contract: Climatec 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution 50-15-16. 

   

9. Adjournment  

   

10. Reconvene to Closed Session  

   

4 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2016                                                                                              EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

 

Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 15th Jun 2016 - Page 5 of 5 

 Item Purpose / Support 

11. Report Actions Taken in Closed Session  

   

12. Adjournment  

 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
1. The Regular Meeting on June 22, 2016, 6:30 p.m., will be held at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 

400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 

5 of 461

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html


 

 

 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
May 25, 2016 

 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Thompson called this Regular Meeting Closed Session to order at 5:33 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items 
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Thompson called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:3 p.m. in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Jeremy Shonick     
Patricia Threet  Alisun Thompson  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal  
 
Student Representative Ella Carroll, Santa Cruz High School 
 
Absent: Student Representative Aren Pageler, Harbor High School 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Thompson welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Agenda Changes 
Ms. Meeker asked to pull Item 8.1.10.4.1. Educational Services/Special Education: MOU with SC Boys & Girls 
Club as this agreement is no longer needed for district students. 
 
Superintendent’s Remarks Prior to Public Comments 
None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Natural Bridges campus neighbor Deborah Taylor expressed concerns regarding fencing the property and 
curtailing access to the neighbors for use as a community space.  Harbor High School Advancement Via 
Individual Determination (AVID) students invited the Board and Cabinet Members to their graduation 
ceremony on June 1, 6:00 p.m., in the Harbor HS Multi-Purpose Room.  29 of the 30 class members have been 
accepted to a four year university/college.  The President of the Santa Cruz Triathlon Organization commented 

6 of 461



 

 

on the success that this group has experienced for the past 33 years fundraising and donating to all types of 
sports teams, including school teams.  They hope to continue for another 33 wonderful years.  
 
*Note: The Superintendent responded to Natural Bridges neighbor Deborah Taylor: The district is currently 
experiencing folks who are driving cars onto the fields at the campus and destroying it so a fence is needed – 
but we intend to have gate access for the campus neighbors. 
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S AND STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro acknowledged Ms. Parks and her team for a wonderful celebration of 27 retirees, with 
many years of service, on Monday, May 23.  As Santa Cruz City Schools works to develop a plan for the Natural 
Bridges site through the Long Range Master Facility Planning process, we are pleased to share that we are 
hosting the Santa Cruz Police Department for training one or two times a week, and the Santa Cruz Fire 
Department for training once a week.  The Superintendent is also planning a Neighborhood Meeting at the 
Natural Bridges campus on June 2nd at 6:00 p.m. to dialogue with neighbors about the planning process and 
the future of this campus.  Last Wednesday at the Civic Center, we had an amazing celebration of student 
achievement in music.  Special thanks to our music teachers – Nick Bianchini, Greg Brown, Katrina Haeger, 
Christy Latham, Laura Lorber, Jim Steward and Zina Urquhart.  In addition, I want to express my gratitude to 
the Santa Cruz Community for parcel taxes that support these exceptional programs.  Sunday, May 15th, the 
Senderos program hosted a wonderful Guelaguetza celebration.  Thank you to all of our teachers and leaders 
who were there to help out!  Special Thanks to school Social Worker Nereida Robles, Community Coordinator 
Fe Silva, Retired Principal Curt Coleman and Assistant Superintendent Angela Meeker for their work on the 
Senderos program and the Guelaguetza event.   On May 18, an SCCS Team of Leadership and Bargaining Unit 
partners attended the School Services update on the Governor’s May Budget Revise.  On May 20, GSCFT 
President, Barry Kirschen, Secondary VP Casey Carlson, SCCCE President Robert Chacanaca, Board President 
Alisun Thompson, Assistant Superintendent Molly Parks and I attended a second convening of the California 
Labor Management Initiative.  We made some plans to further our collaborative efforts and are planning a 
retreat for site and union leaders in September.  The Santa Cruz County College Commitment is sponsoring ads 
in the Sentinel, the Pajaronian, and the Valley Press to honor all of our district valedictorians, salutatorians and 
will provide a list of all of the colleges, universities and trade schools our 2016 graduates will attend.  The 
mission of S4C is to work collaboratively as a county wide TK-16 system with all 10 TK – 12 districts and our 
post-secondary education partners to ensure students are college and career ready. 
 
Recognition of Student Representatives for the Board of Education 
Ms. Meeker recognized our exceptional Student Board Representatives for 2015-16, Ella Carroll and Aren 
Pageler.  Certificates acknowledging their service to the community were presented.  Ms. Meeker noted that 
having student representatives is such an important reminder of our priorities as district decisions are 
discussed.  The Trustees were well-served by these engaged young adults. 
 
Student Representative’s Report 
Student Representative Carroll reported that the Santa Cruz High School Prom at the Cocoanut Grove was 
amazing and the Spring Theater Production went off without a hitch!  Students completed Advanced 
Placement testing last week and tomorrow night is Senior Awards Night for Santa Cruz High School.  Repairs 
were completed and appreciated for the Girls’ Restrooms.  The Santa Cruz Rotary recognized 18 students for 
their academic success at a recent event.  There is a new mural on Mission Street in Santa Cruz: this project 
was a collaboration between Mission Hill Middle School Art Teacher Crocetti and several other community 
organizations and schools.  Ms. Carroll is excited to see how the pursuit of a more climate literate student 

7 of 461



 

 

body in Santa Cruz City Schools might move forward in the future.  Free Speech Friday resumes at Santa Cruz 
High School on May 27. 
 

BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Threet attended the April 21, May 4, and May 17 Facilities Steering Committee meetings, the 
Superintendent's Community Meeting at Branciforte Middle School on April 26, the Governor’s May Revise 
workshop at the County Office of Education and both the April 27 and May 24 Budget Advisory Committee 
meetings. She met with both the Santa Cruz High PTA and the Bay View Home and School Club to discuss 
facilities needs and the possibility of upcoming bond measures. Ms. Threet precinct-walked in support of 
Measure S and Supervisor John Leopold, and heard Congress candidate Jimmy Panetta speak.  Ms. Threet 
attended the Santa Cruz Education Foundation Eddy Awards and enjoyed the recognition of our dedicated 
work force.  Board Member Threet attended the Guelaguetza Festival at Harbor High School celebrating the 
indigenous cultures of Latin America and was a guest panelist on the Monarch School Exit 
Criteria Presentation.  Trustee Threet attended the Soquel High Music Foundation Fundraising Dinner.  Board 
Member Threet attended both the April 24 and May 22 Santa Cruz High Campus clean up events and the May 
14 Soquel High Spring campus clean up.   Ms. Threet attended the Santa Cruz Rotary Club's annual Scholarship 
Luncheon, which honored 18 high school students (many who attend SCCS Schools), and learned that Student 
Board Representative Ella Carroll was recognized for her Academic achievements and was the Rice Scholarship 
recipient. Congratulations Ella!  Board Member Threet attended the District annual Retirement Reception 
honoring both our Certificated and Classified Staffs and expressed gratitude to the retiring workforce.  Trustee 
Threet thanked the Greater Federation of Teachers, Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees, the Soquel 
High School Floral Design Class and Asst. Superintendent Molly Parks and the Human Resources Team, 
particularly Dahria Kianpour, for a delightful event. 
 
Board Member Tracy-Proulx attended the California School Boards Association Delegate Assembly Meeting in 
Sacramento on May 13-15, and is pleased to report that the new Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
template that will be used by districts is more user-friendly.   The CSBA will present the work of the delegates 
to the State Board of Education.  Trustee Tracy-Proulx acknowledged the parents at Branciforte Middle School 
and Harbor High Schools for honoring staff members during May. 
 
Board Member Perez-Granados attended the Guelaguetza and the Harbor High School “Coffee with the 
Principal”, which has 12 parent attendees.  Dr. Perez-Granados was very impressed by the great parent 
questions. 
 
Board Member Shonick attended the Santa Cruz City Schools Retirement event and declared it the best 
retirement event he ever attended!  Mr. Shonick thanked the Bargaining Units for their participation and 
sponsorship for this event as well.  The tributes to the retirees were heartfelt and respectful. 
 
Board Member Coonerty thanked Student Representative Carroll for her service and expressed appreciation 
for her participation this year.  Dr. Coonerty attended a staff luncheon and retirement event for Principal 
Edmonds at Santa Cruz High School and it was a very positive and lovely event.  Dr. Coonerty visited the Santa 
Cruz City Schools Parcel Tax Oversight Committee (PTOC) meeting and became educated on the oversight 
process.  Dr. Coonerty attended the Santa Cruz City Schools Retirement event and the Budget Advisory 
Committee (BAC) meeting.  Tomorrow, Dr. Coonerty will attend the Westlake PTA meeting. 
 

8 of 461



 

 

Board Member Vestal attended the Schools Plus meeting – this organization is seeking additional Board 
Members.  Ms. Vestal observed many happy families at the DeLaveaga Elementary School Open House.  
Trustee Vestal attended the 5 year anniversary celebration of Positive Discipline and had the opportunity to 
show appreciation for this worthwhile organization and their community contributions.  Ms. Vestal attended 
the Guelaguetza at Harbor High School – it was a wonderful day of celebration and amazing food!  Board 
Member Vestal attended the Governor’s May Revise Budget Workshop at the Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education.  The May Revise was also discussed at the Budget Advisory Committee (BAC) meeting. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Thompson participated in the Harbor High School Portfolio Presentations and the countywide 
Regional Occupation Program (ROP) awards celebration, and commended Sherri Williams for her dedication to 
this program.  Board President Thompson attended the inaugural meeting of the Santa Cruz City Schools LGBT 
Task Force.  The committee has begun with 15 members who are a balance of school and community 
leadership.  The Board President attended the California Labor Management Initiative (CALMI) workshop in 
San Jose with a group from Santa Cruz City Schools and the Guelaguetza at Harbor High School.  The Board 
President acknowledged and thanked the Senderos Program and the dozens of school employees and 
administrators who spent their Sunday volunteering at this event.  The Board President thanked Student 
Representative for her service this year – it was greatly appreciated by the Trustees. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. MSP (Coonerty/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of May 11, 2016, as submitted.  Student Carroll abstained from a recommendation on this 
matter.  

2. MSP (Threet/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the SCCS Finance 
Authority Meeting on May 20, 2016, as submitted.  Student Carroll abstained from a recommendation 
on this matter.  

 
Consent Agenda 
As agreed at the beginning of the meeting, Item 8.1.10.4.1. Educational Services/Special Education MOU-City 
of Santa Cruz Boys and Girls Club was removed from the Consent Agenda.  Ms. Tracy-Proulx moved approval 
of the remaining items on the Consent Agenda consisting of: Item 8.1.1. Personnel Actions – Certificated; Item 
8.1.2. Personnel Actions – Classified; Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders; Item 8.1.4. Warrant Register; Item 8.1.5. 
Budget Transfers; Item 8.1.6. Update of Board Policy 5117 Interdistrict Transfers; Item 8.1.7. RFP: Elementary 
and Middle School Photos; Item 8.1.8. RFP: High School and Senior Portrait Photography; Item 8.1.9. 
Resolution 47-15-16 Authorized Signatures; Item 8.1.10.1.1. Business Services: Lease Agreement: Burton & 
Cooper; Item 8.1.10.1.2. Business Services: Lease Agreement-Sereno Group; Item 8.1.10.1.3 Business Services: 
Agreement-School Innovations and Achievement; Item 8.1.10.2.1. Human Resources: Consultant Service 
Agreement: Athletic Trainer Jennifer Putt (Santa Cruz HS); Item 8.1.10.3.1 Education Services/Special 
Education: Consultant Service Agreement-Mary Schillinger; Item 8.1.10.3.2. Education Services: Consultant 
Service Agreement/Branciforte and Mission Hill Middle Schools-Consultant Service Agreement Kiefer Taylor; 
Item 8.1.10.3.3 Education Services/Mission Hill Middle School: Consultant Service Agreement Shakespeare To 
Go; Item 8.1.10.3.4. Education Services/AECP: Consultant Services Agreement Dientes Summer Dental Care; 
Item 8.1.10.3.5. Education Services/Special Education: Consultant Service Agreement Interpreter CTA 
Language Link; Item 8.1.11. Disposition of Surplus Property.  Ms. Vestal seconded the motion.  The motion was 
passed by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes 
                           Thompson – Yes Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 

9 of 461



 

 

 
Student Carroll recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 
8.2 Closed Session Actions 
8.2.1. Reporting Out on Closed Session Items 
8.2.1.1 The Board of Education took action on the Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, 

Resignations and appointments.  Mr. Robert Shemwell was approved as the 2016-17 Assistant 
Superintendent, Business Services. 

8.2.1.2 The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to designated representative 
Molly Parks regarding negotiations with the GSCFT K-12 Unit. 

8.2.1.3 The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to designated representative 
Molly Parks regarding negotiations with the SCCCE. 

8.2.1.4 The Board of Education received information on Expulsion 14-15-16 that will inform their vote on this 
matter later in the meeting. 

8.2.1.5 The Board of Education discussed a Public Employee Performance Evaluation: Job Title: 
Superintendent. 

8.2.2 Public Vote on Expulsion 
8.2.2.1 Dr. Coonerty moved approval of Expulsion 14-15-16 as submitted by Ms. Meeker.  Dr. Perez-Granados 

seconded the motion.  The motion was approved by roll call vote, as follows: 
 Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Shonick – No  Threet – Yes 
                            Thompson – Yes Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
  

ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 
8.3.1 Information: True North Polling Results 
 Dr. Timothy McLarney, from True North Polling Results, shared the results of the recent revenue 

measure feasibility survey in the district.  Information included: methodology of study; importance of 
issues; initial ballot test on an elementary district bond; initial ballot test on a secondary district bond; 
tax threshold measures for both bonds; projects; positive and negative arguments; final ballot tests; 
key conclusions; considerations.  Following the presentation, there were clarifying questions and 
discussion from Board Members, Staff and Members of the Public.  This item was informational in 
nature, and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 

 
8.3.2. New Business:  PUBLIC HEARING: Math Adoption for Grades K-5 
 Curriculum Director Wildman reported to the Trustees regarding the new math instructional materials   

for Grades K-5.  All textbooks and instructional materials in the adoption are based on California Content 
Standards, and have been adopted by the California Department of Education. This instructional material is 
recommended for district wide adoption in all elementary schools. All teacher pilot materials have been 
compiled and reviewed by the Office of Curriculum and evaluated in collaboration with the Selection 
Committee. The Mathematics Selection Committee, which consists of teachers from each of the sites, a 

library media teacher, and site administrator, endorses this recommendation.   The Materials were on 
display at the District Office for any interested parties from May 17-25, and are in the room tonight 
should there be any final questions or concerns.  The purpose of the hearing is to provide a public 
forum for community input regarding the adoption of mathematics textbooks and instructional 
materials.  
Open: Board President Thompson opened this Public Hearing at 7:34 p.m. 
Public: None 
Close: Board President Thompson closed this Public Hearing at 7:36 p.m. 

10 of 461



 

 

 
8.3.3 New Business: Math Adoption Approval 

Ms. Meeker recommended adoption of the new math materials for grades K-5.  MSP (Coonerty/Tracy-
Proulx) 7-0, the Board of Education adopted the new math materials.  Student Representative Carroll 
recommended a yes vote on this matter. 

 
8.3.4. Information: Green Schools Committee Annual Report 
 Mr. Monreal reported to the Trustees and provided the 2015-16 attendees, “green” district highlights 

for the year and future opportunities for improvements and partnerships in our community.  Following 
Mr. Monreal’s report, Green Schools Committee Member Roland Saher and SCCCE President Robert 
Chacanaca, along with 7 other audience members, encouraged the Board of Education to consider 
directing the administration to develop a Climate Change and Awareness curriculum for Santa Cruz City 
Schools’ students.  This report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of 
Education regarding this matter. 

 
8.3.5. Staff Report: Proposition 39 Energy Conservation Program Plan 

Prop 39, the California Clean Energy Jobs Acts, was approved by the voters in November 2012 to 
provide schools grant funding for energy efficiency projects.  The District approved a Prop 39 Planning 
Study Agreement with Climatec on 3/7/2016 to initiate the energy audit process and develop an 
energy master plan. The energy master plan identifies unfunded deferred maintenance needs in the 
areas of heating & cooling equipment (HVAC), lighting, water conservation, pool systems and building 
automation systems that are past their useful life and in need of replacement. An initial scope of work 
has been prioritized to not only satisfy Prop 39 requirements but to remedy classroom issues and 
recurring maintenance burdens.  Projects will utilize the Proposition 39 Energy Grant Funds.  This 
report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this 
matter.   

 
8.3.6. New Business: 3rd Interim Report 

Mr. Monreal reported that as of the 2015-16 Second Interim report, the Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education has concurred with the Districts’ Positive Certification of its ability to meet its financial 
obligations for the current and two subsequent fiscal years. Due to this status, the filing of a Third 
Interim report is optional, but the District Finance team uses this opportunity to refine the estimated 
ending balances for the current fiscal year, to confirm the District will have sufficient cash at hand to 
meet its financial obligations, and to expand the multi-year horizon to include a draft of fiscal year 
2018-19.   Staff attended the Governor’s May Revise Budget on Wednesday, May 18, 2016 and is 
incorporating the changes in the Third Interim Report.   The State Budget is expected to be negotiated 
and completed by June 15, 2016. Staff will continue to update the 2016-17 Budget pending the public 
hearing on June 15, 2016 and adoption on June 22, 2016.  MSP (Threet/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board 
of Education approved the 3rd Interim Report.  Student Representative Carroll recommended a yes 
vote on this matter. 

 
8.3.7. New Business: Declaration of Certificated Needs for 2016-17 

Ms. Parks recommended adoption of the annual Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators as 
submitted. This comes on an annual basis as a California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC) 
requirement to allow for credentialing flexibility for both elementary and secondary schools. The 
estimated numbers needed listed here are not necessarily a determinant of current need but an 
educated guess to cover all areas of potential need.  MSP (Threet/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of 

11 of 461



 

 

Education approved the annual Declaration of Certificated Needs for 2016-17.  Student Representative 
Carroll recommended a yes vote on this matter. 

 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 
1. The Special Closed Session Meeting of the Board of Education on June 1, 2016, 5:20 p.m., will be called 

to order in Room 312 of the District Office, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
2. The Annual Board Governance Session on June 1, 2016, 6:30 p.m., will be held in Room 312 of the 

District Office, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
3. The Special Closed Session Board Meeting for Interdistrict Transfer Denial Appeals Hearings on June 6, 

2016, 6:00 p.m., will be held in Room 313 of the District Office, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
4. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2016, 6:30 p.m., will be held at the Santa Cruz County Office of 

Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
5. The Regular Meeting on June 22, 2016, 6:30 p.m., will be held at the Santa Cruz County Office of 

Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further Open Session business to come before the Trustees, Board President Thompson 
adjourned this Open Session of the Regular Meeting at 9:25 p.m.  
 
* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 

recording: 
 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Alisun Thompson, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 

12 of 461

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html


 

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CLOSED SESSION MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
June 1, 2016 

 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Thompson called this Regular Meeting Closed Session to order at 5:22 p.m. in Room 312 of 
the District Office, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items 
None 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Patricia Threet   
Alisun Thompson Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal  
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
Closed Session Actions Report 
2.1 The Board of Education took action on the Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint        
(Govt. Code 54957) 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 
1. The Annual Board Governance Session on June 1, 2016, 5:30 p.m., will be held in Room 312 of the 

District Office, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
2. The Special Meeting of the Board of Education for Hearings on Denied Interdistrict Transfers on June 6, 

2016, 6:00 p.m., will be held in Room 313 of the District Office, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
3. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2016, 6:30 p.m., will be held at the Santa Cruz County Office of 

Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
4. The Regular Meeting on June 22, 2016, 6:30 p.m., will be held at the Santa Cruz County Office of 

Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further Open Session business to come before the Trustees, Board President Thompson 
adjourned this Special Closed Session Meeting at 5:34 p.m.  
 
* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 

recording: 
 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Alisun Thompson, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 

13 of 461

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html


 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING/STUDY SESSION 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
June 1, 2016 

 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Thompson called this Closed Session to order at 5:35 p.m. in Room 312 of the District Office, 
405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session  
None 
 
Attendance at Closed Session 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Patricia Threet   
Alisun Thompson Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal  
 
Absent for Closed Session:  Jeremy Shonick 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Thompson called this Open Session/Study Session to order at 6:31 p.m. in Room 312 of the 
District Office, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
 
Attendance at Open Session 
Sheila Coonerty Jeremy Shonick  Patricia Threet   
Alisun Thompson Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal  
 
Absent for Open Session:  Deedee Perez-Granados 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Study Session Facilitator Carolyn Post 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services, incoming 2016-17 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, incoming 2016-17 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Thompson welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Study 
Session Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Agenda Changes 
None 
 
Superintendent’s Remarks Prior to Public Comments 
None 
 

14 of 461



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 
2.1 The Board of Education took action on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, 

Resignations and Appointments: Lindsay Schubert Pebworth appointed Assistant Principal for Harbor 
High School for 2016-17; Patrick Gaffney appointed Assistant Superintendent of Business Services. 

2.2 The Board of Education heard an update from and provided Assistant Superintendent parks with 
direction for GSCFT negotiations. 

 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 

5.2.1 New Business: Approval of Contracts for Assistant Superintendents 
 Superintendent Munro recommended approval of all three contracts as submitted: 
 Job Title: Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 Job Title: Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
 Job Title: Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
  

Following a clarifying question from Board Member Shonick, MSP (Coonerty/Vestal) 6-0, the Board of 
Education approved the contracts for Assistant Superintendents as submitted. 

 
5.2.2 Annual Board Governance Session 

Facilitator Carolyn Post and Superintendent Munro provided materials to the Trustees to guide 
discussion.  The Trustees reviewed and discussed the Annual Board Evaluation, which the Board 
Members had previously completed.  The Community Meeting Schedule of 2015-16 was shared and 
discussed.  One of the results of this discussion was direction from the Board Members to explore 
options for ensuring that all school sites are visible and have access to the availability of the Trustees 
on a regular basis as we move into the 2016-17 school year.  Staff will present the Trustees with a 
structure for this process that provides a common context for gathering pertinent input from as many 
stakeholders as possible.  The Board Members discussed the Board Governance Handbook and made 
suggestions for possible changes to protocols and agreements.  Clarifying questions were asked and 
explanations were provided.   The Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent of Educational 
Services will provide a flow chart that specifically details information and job descriptions for 
Certificated Support Staff for Board Members.  Board President Thompson directed discussion on the 
handbook “Meeting Agreements”.  The Trustees discussed how the current agreements were working 
and heard thoughts about possible revisions to agreements.  Board President Thompson proposed that 
the Board Vice President be added to the Agenda Committee.  If the President is absent from a 
meeting, the Vice President will be prepared to facilitate the meeting.  This would also ensure that at 
least two  Trustees are always present at an Agenda Committee meeting, as there were two meetings 
this year that no Trustees signed up to attend.  The Board supported this proposal from the Board 
President.  Board President Thompson also proposed that Trustees sign up for more than one Agenda 
Committee meeting at a time so that a schedule could be determined in advance.  Mr. Shonick made a 
motion to have Trustees agree to turn off cell phones during board meetings through December 2016, 
and provide family members with the phone number of the Superintendent to be used in case of 
emergency.  Ms. Threet seconded the motion.  Following discussion, the motion was not passed.  Dr. 
Coonerty, Dr. Thompson, Ms. Tracy-Proulx, and Ms. Vestal voted no.  Dr. Coonerty made a motion for 
the Board to make a public statement that is part of the board agenda regarding the appropriate use of 
electronic devices.  The motion did not receive a “second”.  Mr. Shonick suggested that the Board visit 

15 of 461



 

 

the placement of Board Members’ Reports on the January 2017 agenda.  The Annual Governance 
Calendar for 2016-17 was reviewed and discussed.   Trustees suggested topics for additional board 
reports and information distribution during the year, as well as recommendations for the proposed 
study sessions.   
Content-area focused school visits by the Trustees and Superintendent Munro were proposed as a 
vehicle for garnering curricular information about subject areas.  Staff will make revisions to the 
Annual Governance Calendar and bring this item back to the Board Members for review in August 
2017. 

 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 
1. The Special Meeting of the Board of Education for Hearings on Denied Interdistrict Transfers on June 6, 

6:00 p.m., will be held in Room 313 of the District Office, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA. 
2. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2016, 6:30 p.m., will be held at the Santa Cruz County Office of 

Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
3. The Regular Meeting on June 22, 2016, 6:30 p.m., will be held at the Santa Cruz County Office of 

Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further Open Session business to come before the Trustees, Board President Thompson 
adjourned this Regular Meeting/Study Session at 9:40 p.m.  
 
* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 

recording: 
 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Alisun Thompson, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 

16 of 461

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html


AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.1 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Certificated Personnel Actions 
 
DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM: Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the certificated personnel actions as 
submitted. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached administrative and certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance 
with District policy and the negotiated contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17 of 461



AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.1 
 

2016-2017 APPOINTMENTS: 
 
Certificated: 
 
Judy Flora, .40 2nd Grade Teacher at Westlake Elementary.  Judy’s educational background 
includes a BA in Social Science and Child Development from San Jose State University.  She 
holds a Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, a Supplemental Authorization for Social 
Science and a BCLAD Authorization.  Judy has twenty-seven years of teaching experience 
and her status is Temporary. 
 
Juan Lopez Hernandez, 1.0 School Counselor at Harbor High.  Juan’s educational 
background includes a BA in Sociology and Latin American Studies from UC Santa Cruz.  He 
holds an Intern Pupil Personnel Services Credential for School Counseling.  Juan is starting 
his internship at Harbor High and his status is Probationary 0. 
 
Bryan Kett, 1.0 Science Teacher at Mission Hill Middle.  Bryan’s educational background 
includes a BA in Cognitive Science from UC Berkeley and an MA in Education from UC Santa 
Cruz.  He holds a Preliminary Single Subject Teaching Credential for Geosciences and an 
English Learners Authorization.  Bryan completed his student teaching at Soquel High and 
his status is Temporary. 
 
Maryann McCarthy, 1.0 Resource Specialist at Westlake Elementary.  Maryann’s 
educational background includes a BA in Art from CSU Fullerton.  She holds a Clear 
Education Specialist Instruction Credential for Mild to Moderate Disabilities, a Clear 
Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, a Clear Single Subject Teaching Credential for Art and 
Dance, an Autism Spectrum Disorder Authorization and a CLAD authorization.  Maryann has 
twenty-five years of teaching experience and her status is Probationary 1. 
 
Colleen Niklaus, 1.0 ELD/Newcomer Teacher at Harbor High.  Colleen’s educational 
background includes a BA in Spanish from UC Davis and an MA in Education from San 
Francisco State University.  She holds a Limited Assignment Permit for English, a Clear Single 
Subject Teaching Credential for Spanish and Physical Education and an English Learners 
Authorization.  Colleen has eighteen years of teaching experience and her status is 
Temporary. 
 
 
 

18 of 461



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 

     

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 

  

  

  

AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 

  

MEETING DATE:      June 15, 2016  

  

FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 

  

THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   

  

  

RECOMMENDATION: 

To approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 

  
  

BACKGROUND: 

The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 

SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

19 of 461



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 

CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 

  

  

Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director:  Kenee Houser 

 

 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 

Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 

None  

Promotion: 

None 

Voluntary Demotion:   

None 

Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 

None 

Additional FTE/Position:  

None 

39-Mo Reinstatement: 

None 

63-Mo Reinstatement: 

None 

Transfer: 

None 

Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  

None 

Leave of Absence:  

None   

Separation from Service: 

Burley, Carrianna, Program Accounts Specialist - FS, 8hrs/11mo, Resignation, effective 7/31/16 

Creager, Abigail, Instructional Technician/ASES - GA, 3.9hrs/9mo, Release, effective 5/24/16 

Glasgow, Amy, Secretary II - HH, 6hrs/9mo, Resignation, effective 6/30/16 

Manriquez, Angela, Yard Duty - GA, .40hrs/9mo, Resignation (YD only), effective 6/30/16  

Villanueva Avalos, Ivonne, Site Program Coordinator - BM, 3.6hrs/10mo, effective 6/20/16 

Retirement: 

20 of 461



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 

Brightman, Steacie, Instructional Technician - SMSC, 5hrs/9mo, effective 6/9/16  

Dinkins, James, Instructional Technician (2 positions) - SMSC, 4hrs/9mo, and 1hr/9mo, effective 

8/19/16 

 

•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 

New EWA/Hourly Employees: 

None 

Existing EWA/Hourly Employees:  

Bautista, Patricia, Career Development Specialist - TP, not to exceed 30hrs, 6/10/16 to 6/30/16 

Bispo, Lorraine, Account Tech - BM, not to exceed 30hrs, 5/12/16 to 7/16/16 

Day-Smith, Jan, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 4hrs, 5/13/16 

Diaz, Pedro, Custodian - BM, not to exceed 10hrs, 5/15/16 

Dyer, Lisa, Learning Assistant - BV, not to exceed 13hrs, 1/7/16 to 6/9/16 

Espinoza, Admin, Instruction Technician - BM, not to exceed 30hrs, 4/21/16 to 6/9/16 

Geffken, Donna, ASES Coordinator for Community Events - GA, not to exceed 20hrs, 4/15/16 to 

6/3/16 

Hebert, Juliette, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 20hrs, 4/15/16 to 6/10/16 

Herrera, Edgar, Custodian - MO, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/20/16 

Jones, Jack, Custodian - BM, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/15/16 

Juarez, Consuelo, Career Development Specialist - TP, not to exceed 30hrs, 6/10/16 to 6/30/16 

Lee, Terre, ASES Instructional Tech Sub - GA, not to exceed 12hrs, 2/23/16 to 5/15/16 

Linneman,  Devon, Career Development Specialist - TP, not to exceed 45hrs, 6/10/16 to 6/30/16 

Lopez, Teodoro, Senior Custodian - BM, not to exceed 10hrs, 5/15/16 

Malaluan, Estrella, Clerical Assistant - BV, not to exceed 98hrs, 4/29/16 to 6/9/16  

Manako, Annie, Learning Assistant - BV, not to exceed 24hrs, 4/27/16 to 6/9/16 

Marizette, Gail, Clerical Assistant - BV, not to exceed 112hrs, 4/26/16 to 6/9/16 

Martinez, Ana, Media Textbook Clerk - SQ, not to exceed 95.5hrs, 4/22/16 to 6/30/16 

Martinez, Perla, Instructional Technician/PBS - SE, not to exceed 72.5hrs, 5/16/16 to 6/9/16 

Medlen, Kristi, Instructional Technician - BM, not to exceed 15hrs, 4/15/16 to 6/30/16 

Moker, Kelly, Media Textbook Clerk - SQ, not to exceed 88.5hrs, 4/22/16 to 6/30/16 

Moreno, Eduardo, Instructional Technician/PBS - SE, not to exceed 71hrs, 5/16/16 to 6/9/16 

Morris, Donald, Personnel Assistant - PC, not to exceed 16hrs, 5/3/16 to 5/4/16 

Perez, Ricardo, Custodian - SC, not to exceed 8hrs, 5/6/16 to 5/14/16 

21 of 461



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 

Poynter, Barbara, Senior Custodian - SMSC, not to exceed 20hrs, 4/23/16 to 6/30/16 

Poynter, Barbara, Campus Supervisor - SU, not to exceed 2.5hrs, 5/25/16 

Roberson, Jennifer, Program Assistant - FS, not to exceed 60hrs, 5/11/16 to 6/30/16 

Rodriguez, Christian, Custodian - BM, not to exceed 10hrs, 5/15/16 

Ruvalcalba, Jr., Braulio, Custodian - BM, not to exceed 10hrs, 5/15/16  

Saarni, Richard, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 6hrs, 5/7/16  

Sanchez, Tanya, Instructional Technician/ASES - MH, not to exceed 58hrs, 4/11/16 to 6/3/16 

Santacruz, Analilia, Clerical Assistant - MH, not to exceed 15hrs, 5/16/16 to 5/31/16 

Sihler, Kris, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 14hrs, 4/16/16  

Singh, Rajwinder, Groundskeeper I - MO, not to exceed 120hrs, 5/15/16 to 6/30/16 

Torralba, Michael, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 3.5hrs, 4/15/16 to 6/30/16 

Ungor, John, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 18.5hrs, 4/16/16 to 5/7/16 

Wolcott, Lauren, Instructional Technician/ASES - MH, not to exceed 70hrs, 4/11/16 to 6/3/16 

Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 

None  

Out of Class: 

None 

 

•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 

Enrichment Services:  

Campos Solorio, Miriam, Speech & Debate Coach - CP, not to exceed 12hrs, 5/14/16 to 5/15/16 

Professional Expert: 

None 

Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 

Dew, Christopher, Playground Recess Coach - BV, not to exceed 128hrs, 4/26/16 to 6/9/16 

 

•Eligibility Lists Established• 

Principal’s Secretary  

Secretary III  

 

22 of 461



POItem cover Revision Jan 2016 (1) (15)6 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 

    
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:   Jim Monreal, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 

Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 

 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 

$12,000 to $87,800 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 

 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 

distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $87,800 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 

23 of 461



24 of 461



25 of 461



26 of 461



27 of 461



28 of 461



29 of 461



30 of 461



31 of 461



32 of 461



33 of 461



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 15, 2016 
 

BID REQUIRING APPROVAL 
 

 
Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:____________________________________  

 2016 GARLAND ROOF RESTORATION – PHASE II  
ADULT SCHOOL, WESTLAKE, BRANCIFORTE MIDDLE,  

SANTA CRUZ HIGH AND BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS 
 

BID NUMBER 2016-1, OPENED JUNE 1, 2016 
 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The Garland roofing system requires special maintenance every five years to maintain 
warranty. Last year half the Garland roofs on our sites were repaired.  This year, the other 
half of the Garland roofs on our sites will be brought into good condition to re-establish the 
manufacturer’s warranty.  This work will be done on roofs at Santa Cruz High School, Adult 
School, Branciforte Middle and Small Schools and one small building at Westlake Elementary. 

 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors on our Uniform Construction Cost 
Accounting Construction Application list.  Two bids were received. Brazos Urethane, Inc. 
from Fresno was the successful low bidder. 

 
BID SUMMARY 

 
CONTRACTOR CITY  BID 
Brazos Urethane, Inc. Fresno $156,093.00 
Waterproofing Assoc Inc Mountain View $290,530.00 
   
LOW BID Brazos Urethane, Inc. $156,093.00 

 
       

Staff recommends that the Bid be awarded to Brazos Urethane, Inc., the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
This project will be funded by Fund 21, Building Fund - Secondary RDA. 
 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services  

 

34 of 461



AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
warr 061516 

 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 25, 2016 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 5/13/16 –6/2/16.  Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35 of 461



36 of 461



37 of 461



38 of 461



39 of 461



40 of 461



41 of 461



42 of 461



43 of 461



44 of 461



45 of 461



46 of 461



47 of 461



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5  

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Gifts 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Acceptance of the following gifts donated to the Santa Cruz City School District. 
 
Harbor High School 

 Janet Allinger donated a variety of photography items, four custom printed posters and 
one MacPower PC. 

 Mrs. Vera Wilson and the Englade Family of Santa Cruz donated $25,000 in honor of 
Robert “Red” Wilson.  $15,000 will be directed to the school’s general fund, and $10,000 
will be used to purchase supplies and technology updates for the Special Day Class. 

 
Santa Cruz High School 

 The Santa Cruz High School Cardinals Club donated $11,944 to the SCHS Athletics 
Department to cover the balance of the coaching stipends for the 2015-16 school year. 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Board Policy/Regulation 3290, the Governing Board may accept on behalf of and 
for the District, any bequest, gift of money or gift of property, valued at $100 or more, that is 
presented to the District.  A letter of appreciation will be sent to the donors.  
 

48 of 461



 

 

 

     

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT  
  

  

  

AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Job Reclassifications 

  

MEETING DATE:      June 15, 2016 

  

FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 

  

THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   

  

  

RECOMMENDATION: 

To approve the recommendations of the Reclassification Committee and duties for 

updated/new job descriptions. 

1. Instructional Technician – Elementary Intervention 

2. Data & Assessment Specialist 

  
  

BACKGROUND: 

As required by Merit System Rule 600.8 (EC45285), the Superintendent shall make the final 

recommendations to the Governing Board regarding the recommendations of the 

Reclassification Committee. 

 

The Reclassification Committee consists of two classified employees, two administrators, the 

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, the Director of Classified Personnel, and a 

Personnel Commissioner. The two classified employees and the two administrators are the only 

voting members of the committee. The committee met on April 13, 2016. The Personnel 

Commission approved the recommendations of the Committee on May 3, 2016.  

 

The Learning Assistants’ request for reclassification resulted in a new job description for those 

who work in the “Walk to Read” program. The District Assessment Specialist request for 

reclassification resulted in a revised job description and was retitled Data & Assessment 

Specialist. The Personnel Commission approved both job descriptions on June 7, 2016. 

 

  

  

49 of 461



 

JOB DESCRIPTION  
  
DATA & ASSESSMENT SPECIALIST  

Job Title: Data & Assessment Specialist  
  

Job Summary:  
  
Under general supervision of the Director of Curriculum and Assessment, within a broad framework 

of standard policies and procedures, coordinate the logistical and technical aspects of the district 

assessment program, act as a liaison between the California Department of Education, standardized 

testing companies, Santa Cruz City Schools District Office, school sites and the community.  This 

position requires initiative and judgment, high level problem solving and organizational skills, 

database and data analysis expertise, a familiarity with student data management systems and the 

ability to monitor the work of site test coordinators. 
  

Examples of Duties  
  
Coordinates assessment and data programs including but not limited to state assessment and 

accountability systems, college and career readiness programs, local assessments, LEA Plan/LCAP 

goals, and district goals and metrics. In cooperation with the Director of Curriculum, establishes and 

collaborates with district and school leadership to develop and maintain the district assessment 

calendar, and provides assistance to school and district assessment projects.  Coordinates logistical 

and technical aspects of standardized testing, including reporting and analysis of student testing 

results to staff and parents. Supports all aspects of online assessment reporting and data systems. 

Participates in required trainings in order to meet current mandates related to local, state and federal 

legislative requirements.  Conducts ongoing training and support of classified and certificated staff 

related to data and assessment systems. Protects confidentiality of research data, surveys, consent 

forms, and other student and institutional data. Develops processes and systems to effectively support 

district office departments with efficient and effective assessment program implementation. Manages 

District website and webpages related to assessment, standards, and testing. Attends meetings, 

conferences, workshops and webinars for the purpose of understanding program changes, and 

updating and implementing district procedures. Work is performed under minimum supervision and 

requires independent work and a high level of initiative, judgement, and discretion.  
  

Employment Standards  
  
Training and Experience:  Any combination of experience and training which would indicate 

possession of the knowledge, skills and abilities listed herein. Completion of the 12th grade or 

equivalent; Bachelor’s degree preferred, three years of related experience (preferable in an 

educational setting), at least two years of coursework or its equivalent in computer technology and 

data management (examples include online courses, job experience, specialized training, etc.). 
  
Knowledge:   Knowledge of school and district systems, programs and budgets; knowledge of 

current technology and computer applications and software; understanding of student information 

and data management systems; understanding of relationships between sites and districts; knowledge 

of state and federal laws governing public education; district policies and procedures; and thorough 

knowledge of functions, organization and key personnel of the school district. 

50 of 461



  
Abilities:  This position requires the ability to work within a changing environment with variable 

levels of resources; demonstrates initiative and judgment and high level problem solving and 

organizational skills; database and data analysis expertise.  Ability to learn policies and program 

requirements and apply them with good judgment in a variety of procedural situations; comply with 

district and site practices; work effectively with a wide range of personalities; communicate 

effectively both orally and in writing. 
 
Physical Effort/Work Environment: Visual ability to read handwritten or computer-generated 

documents, and the display screen of various office equipments; ability to conduct fluent 

conversation in English; hear normal range verbal conversation (approximately 60 decibels); sit, 

stand, stoop, kneel, bend and walk; sit for sustained periods of time; climb slopes, stairs, steps, ramps 

and ladders; lift up to 20 pounds; carry up to 20 pounds; exhibit full range of motion for shoulder 

external rotation and internal rotation, shoulder abduction and adduction, elbow flexion and 

extension, shoulder flexion and extension, back lateral flexion, hip flexion and extension and knee 

flexion; operate office machines and equipment in a safe and effective manner; demonstrate manual 

dexterity necessary to operate calculator and computer keyboard at the required speed and accuracy; 

conduct frequent repetitive arm, hand and body motion; work in an indoor environment.  
  
Licenses and Certificates:   A valid Class C California Driver's License and evidence of appropriate 

insurance may be required in addition to a valid First Aid and CPR Certificate.  
  
  
  
  
  
Approved by Personnel Commission – 05/02/06  
Approved by Governing Board-  04/26/06  
Revised 5/11/16 
  
Salary Range:  40 
  
 
  

51 of 461



 

 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  
  

JOB DESCRIPTION  

  

INSTRUCTIONAL TECHNICIAN: ELEMENTARY INTERVENTION  

Job Title: Instructional Technician: Elementary Intervention  

  

Job Summary 
  

Under the general supervision of a credentialed teacher and/or school principal, within a broad framework 

of standard policies and procedures, work independently with individual and small groups of students.  

  
Examples of Duties  
  

Initiates and implements learning situations which include individualized instruction for students who 

speak  English, Spanish or other target language; creates and carries out learning activities; monitors small 

groups of students in basic academic subjects according to guidance from programs and teachers; assists 

individual students and/or groups of students by explaining class work and answering questions; maintains 

classroom discipline in a positive manner; performs a variety of routines and record keeping activities; 

assesses and reports student progress; corrects daily assignments and tests; sets up and arranges supplies 

and equipment for student use; prepares instructional materials, lessons, charts, bulletin boards and 

displays as necessary; operates various equipment such as computers, copiers, and audiovisual equipment; 

provides coordinator, teacher, and school administrators with relevant feedback and information on 

students' progress through observation and daily contact; escorts students outside of classroom, ensuring 

students' safety, social integration, or security; participates in available training in order to meet new 

technology standards; performs related duties as assigned.  

  

Employment Standards  
  

Training and Experience:  Any combination of experience and training which would indicate possessions 

of the knowledge, skills and abilities listed herein. Completion of the 12th grade or equivalent; two years’ 

experience working with students; college course work in psychology, child growth and development or 

education may be substituted for experience.  Bilingualism may be required.  

  

Knowledge: Knowledge of child growth and development, application of curriculum as it applies to 

individual differences in children, positive student behavior management techniques and strategies; usage 

of proper oral and written English, Spanish or target language; basic arithmetic concepts; basic computer 

and internet skills.  

  

Abilities: Ability to perform simple clerical tasks and operate standard office equipment and computers; 

communicate satisfactorily in both oral and written form; demonstrate an understanding, patient and 

receptive attitude toward children; establish and maintain co-operative relationships with those contacted 

during the performance of required duties, including school personnel, students, parents and the 

community; maintain regular attendance.   

 

52 of 461



 

 

  

Physical Effort/Work Environment: Visual ability to read handwritten or computer-generated 

documents, and the display screen of various office equipment and machines; ability to conduct verbal 

conversation, and other designated language; hear normal range verbal conversation (approximately 60 

decibels); sit, stand, stoop, kneel, bend and walk; sit for sustained periods of time; kneel or squat for 

extended periods of time; climb slopes, stairs, steps, ramps and ladders; lift up to 30 pounds frequently and 

50 or more pounds occasionally; carry up to 30 pounds frequently and 50 or more pounds occasionally; 

push and/or pull objects weighing up to 50 or more pounds; sustain moderate physical effort for 8 hours; 

exhibit full range of motion for shoulder external rotation and internal rotation, shoulder abduction and 

adduction, elbow flexion and extension, shoulder extension and flexion, back lateral flexion, hip flexion 

and extension and knee flexion; demonstrate manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and other 

classroom and office equipment in a safe and effective manner.  

  

Licenses and Certificates: A valid First Aid and CPR Certificate is preferred.  

  

NCLB Compliance: Must either pass Paraprofessional Exam (available at SCCS District Office), have an 

AA Degree, or have equivalence of two years’ college completion.  

 

Approved by Personnel Commission- 09/17/98  

Approved by Governing Board- 08/12/98  

  

Salary Range: 25  

  
Revised:  10/11/82; 09/17/98; 05/11/16 

  

53 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Local Education Agency Plan Addendum 
 

MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 

FROM: Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 

THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The Elementary and Secondary Education Act, codified as Every Student Succeeds 
Act (ESSA, Section 1116[c][7][A]), requires that local educational agencies (LEAs) 
identified for Program Improvement (PI) shall, not later than three months after 
being identified, develop or revise an Local Education Agency (LEA) Plan, in 
consultation with parents, school staff, and others. 

 

This LEA plan addendum is brought to the board for approval prior to submitting to the 
California Department of Education (CDE). The plan focuses on our next steps to 
support equitable outcomes for underrepresented students. 

 

The LEA plan addendum addresses the following areas; teaching and learning needs, 
measurable achievement goals and targets, research strategies, actions to implement 
strategies, professional development needs, parental involvement and extended 
learning opportunities. 

 

This plan reflects our work within the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) to 
close the achievement gap for all students within Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7 

54 of 461



California Department of Education 
April 2016 

 

District Name: Santa Cruz City Elementary 

CD Code: 44 49815  

LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY PROGRAM 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN ADDENDUM TEMPLATE 

 

The Elementary and Secondary Education Act, codified as Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA, Section 1116[c][7][A]), 
requires that local educational agencies (LEAs) identified for Program Improvement (PI) shall, not later than three 
months after being identified, develop or revise an LEA Plan, in consultation with parents, school staff, and others. 
Rather than completely rewriting the existing LEA Plan, we recommend using this LEA Plan Addendum template to 
address the items below. Type your responses in the expandable text boxes. 

 
Prior to developing this revision, please use the State Assessment Tools, as applicable, to analyze school/district needs for 
improved student achievement. These tools are available on the California Department of Education (CDE) State Assessment Tools 
Web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ti/stateassesspi.asp. Contact the District Innovation and Improvement Office at 
916-319-0836 if you have any questions regarding the State Assessment Tools or completing the LEA Plan Addendum. 

 

Please submit an electronic copy of your completed LEA Plan Addendum to CDE at LEAP@cde.ca.gov. If you have any questions 

regarding the LEA Plan Addendum, please contact Jacqueline Matranga, Education Programs Consultant, District Innovation and 
Improvement Office by e-mail at JMatranga@cde.ca.gov, or Jane Liang, Education Programs Consultant, District Innovation and 
Improvement Office by e-mail at JLiang@cde.ca.gov. 

The LEA Plan Addendum must be submitted to the CDE no later than Tuesday, April 19, 2016. The LEA Plan Addendum 

should: 
 

1. Identify fundamental teaching and learning needs in the schools of the LEA and the specific academic problems of 
low-achieving students, including a determination of why the prior LEA Plan failed to bring about increased academic 
achievement for all student groups. 

 

Please provide a summary analysis of the needs assessment used to identify student learning needs (especially the academic 
problems of low achieving students). Include an analysis of why the prior LEA Plan was not successful. 
1.   Discuss the results of the assessments used to determine the teaching and learning needs of the schools and the district. 
2.   Identify academic priorities. 

3.  Discuss why the prior LEA Plan was not successful. 

1. The 2014-15 CAASPP results in English Language Arts and Math illustrated a gap in proficiency for English Learners in 
grades 3 through 5 in our elementary district.  Overall, 60% of third graders scored at or above standard for English Language 
Arts while none of the English Learners at Bay View, DeLaveaga or Westlake scored at this level.  3% of English Learners at 

Gault scored at or above standard. There were similar concerns with student performance in math with 52% of 3rd graders at or 
above standard and fewer than 2% meeting the standard in our English Learner population. 
These results are matched by our AMAO that show that only 52% of English Learners met the goal for annual growth in our 
elementary district. 

55 of 461

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ti/stateassesspi.asp
mailto:LEAP@cde.ca.gov
mailto:JMatranga@cde.ca.gov
mailto:JLiang@cde.ca.gov


 

 
 
 

2. Include specific, measurable achievement goals and targets for student groups identified as not making Adequate 
Yearly Progress (AYP), including students with disabilities and English learners, as appropriate. 

 
 
 

3. Incorporate research-based strategies to strengthen the core academic program for identified student groups in 
schools served by the LEA, including students with disabilities and English learners, as appropriate. 

 

Please describe the specific strategies that the district will use and how those strategies will be implemented and monitored to 
strengthen the core academic program. 

We will focus on strengthening our Tier 1 instructional program through instructional strategies, curriculum development for and 
progress monitoring of our English Learners, Low Income students and students with IEPs. 
All schools will work with Core Collaborative to strengthen the instructional core through developing learning intentions and 
success criteria for all lessons. Through this training, our goal is to support students in self-assessment and progress monitoring 
through the Professional Learning Community work at each site. 
Our student performance in AMAO 1 and 2 is not increasing, and we will work with our county office to expand English Language 
Development to an integrated model. We have convened an ELA/ELD task force that will meet four times next year to create a 
framework for expanding English Language Development to content instruction. The research from WestEd illustrates the  
impact of integrated ELD, particularly for students who remain at the intermediate level on the CELDT. 
Our professional learning plan includes monthly grade level meetings for elementary and high school math teachers who are 
adopting a new text. Working with Eureka Math and the Core Collaborative in elementary and CPM in high school, teachers will 
have ongoing support as they develop new lessons and instructional strategies to support struggling students. 

Please describe specific, measurable academic goals and targets for student achievement for student groups identified as not 
making AYP. (Refer to the CDE AYP Reports Web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ay/aypreports.asp.) 

The following are measurable achievement goals and targets for students who have been identified as not making Adequate 
Yearly Progress on the CAASPP and CELDT assessments. 
The percentage of SED students who score at or above standard in English Language Arts will increase from 25.8% to 30.8% in 
2015-16. 
The percentage of English Learners who score at or above standard in English Language Arts will increase from 18% to 23% in 
2015-16. 
The percentage of SED students who score at or above standard in math will increase from 22.3% to 27.3% in 2015-16. 
The percentage of English Learners who score at or above standard in math will increase from 13.2% to 18.2% in 2015-16. 
The percentage of English Learners who make annual progress on the CELDT will increase from 52% to 60% in 2015-16. 

2. Our academic priority for 2015-16 and 2016-17 is to increase performance for our English Learner and low performing 
students in English Language Arts and Math through targeted instruction within the base program and flexible interventions. 

3. The plan failed to meet the needs of underperforming students due to a need to differentiate instruction, provide flexible 
intervention and support teacher training on progress monitoring. The prior plan addressed structures, including teacher 
collaboration, intervention periods and technology that could support targeted instruction and intervention.  However, without 
progress monitoring tools and teacher training, the plan did not meet the needs of underperforming students. 

56 of 461

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ay/aypreports.asp


 

4. Specify actions to implement the identified strategies that have the greatest likelihood of improving student 
achievement in meeting state standards. 

Please identify actions to be implemented to accomplish the identified 
strategies and how they will be supported and monitored. (See 

examples of full implementation descriptions in the Academic Program Survey [APS] 
and the District Assistance Survey [DAS] on the CDE State Assessment Tools Web 
page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ti/stateassesspi.asp.) 

Person(s) 
Responsible 

Specific 
Timeline 

Estimated Cost/ 
Funding Source 

1. Provide targeted math intervention at each secondary school 
through a Math Plus program four days a week during the school day 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Provide targeted reading intervention at elementary through Walk 
to Read program 

 
 
 
3. Reading support in secondary through Read 180 program and 
System 44 

Math Response 
to Intervention 
Coordinators 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Elementary 
Response to 
Intervention 
Coordinators 

 
Principals and 
Assistant 
principals 

Sept. 2016-May 
2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sept. 2016-May 
2017 

 
 
 
Sept. 2016-May 
2017 

$500,000 for 
coordinators (LCFF 
supplemental) 

 
$60,000 for section 
(LCFF 
supplemental) 

 

$400,000 for 
coordinators (LCFF 
supplemental) 

 
$80,000 for Read 
180 section (LCFF 
supplemental) 
$45,000 
intervention 
materials (LCFF 
supplemental) 

57 of 461

http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/ti/stateassesspi.asp


 

5.  Provide high-quality professional development for the instructional staff that focuses on instructional improvement and 
supports the strategies and actions described above. 

Please describe the professional development the LEA will provide to 
instructional staff to address the identified strategies and actions. 

Person(s) 
Responsible 

Specific 
Timeline 

Estimated Cost/ 
Funding Source 

(including 10% set- 
aside from Title I, 

Part A) 

1. Train elementary teachers on new math curriculum 
 
 
 
 
2. Train high school math teachers on new CPM curriculum and 
Integrated pathway 

 
 
 
3. Coaching for elementary teachers in math CCSS 

 
 
 
 
4. Coaching for high school math teachers in CCSS and integrated 
pathway 

 
 
 

5. Core Collaborative PLC with secondary schools 
 
 
 
 
6. ELA/ELD Task Force 

Co-Director of 
Elementary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

 
Co-Director of 
Secondary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

 
Co-Director of 
Elementary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

 
Co-Director of 
Secondary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

 
Co-Directors of 
Secondary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

 
Co-Directors of 
Elementary and 
Secondary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

August 2016- 
April 2017 

 
 
 
July 2016-April 
2017 

 
 
 
Sept. 2016-April 
2017 

 
 
 
Sept. 2016-April 
2017 

 
 
 
 

Sept. 2016-April 
2017 

 
 
Sept. 2016-Feb. 
2017 

$24,000 Educator 
Effectiveness 
Funding Grant 
(EEFG) 

 
$37,200 (EEFG) 

 
 
 
 

$62,000 (EEFG) 
 
 
 
 
$80.000 for four 
.2 CPM coaches 
(EEFG) 

 
 
 
$30,000 (LCFF 
supplemental) 

 
 
$30,000 Title 1 

58 of 461



6. Incorporate, as appropriate, activities before school, after school, during the summer, and/or during an extension of 
the school year. 

Please describe those activities and how the LEA will 
incorporate them. 

Person(s) 
Responsible 

Specific 
Timeline 

Estimated 
Cost 

Funding 
Source 

1. After School Middle School program to support math. 
Students will work on their individual goals through IReady in 
additional to homework support. 

 
 
 
 
2. Summer school for reading intervention (elementary), math 
bridge (middle school) and credit recovery (high school) 

Assistant 
Superintendent of 
Educational 
Services 

 
 
 
Assistant 
Superintendent of 
Educational 
Services 

Sept 2016. – 
May 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
July 2017- 
August 2017 

$180,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
$170,000 

LCFF 
supplemental, 
Title III for 
migrant 
students, 
Parcel tax 

 
Title I, LCFF 
supplemental 
and Migrant 

 
 

7. Include strategies to promote effective parental involvement in the school. 
 

Please describe parental involvement strategies and how the 
LEA will support them across the LEA. 

Person(s) 
Responsible 

Specific 
Timeline 

Estimated 
Cost 

Funding 
Source 

1. Monthly meetings with parents of migrant students and 
English Learners 

 
 
 
 

2. ECOPP – parent education series 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Latino Role Model Event 

Co-Directors of 
Elementary and 
Secondary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

 
Co-Directors of 
Elementary and 
Secondary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

 
Co-Directors of 
Elementary and 
Secondary 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 

Sept. 2016- 
June 2017 

 
 
 
 
Spring 2017 

 
 
 
 
 

January 2017 

$4,000 
 
 
 
 
 
$8,000 

 
 
 
 
 

$5,000 

Title III and 
LCFF 
supplemental 

 
 
 
Title III 

 
 
 
 
 

LCFF 
supplemental 

59 of 461



Assurances 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY PROGRAM IMPROVEMENT PLAN ADDENDUM 
ASSURANCE PAGE 

 

 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan Information: 

 

Name of LEA: 
 

County District Code: 
 

Date of Local Governing Board Approval: 
 

District Superintendent: 

 
Address: 405 OLD SAN JOSE RD City: SOQUEL Zip Code: 95073 

   
Phone: 831.429.3410 ext 220 FAX: 831.429.3439 E-mail: kmunro@sccs.net 

 
 

Signatures: 
 

On behalf of LEAs, participants included in the preparation of this LEA Program Improvement 
Plan Addendum: 

 
 
 

 Kris Munro June 15, 2016 

Signature of Superintendent Printed Name of Superintendent Date 

 

 
 Alisun Thompson June 15, 2016 

Signature of Board President Printed Name of Board President Date 

 
 

 
By submission of the local board approved LEA PI Plan Addendum (in lieu of the original signature 
assurance page in hard copy), the LEA certifies that the plan has been locally adopted and original 
signed copies of the assurances are on file in the LEA. The certification reads: 

 
Certification: I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be 
observed by this LEA and that, to the best of my knowledge, information contained in this Plan is correct 
and complete. Legal assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the 
operation of selected projects and programs and copies of assurances are retained onsite. I certify that 
we accept all general and program specific assurances for Titles I, II, and/or III as appropriate, except for 
those for which a waiver has been obtained. A copy of all waivers will remain on file. I certify that actual 
ink signatures for this LEA Plan/Plan Addendum/Action Plan are on file, including signatures of any 
required external providers. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY ELEM _ 

44 69815 _ 

JUNE 15, 2016 

KRIS MUNRO 

60 of 461

mailto:kmunro@sccs.net


  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.8. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy Updates 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised policies as submitted for first reading.   These policies will come back to 
you for final reading and adoption on June 22, 2016. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The new and revised policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book 
updating process, which sends policies for review to participating districts five times per year.   
 
These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code and case law and will not 
have significant new impacts on Santa Cruz City Schools programs or practice.  These policies 
have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required customization for Santa Cruz City 
Schools has been included. 
 
The Policy Guidesheet provides a basic overview of the policy changes.  Proposed new policies 
precede our current policies for your review. If a proposed policy is new to Santa Cruz City 
Schools, there is no current policy included for review. 
 
The Minor Revisions Guidesheet provides an explanation of a change in wording for one policy.  
If CSBA determines that the proposed addition/deletion/change in language is so brief that it 
does not warrant printing the entire policy for review, then only the Guidesheet is included. 
 
 
 

61 of 461



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

March/April 2016 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 

BP 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAWS which authorize the use of uniform complaint procedures to resolve 

complaints of noncompliance with requirements related to accommodations for lactating students (AB 302, 

2015), educational rights of foster youth and homeless students (AB 379, 2015), assignment of students to 

courses without educational content for more than one week per semester or to courses they have previously 

completed (AB 1012, 2015), and physical education instructional minutes in elementary schools (AB 1391, 

2015 

 

BP 3515.2 - Disruptions 

(BP new to SCCS) 

Policy updated to add optional components that may be addressed in district plans to prevent or respond to 

disruptions. Material on gun-free school zones deleted since possession of firearms and/or ammunition on 

school grounds is now addressed in BP 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds.  

 

BP 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds 

(BP new to SCCS) 

New policy reflects NEW LAW (SB 707, 2015) which eliminates the exception that had allowed persons 

with a Carry Concealed Weapon (CCW) license to possess a firearm on campus. The law now requires such 

persons to obtain written permission of the Superintendent or designee in order to possess a firearm and/or 

ammunition on school grounds. Policy contains options for the Board either to prohibit any person from 

possessing a firearm on campus, unless that person is specifically allowed such possession by law, or to 

authorize the Superintendent or designee to use his/her legal authority to permit persons with a CCW license 

to possess a firearm and/or ammunition on campus.  

 

BP 3553 - Free and Reduced-Price Meals 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect the timeline for submitting a request to the State Board of Education for a waiver of 

the requirement to provide free and reduced-price meals during summer session. Policy also revised to reflect 

law authorizing sharing of students' free and reduced-price meal eligibility information with another local 

educational agency serving another child living in the same household as the student and with the 

Superintendent of Public Instruction for purposes of determining local control funding formula allocations.  

 

BP 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect state requirement that any education program or activity offered separately to 

pregnant students be "equal" to that offered to other district students, a standard that is more stringent than 

the federal standard for "comparable" programs. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 302, 2015) requiring 

schools to offer reasonable accommodations, as specified, to any lactating student on the campus and 

providing that any complaint regarding noncompliance with these provisions may be addressed through the 

district's uniform complaint procedures. 

 

BP 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services 

(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 451, 2015) which expresses legislative intent regarding the 

responsibilities of school counselors, specifies required and optional components to be included in a 

comprehensive counseling program if the district chooses to offer such a program, and requires that certain 

strategies be included in professional development related to career and vocational counseling. Policy also 

clarifies options regarding access to students by college and employment recruiters, including military 

recruiters. 

62 of 461



Community Relations BP 1312.3(a) 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with 

applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board encourages the 

early, informal resolution of complaints whenever possible and appropriate. To resolve complaints which cannot 

be resolved through such informal process, the Board adopts the uniform system of complaint processes specified 

in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 

The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the following 

complaints: 

 

1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing adult 

education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career technical and 

technical education and training programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition 

programs, and special education programs  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 

(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 

(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 

 

2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying) against any person in district programs and activities, including, but not limited 

to, those programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial 

assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, 

nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical 

or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic 

information, or any other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, 

or Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these 

actual or perceived characteristics  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

 

 

63 of 461



  

 BP 1312.3(b) 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide reasonable 

accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, 

or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the student  (Education Code 222) 

 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

 

4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring students to pay fees, 

deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 

 

5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the implementation of 

the local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075) 

 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 

6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district noncompliance with 

any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding placement decisions, the responsibilities of the 

district's educational liaison to the student, the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in 

another school or district, school transfer, or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation 

requirements  (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2)  

 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

 

7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, alleging district 

noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the student regarding the award of credit for 

coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district or the grant of an exemption from Board-

imposed graduation requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 

 

8. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code 51228.1 and 

51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student to a course without educational content for more than 

one week in any semester or to a course the student has previously satisfactorily completed, without 

meeting specified conditions  (Education Code 51228.3) 

 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 

  

 

64 of 461



 

 BP 1312.3(c) 

 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education instructional minutes 

requirement for students in elementary school  (Education Code 51210, 51223) 

 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

 

10. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the complaint process or 

anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy 

 

11. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 

 

The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of the allegations, 

offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to all parties. ADR such as mediation may 

be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult.  However, mediation shall not 

be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a 

party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate.  The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the 

use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 

 

The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the confidentiality of the 

parties involved shall be protected as required by law. As appropriate for any complaint alleging retaliation or 

unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or 

designee shall keep confidential the identity of the complainant and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is 

different from the complainant, as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained. 

 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

 

When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall refer the non-

UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related 

allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and knowledge of 

current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in this policy and the 

accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

65 of 461



 

 BP 1312.3(d) 

 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the investigations of those 

complaints.  All such records shall be destroyed in accordance with applicable state law and district policy. 

 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

 

Non-UCP Complaints 
 

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the specified agency:  

(5 CCR 4611) 

 

1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of Social 

Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement agency. 

 

2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for licensed 

facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-exempt facilities, be 

referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator. 

 

3. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination shall be sent to the California Department of Fair 

Employment and Housing and the compliance officer shall notify the complainant by first class mail of 

the transfer. 

 

4. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the California Department of Education. 

 

In addition, the district's Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR 1312.4, shall be used to investigate and 

resolve any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities 

conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or teacher vacancies and misassignments.  

(Education Code 35186) 

 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

66 of 461



 

 

 BP 1312.3(e) 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 
Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 

222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 

8200-8498  Child care and development programs 

8500-8538  Adult basic education 

18100-18203  School libraries 

32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures 

35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures 

48853-48853.5  Foster youth 

48985  Notices in language other than English 

49010-49013  Student fees 

49060-49079  Student records 

49069.5  Rights of parents 

49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 

51210  Courses of study grades 1-6 

51223  Physical education, elementary schools 

51225.1-51225.2  Foster youth and homeless children; course credits; graduation requirements 

51228.1-51228.3  Course periods without educational content 

52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially 

52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements 

52160-52178  Bilingual education programs 

52300-52490  Career technical education 

52500-52616.24  Adult schools 

52800-52870  School-based program coordination 

54400-54425  Compensatory education programs 

54440-54445  Migrant education 

54460-54529  Compensatory education programs 

56000-56867  Special education programs 

59000-59300  Special schools and centers 

64000-64001  Consolidated application process 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 

PENAL CODE 

422.55  Hate crime; definition 

422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

3080  Application of section 

4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 

  

 

67 of 461



 

 BP 1312.3(f) 

 

 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 
Legal Reference: (continued) 

 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1221 Application of laws 

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

6301-6577  Title I basic programs 

6801-6871  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 

7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act 

               7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs 

7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs 

12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 

2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 

104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 

106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 

106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 

110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 

Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014 

Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 

Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, April 2011 

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, or Third Parties, January 

2001 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68 of 461



 

 
Management Resources (continued) 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 

Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination 

Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 

U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 

 

 

 

Policy Santa Cruz City Schools 

adopted:   April 17, 2013 

revised:    November 12, 2014 

revised:    January 21, 2015 

revised: June 15, 2016 

 

69 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools 

Board Policy 

Uniform Complaint Procedures 
 

BP 1312.3  

Community Relations 
 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure 

compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 

programs. The Board encourages the early, informal resolution of complaints whenever possible 

and appropriate. To resolve complaints which cannot be resolved through such informal process, 

the Board shall adopt the uniform system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 

and the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 

The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the 

following complaints: 

 

1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 

governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, 

career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development 

programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs  (5 CCR 4610) 

 

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 

(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 

(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 

 

2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any person, based on his/her actual 

or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, 

ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, 

sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any 

other characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal 

Code 422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these 

actual or perceived characteristics, in district programs and activities, including, but not limited 

to, those funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial assistance (5 CCR 

70 of 461



4610) 

 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

 

3. Any complaint alleging district violation of the prohibition against requiring students to 

pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities  (5 CCR 4610) 

 

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 

 

4. Any complaint alleging that the district has not complied with legal requirements related 

to the implementation of the local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075) 

 

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 

5. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the 

complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy 

 

6. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 

 

The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of 

the allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is agreeable to all 

parties. One type of ADR is mediation, which shall be offered to resolve complaints that involve 

more than one student and no adult.  However, mediation shall not be offered or used 

to resolve any complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party 

to the mediation would feel compelled to participate.  The Superintendent or designee shall 

ensure that the use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 

 

The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the 

confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. As appropriate for 

any complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep confidential the identity of 

the complainant and/or the subject of the complaint, if he/she is different from the complainant, 

as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained. 

 

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 

 

When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district 

shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if 

appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 

71 of 461



 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and 

knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in 

this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the 

investigations of those complaints.  All such records shall be destroyed in accordance with 

applicable state law and district policy. 

 

(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

 

Non-UCP Complaints 

 

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the 

specified agency:  (5 CCR 4611) 

 

1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department 

of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement 

agency. 

 

2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program 

shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-

exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator. 

 

3. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination shall be sent to the California 

Department of Fair Employment and Housing and the compliance officer shall notify the 

complainant by first class mail of the transfer. 

 

4. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the California Department of Education. 

 

In addition, the district's Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR 1312.4, shall be used to 

investigate and resolve any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional 

materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of 

students or staff, or teacher vacancies and misassignments.  (Education Code 35186) 

 

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 

72 of 461



8200-8498  Child care and development programs 

8500-8538  Adult basic education 

18100-18203  School libraries 

32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures 

35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures 

48985  Notices in language other than English 

49010-49013  Student fees 

49060-49079  Student records 

49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 

52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially 

52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan 

requirements 

52160-52178  Bilingual education programs 

52300-52490  Career technical education 

52500-52616.24  Adult schools 

52800-52870  School-based program coordination 

54400-54425  Compensatory education programs 

54440-54445  Migrant education 

54460-54529  Compensatory education programs 

56000-56867  Special education programs 

59000-59300  Special schools and centers 

64000-64001  Consolidated application process 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 

PENAL CODE 

422.55  Hate crime; definition 

422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

3080  Application of section 

4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1221 Application of laws 

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

6301-6577  Title I basic programs 

6801-6871  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 

7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act 

7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs 

7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs 

12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 

73 of 461



2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 

104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 

106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 

106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 

110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 

 

Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 

Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014 

Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 

Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, April 2011 

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other 

Students, or Third Parties, January 2001 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 

Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against 

National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 

U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 

 

 

 

Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

adopted:  April 17, 2013  Soquel, California 

revised:   November 12, 2014 

revised:   January 21, 2015 

revised:   October 14, 2015 

74 of 461



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3515.2(a) 

 

DISRUPTIONS 

 

The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe and orderly environment for students, staff, and others on 

district property or while engaged in school activities. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall remove any individual who, by his/her presence or action, disrupts or 

threatens to disrupt normal operations at a school campus or any other district facility, threatens the health or 

safety of anyone on district property, or causes or threatens to cause damage to district property or to any property 

on school grounds. 

 
(cf. 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders) 

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security) 

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a plan describing staff responsibilities and actions to be taken when 

an individual is causing or threatening to cause a disruption. The plan shall address, as appropriate, visitor 

registration procedures; campus security measures; evacuation procedures; lock-down procedures; possible 

responses to an active shooter situation; communications within the school and with parents/guardians, law 

enforcement, and the media in the event of an emergency; and crisis counseling or other assistance for students 

and staff after a disruption. In developing such a plan, the Superintendent or designee shall consult with law 

enforcement to create guidelines for law enforcement support and intervention when necessary. 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 

(cf. 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds) 

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to school staff on how to identify and respond to actions or 

situations that may constitute a disruption. 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

Any employee who believes that a disruption may occur shall immediately contact the principal. The principal or 

designee shall notify law enforcement in accordance with Education Code 48902 and 20 USC 7151 and in other 

situations, as appropriate. 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

75 of 461



 BP 3515.2(b) 

 

DISRUPTIONS  (continued) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

32210  Willful disturbance of public school or meeting, misdemeanor 

32211  Threatened disruption or interference with classes; misdemeanor 

35160  Authority of governing boards 

44810  Willful interference with classroom conduct 

44811  Disruption of classwork or extracurricular activities 

48902  Notification of law enforcement authorities 

51512  Prohibited use of electronic listening or recording device 

PENAL CODE 

243.5  Assault or battery on school property 

415.5  Disturbance of peace of school 

626-626.11  Schools, crimes, especially: 

626.7  Failure to leave campus or facility; wrongful return; penalties; notice; exceptions 

626.8  Disruptive presence at schools 

626.81  Misdemeanor for registered sex offender to come onto school grounds 

626.85  Misdemeanor for specified drug offender presence on school grounds 

626.9  Gun Free School Zone Act 

627-627.10  Access to school premises 

653b  Loitering about schools or public places 

12556  Imitation firearms 

30310  Prohibition against ammunition on school grounds 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

7151  Gun-Free Schools Act 

COURT DECISIONS 

Reeves v. Rocklin Unified School District, (2003) 109 Cal.App.4th 652 

In Re Joseph F., (2000) 85 Cal.App.4th 975 

In Re Jimi A., (1989) 209 Cal.App.3d 482 

In Re Oscar R., (1984) 161 Cal.App.3d 770 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 58 (1996) 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

911! A Manual for Schools and the Media During a Campus Crisis, 2001 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans, 2013 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 

Policy Santa Cruz City Schools 

adopted: June 15, 2016 

 

76 of 461



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3515.7(a) 

 

FIREARMS ON SCHOOL GROUNDS 

 
Cautionary Notice:  SB 707 (Ch. 766, Statutes of 2015) amended Penal Code 626.9 and 30310 to provide that a person with 

a concealed weapons license must obtain written permission of the Superintendent or designee in order to possess a firearm 

and/or ammunition on school grounds. In view of the public interest and safety issues involved, CSBA strongly recommends 

that the Governing Board adopt a policy either prohibiting or permitting such possession and, if such possession is allowed, 

establishing conditions and criteria for granting permission to individuals. Because the law now requires an affirmative action 

on the part of the district to allow or disallow concealed weapons permit holders to possess a firearm and/or ammunition on 

school grounds, it is possible that district liability could be increased. Thus, in adopting a policy, CSBA recommends that the 

Board consult with the district's legal counsel and insurance provider and with local law enforcement in order to carefully tailor 

the following sample policy to reflect the district's local circumstances. 

 

The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe environment for students, staff, and visitors on campus. 

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with local law enforcement, insurance carriers, and other appropriate 

individuals and agencies to address the security of school campuses. 

 
(cf. 3515 - Campus Security) 

(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions) 

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 

(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 

(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 

 

District policy regarding the possession of firearms and/or ammunition on school grounds shall be included in the 

district's comprehensive safety plan and shall be communicated to district staff, parents/guardians, and the 

community. 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 

 

Any person specified in Penal Code 626.9(l)-(o) and 30310 is authorized to possess a firearm and/or ammunition 

on school grounds. School grounds include, but are not limited to, school buildings, fields, storage areas, and 

parking lots. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall not grant permission to any other individual to carry a firearm or ammunition 

on school grounds. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77 of 461



 

 BP 3515.7(b) 

 

 

FIREARMS ON SCHOOL GROUNDS  (continued) 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

32281  Comprehensive safety plan 

35160  Powers and duties of the board 

35161  Powers and duties of the board; authority to delegate 

38001.5  District security officers; requirements if carry firearm 

PENAL CODE 

626.9  Gun Free School Zone Act 

830.32  District police department; district decision to authorize carrying of firearm 

16150  Definition of ammunition 

16520  Definition of firearm 

26150-26225  Concealed weapons permit 

30310  Prohibition against ammunition on school grounds 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 

921  Definitions, firearms and ammunition 

922  Firearms, unlawful acts 

923  Firearm licensing 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

7151  Gun-Free Schools Act; student expulsions for possession of firearm 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 

Office of the Attorney General: https://oag.ca.gov/firearms 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy Santa Cruz City Schools 

adopted: June 15, 2016 

 

78 of 461



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3553(a) 

 

FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that adequate nutrition is essential to the development, health, 

and learning of all students. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate and encourage the 

participation of students from low-income families in the district's food service program. 

 
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 

(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 

(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 

 

The district shall provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal each school day, free of charge 

or at a reduced price, for students whose families meet federal eligibility criteria. (Education Code 

49550, 49552) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that meals provided through the free and reduced-

price meals program meet applicable state and/or federal nutritional standards in accordance with 

law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 
 

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

 

Schools participating in the Special Milk Program pursuant to 42 USC 1772 shall provide milk at 

no charge to students who meet federal eligibility criteria for free or reduced-price meals. 

 

The Board shall approve, and shall submit to the California Department of Education for approval, 

a plan that ensures that students eligible to receive free or reduced-price meals and milk are not 

treated differently from other students.  (Education Code 49557) 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

 

Confidentiality/Release of Records 

 

All applications and records related to eligibility for the free and reduced-price meals program 

shall be confidential and may not be released except as provided by law and authorized by the 

Board or pursuant to a court order. (Education Code 49558) 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

The Board authorizes designated employees to use individual records pertaining to student 

eligibility for the free and reduced-price meals program for the purposes of:  (Education Code 

49558) 

 

 

79 of 461



BP 3553(b) 

 

FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 

 

 

1. Disaggregation of academic achievement data 

 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 

 

2. In any school identified as a Title I program improvement school pursuant to 20 USC 6316, 

identification of students eligible for school choice and supplemental educational services 

 
(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)  

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 

 

If a student transfers from the district to another district, charter school, county office of education 

program, or private school, the Superintendent or designee may share the student's meal eligibility 

information to the other educational agency to assist in the continuation of the student's meal 

benefits. 

 

The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 

participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to another school district, charter school, 

or county office of education that is serving a student living in the same household for purposes 

related to program eligibility and data used in local control funding formula calculations.  

(Education Code 49558) 

 

The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 

participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to the Superintendent of Public Instruction 

for purposes of determining allocations under the local control funding formula and for assessing 

accountability of that funding.  (Education Code 49558) 

 

The Superintendent or designee may release information on the school lunch program application 

to the local agency that determines eligibility for participation in the Medi-Cal program if the 

student has been approved for free meals or, if included in the agreement with the local agency, 

for reduced-price meals. He/she also may release information on the school lunch application to 

the local agency that determines eligibility for CalFresh or another nutrition assistance program 

authorized under 7 CFR 210.1 if the student has been approved for free or reduced-price meals. 

Information may be released for these purposes only if the student's parent/guardian consents to 

the sharing of information and the district has entered into a memorandum of understanding with 

the local agency which, at a minimum, includes the roles and responsibilities of the district and 

local agency and the process for sharing the information. After sharing information with the local 

agency for purposes of determining eligibility for that program, no further information shall be 

shared unless otherwise authorized by law.  (Education Code 49557.2, 49557.3, 49558) 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

80 of 461



BP 3553(c) 

 
 

FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

48980  Notice at beginning of term 

49430-49434  Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 

49490-49494  School breakfast and lunch programs 

49500-49505  School meals 

49510-49520  Nutrition 

49530-49536  Child Nutrition Act of 1974 

49547-49548.3  Comprehensive nutrition service 

49550-49562  Meals for needy students 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

15510  Mandatory meals for needy students 

15530-15535  Nutrition education 

15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1232g  Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

6301-6514  Title I programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1751-1769j  School lunch program 

1771-1791  Child nutrition, especially: 

1773  School breakfast program 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 

210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 

220.10-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 

245.1-245.13  Determination of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

14005.41  Basic health care 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies, 2012 

Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, 2012 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION MANAGEMENT BULLETINS 

NSD SNP-12-2015 Updated Guidance on Sharing of School Meal Applications and the Passing of 

Assembly Bill 1599, July 2015 

USDA-SNP-07-2010  Change in Free and Reduced-Price Meal Application Approval Process, September 

2010 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Feed More Kids, Improve Program Participation 

Direct Certification Implementation Checklist, May 2008 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 

Eligibility Manual for School Meals:  Determining and Verifying Eligibility, July 2015 

Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, Summer 2002 

 

 
Management Resources: (see next page) 

 

81 of 461



 

 

 

BP 3553(d) 

 

 

FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 

 

 

 
Management Resources: (continued) 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 

California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org 

California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): 

http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy Santa Cruz City Schools 

adopted:   March 14, 2012 

revised: June 15, 2016 

 

82 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools 

Board Policy 

Free And Reduced Price Meals 
 

BP 3553  

Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that adequate nutrition is essential to the development, health, 

and learning of all students. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate and encourage the 

participation of students from low-income families in the district's food service program. 

 

(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 

(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 

(cf. 6177 - Summer School) 

 

The district shall provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal each school day, free of charge 

or at a reduced price, for students whose families meet federal eligibility criteria. (Education 

Code 49550, 49552) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that meals provided through the free and reduced-

price meals program meet applicable state and/or federal nutritional standards in accordance with 

law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 

 

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

 

Schools participating in the Special Milk Program pursuant to 42 USC 1772 shall provide milk at 

no charge to students who meet federal eligibility criteria for free or reduced-price meals. 

 

The Board shall approve, and shall submit to the California Department of Education for 

approval, a plan that ensures that students eligible to receive free or reduced-price meals and 

milk are not treated differently from other students.  (Education Code 49557) 

 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

 

Confidentiality/Release of Records 

 

All applications and records related to eligibility for the free and reduced-price meals program 

shall be confidential except as provided by law. (Education Code 49558) 

 

83 of 461



If a student transfers from the district to another district or to a private school, the Superintendent 

or designee may release the student's eligibility status or a copy of his/her free and reduced-price 

meal application to the other district or school to assist in the continuation of the student's meal 

benefits. 

 

The Board authorizes designated employees to use individual records pertaining to student 

eligibility for the free and reduced-price meals program for the purposes of:  (Education Code 

49558) 

 

1. Disaggregation of academic achievement data 

 

2. In any school identified as a Title I program improvement school pursuant to 20 USC 6316, 

identification of students eligible for school choice and supplemental educational services 

 

(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

(cf. 6162.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting Program) 

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 

 

The Board further authorizes the release of information on the school lunch program application 

to the local agency that determines Medi-Cal program eligibility, provided that the student is 

approved for free meals and the parent/guardian consents to the sharing of information in 

accordance with Education Code 49557.2. 

 

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

 

In addition, information on the school lunch program application may be released to the local 

agency that determines eligibility for participation in the CalFresh program or other nutrition 

assistance program, provided the student whose information is to be released is approved for free 

or reduced-price meals and his/her parent/guardian consents to the sharing of the information.  

Prior to releasing information to any such local agency, the Superintendent or designee and the 

local agency shall enter into a memorandum of understanding that, at a minimum, shall include 

the roles and responsibilities of the district and the local agency, the process for sharing the 

information, and a statement that the local agency may use the information only for purposes 

directly related to the enrollment of families in the CalFresh or other nutrition assistance 

program.  (Education Code 49557.3, 49558) 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

48980  Notice at beginning of term 

49430-49436  Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 

49490-49494  School breakfast and lunch programs 

49500-49505  School meals 

49510-49520  Nutrition 

84 of 461



49530-49536  Child Nutrition Act of 1974 

49547-49548.3  Comprehensive nutrition service 

49550-49562  Meals for needy students 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

15510  Mandatory meals for needy students 

15530-15535  Nutrition education 

15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1232g  Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

6301-6514  Title I programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1751-1769j  School lunch program 

1771-1791  Child nutrition, especially: 

1773  School breakfast program 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 

210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 

220.10-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 

245.1-245.13  Determination of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk 

 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Monitoring for Success: Student Wellness Policy Implementation Monitoring Report and Guide, 

2007 

Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, rev. April 2006 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION MANAGEMENT BULLETINS 

USDA-SNP-07-2010  Change in Free and Reduced-Price Meal Application Approval Process, 

September 2010 

NSD-SNP-12-2010  Clarification Regarding the Ability to Share Student Meal Program 

Eligibility Information Between School Food Authorities, April 2010 

04-103  Implementation of Final Rule on Verification of Applications for Free and Reduced-

Price Meals, August 2004 

98-101  Confidentiality of Free and Reduced-Price Eligibility Information, February 1998 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Feed More Kids, Improve Program Participation 

Direct Certification Implementation Checklist, May 2008 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 

Eligibility Manual for School Meals: Federal Policy for Determining and Verifying Eligibility, 

January 2008 

Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, Summer 2002 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 

California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org 

California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): 

http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 

85 of 461



 

 

 

Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

adopted:  March 14, 2012 Soquel, California 

86 of 461



Students BP 5146(a) 

 

MARRIED/PREGNANT/PARENTING STUDENTS 

 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that early marriage, pregnancy, or parenting and related 

responsibilities may disrupt a student's education and increase the chance of a student dropping 

out of school. The Board therefore desires to support married, pregnant, and parenting students to 

continue their education, attain strong academic and parenting skills, and promote the healthy 

development of their children. 

 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 

(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

 

The district shall not discriminate against any student on the basis of the student's marital status, 

pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy, or related recovery. (Education 

Code 230; 34 CFR 106.40) 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

 

For school-related purposes, a student under the age of 18 years who enters into a valid marriage 

shall have all the rights and privileges of students who are 18 years old, even if the marriage has 

been dissolved.  (Family Code 7002) 

 

Education and Support Services for Pregnant and Parenting Students 

 

Pregnant and parenting students shall retain the right to participate in any comprehensive school 

or educational alternative program. The classroom setting shall be the preferred instructional 

strategy unless an alternative is necessary to meet the needs of the student and/or his/her child. 

 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 

 

Any education program or activity that is offered separately to pregnant students, including any 

class or extracurricular activity, shall be equal to that offered to other district students.  A student's 

participation in such programs shall be voluntary.  (5 CCR 4950) 

 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

 

 

 

87 of 461



 

 BP 5146(b) 

 

MARRIED/PREGNANT/PARENTING STUDENTS  (continued) 

 

As required for other students with physical or emotional conditions or temporary disabilities, the 

Superintendent or designee may require a student, based on pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, 

termination of pregnancy, or related recovery, to obtain certification from a physician indicating 

that the student is physically and emotionally able to participate in an educational program or 

activity.  (34 CFR 106.40) 

 

To the extent feasible, educational and related support services shall be provided, either through 

the district or in collaboration with community agencies and organizations, to meet the needs of 

pregnant and parenting students and their children.  Such services may include, but are not limited 

to: 

 

1. Child care and development services for the children of parenting students on or near 

school site(s) during the school day and during school-sponsored activities 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 

 

2. Parenting education and life skills instruction 

 

3. Special school nutrition supplements for pregnant and lactating students pursuant to 

Education Code 49553, 42 USC 1786, and 7 CFR 246.1-246.28 

 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 

 

4. Health care services, including prenatal care 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

 

5. Tobacco, alcohol, and/or drug prevention and intervention services 

 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 

 

6. Academic and personal counseling 

 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

 

7. Supplemental instruction to assist students in achieving grade-level academic standards 

and progressing toward graduation 

 

  

 

88 of 461



 

 BP 5146(c) 

 

 

MARRIED/PREGNANT/PARENTING STUDENTS  (continued) 

 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 

 

As appropriate, teachers, administrators, and/or other personnel who work with pregnant and 

parenting students shall receive related professional development. 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

Absences  

 

Pregnant or parenting students may be excused for absences related to confidential medical 

appointments in accordance with BP/AR 5113 - Absences and Excuses. 

 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall grant a student a leave of absence due to pregnancy, 

childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy, and related recovery for as long as it is 

deemed medically necessary by a physician.  At the conclusion of the leave, the student shall be 

reinstated to the status held when the leave began.  (34 CFR 106.40) 

 
(cf. 5112.3 - Student Leave of Absence) 

 

A parenting student may request exemption from attendance because of personal services that must 

be rendered to a dependent.  

 
(cf. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance) 

 

Reasonable Accommodations 

 

When necessary, the district shall provide reasonable accommodations to pregnant and parenting 

students to enable them to access the educational program.   

 

A pregnant student shall have access to any services available to other students with temporary 

disabilities or medical conditions. (34 CFR 106.40)  

 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 

 

  

 

 

 

89 of 461



 

 BP 5146(d) 

 

 

MARRIED/PREGNANT/PARENTING STUDENTS  (continued) 

 

The school shall provide reasonable accommodations to any lactating student to express breast 

milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs related to breastfeeding. A student shall 

not incur an academic penalty for using any of these reasonable accommodations, and shall be 

provided the opportunity to make up any work missed due to such use. Reasonable 

accommodations include, but are not limited to:  (Education Code 222) 

 

1. Access to a private and secure room, other than a restroom, to express breast milk or 

breastfeed an infant child 

 

2. Permission to bring onto a school campus a breast pump and any other equipment used to 

express breast milk 

 

3. Access to a power source for a breast pump or any other equipment used to express breast 

milk 

 

4. Access to a place to store expressed breast milk safely 

 

5. A reasonable amount of time to accommodate the student's need to express breast milk or 

breastfeed an infant child 

 

Complaints 

 

Any complaint of discrimination on the basis of pregnancy or marital or parental status shall be 

addressed through the district's uniform complaint procedures in accordance with 5 CCR 4600-

4687 and BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 

 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements to provide reasonable 

accommodations for lactating students also may be filed in accordance with the district's 

procedures in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. A complainant who is not satisfied 

with the district's decision may appeal the decision to the California Department of Education 

(CDE). If the district or the CDE finds merit in an appeal, the district shall provide a remedy to the 

affected student. (Education Code 222; 5 CCR 4600-4687) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

90 of 461



 

 BP 5146(e) 

 

 

MARRIED/PREGNANT/PARENTING STUDENTS  (continued) 

 

Program Evaluation 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board regarding the effectiveness 

of district strategies to support married, pregnant, and parenting students, which may include data 

on participation rates in district programs and services, academic achievement, school attendance, 

graduation rate, and/or student feedback on district programs and services. 

 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 

230  Sex discrimination 

8200-8498 Child Care and Development Services Act 

48205  Excused absences 

48220  Compulsory education requirement 

48410  Persons exempted from continuation classes 

49553  Nutrition supplements for pregnant/lactating students 

51220.5  Parenting skills and education 

51745  Independent study 

52610.5  Enrollment of pregnant and parenting students in adult education 

CIVIL CODE 

51  Unruh Civil Rights Act 

FAMILY CODE 

7002  Description of emancipated minor 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

104460  Tobacco prevention services for pregnant and parenting students 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 

4950  Nondiscrimination, marital and parental status 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 

101151-101239.2  General licensing requirements for child care centers 

101351-101439.1  Infant care centers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

91 of 461



 

 BP 5146(f) 

 

 

MARRIED/PREGNANT/PARENTING STUDENTS  (continued) 

 

 

 
Management Resources: 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1681-1688  Title IX, Education Act Amendments 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1786  Special supplemental nutrition program for women, infants, and children 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 

246.1-246.28  Special supplemental nutrition program for women, infants, and children 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

106.40   Marital or parental status 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 168 (2004) 

COURT DECISIONS 

American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307 

 CALIFORNIA WOMEN'S LAW CENTER PUBLICATIONS 

Educational Rights of Pregnant and Parenting Teens: Title IX and California State Law Requirements 

Pregnant Students and Confidential Medical Services 

The Civil Rights of Pregnant and Parenting Teens in California Schools, 2002 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Supporting the Academic Success of Pregnant and Parenting Students under Title IX of the Education 

Amendments of 1972, rev. June 2013 

WEB SITES 

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

California Women's Law Center: http://www.cwlc.org/resources 

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Women, Infants, and Children Program: http://www.fns.usda.gov/wic 

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy Santa Cruz City Schools 

adopted:   February 23, 2011   

revised:   March 12, 2014 

revised: June 15, 2016 

 

92 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools 

Board Policy 

Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students 
 

BP 5146  

Students 
 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that early marriage, pregnancy, or parenting may disrupt a 

student's education and increase the chance of a student dropping out of school. The Board 

therefore desires to support married, pregnant, and parenting students to continue their education, 

attain strong academic and parenting skills, and promote the healthy development of their 

children. 

 

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students) 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 

(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

 

The district shall not discriminate against any student on the basis of the student's marital status, 

pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy, or related recovery. (Education 

Code 230; 20 USC 1681-1688) 

 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities) 

 

Any education program or activity, including any class or extracurricular activity, that is offered 

separately to such students shall be comparable to that offered to other district students.  A 

student's participation in such programs shall be voluntary.  (34 CFR 106.40) 

 

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

 

Any complaint of discrimination on the basis of pregnancy or marital or parental status shall be 

addressed through the district's uniform complaint procedures in accordance with 5 CCR 4600-

4687 and BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 

 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

For school-related purposes, a married student under the age of 18 years shall have all the rights 

and privileges of students who are 18 years old, even if the marriage has been dissolved.  

93 of 461



(Family Code 7002) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board regarding the effectiveness 

of district strategies to support married, pregnant, and parenting students, which may include 

data on participation rates in district programs and services, academic achievement, school 

attendance, graduation rate, and/or student feedback on district programs and services. 

 

(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 

 

Pregnant and Parenting Students 

 

Pregnant and parenting students shall retain the right to participate in any comprehensive school 

or educational alternative program.  The classroom setting shall be the preferred instructional 

strategy unless an alternative is necessary to meet the needs of the student and/or his/her child. 

 

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 

 

When necessary, the district shall provide reasonable accommodations to pregnant and parenting 

students to enable them to access the educational program.  A pregnant student shall have access 

to any services available to other students with temporary disabilities or medical conditions.  A 

lactating student shall have access to a private location, other than a restroom, to breastfeed or 

express milk for her infant child. 

 

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 

 

A student may be required, based on her pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of 

pregnancy, or related recovery, to obtain certification from a physician indicating that she is 

physically and emotionally able to participate in an educational program or activity, if other 

students with physical or emotional conditions or temporary disabilities are required by the 

district to provide such certification.  (34 CFR 106.40) 

 

To the extent feasible, educational and related support services shall be provided, either through 

the district or in collaboration with community agencies and organizations, to meet the needs of 

pregnant and parenting students and their children.  Such services may include, but are not 

limited to: 

 

1. Child care and development services for the children of parenting students on or near 

school site(s) during the school day and during school-sponsored activities 

 

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 

94 of 461



 

2. Parenting education and life skills instruction 

 

3. Special school nutrition supplements for pregnant and lactating students pursuant to 

Education Code 49553, 42 USC 1786, and 7 CFR 246.1-246.28 

 

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 

 

4. Health care services, including prenatal care 

 

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

 

5. Tobacco, alcohol, and/or drug prevention and intervention services 

 

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 

 

6. Academic and personal counseling 

 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

 

7. Supplemental instruction to assist students in achieving grade-level academic standards 

and progressing toward graduation 

 

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 

 

As appropriate, teachers, administrators, and/or other personnel who work with pregnant and 

parenting students shall receive related professional development. 

 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

Pregnant or parenting students may be excused for absences related to confidential medical 

appointments in accordance with BP/AR 5113 - Absences and Excuses. 

 

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall grant a student a leave of absence due to pregnancy, 

childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy, and related recovery for as long as it is 

deemed medically necessary by her physician.  At the conclusion of the leave, the student shall 

be reinstated to the status she held when the leave began.  (34 CFR 106.40) 

 

(cf. 5112.3 - Student Leave of Absence) 

 

95 of 461



A pregnant or parenting student also may request exemption from attendance because of a 

related physical or mental condition or because of personal services that must be rendered to a 

dependent.  (Education Code 48410) 

 

(cf. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance) 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

230  Sex discrimination 

8200-8498 Child Care and Development Services Act 

48205  Excused absences 

48220  Compulsory education requirement 

48410  Persons exempted from continuation classes 

49553  Nutrition supplements for pregnant/lactating students 

51220.5  Parenting skills and education 

51745  Independent study 

52610.5  Enrollment of pregnant and parenting students in adult education 

54740-54749  Cal-SAFE program for pregnant/parenting students and their children 

FAMILY CODE 

7002  Description of emancipated minor 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

104460  Tobacco prevention services for  pregnant and parenting students 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 

4950  Nondiscrimination, marital and parental status 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 

101151-101239.2  General licensing requirements for child care centers 

101351-101439.1  Infant care centers 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1681-1688  Title IX, Education Act Amendments 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1786  Special supplemental nutrition program for women, infants, and children 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 

246.1-246.28  Special supplemental nutrition program for women, infants, and children 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

106.40   Marital or parental status 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 168 (2004) 

COURT DECISIONS 

American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307 

 

Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA WOMEN'S LAW CENTER PUBLICATIONS 

Educational Rights of Pregnant and Parenting Teens: Title IX and California State Law 

96 of 461



Requirements 

The Civil Rights of Pregnant and Parenting Teens in California Schools, 2002 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Supporting the Academic Success of Pregnant and Parenting Students under Title IX of the 

Education Amendments of 1972, rev. June 2013 

WEB SITES 

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

California Women's Law Center: http://www.cwlc.org 

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Women, Infants, and Children Program: 

http://www.fns.usda.gov/wic 

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 

 

 

Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

adopted:  February 23, 2011  Soquel, California 

revised:  March 12, 2014 

97 of 461



Instruction BP 6164.2(a) 

 

GUIDANCE/COUNSELING SERVICES 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that a structured, coherent and comprehensive counseling program promotes 

academic achievement and serves the diverse needs of all district students.  Counseling staff shall be available to 

provide students with individualized reviews of their educational progress toward academic and/or career and 

vocational goals and, as appropriate, may discuss social, personal, or other issues that may impact student 

learning. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all persons employed to provide school counseling, school 

psychology, and/or school social work services shall possess the appropriate credential from the Commission on 

Teacher Credentialing authorizing their employment in such positions.  Responsibilities of each position shall be 

clearly defined in a job description. 

 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 

 

Responsibilities of school counselors include, but are not limited to: 

 

1. Engaging with, advocating for, and providing support for all students with respect to learning and 

achievement 

 

2. Planning, implementing, and evaluating programs to promote the academic, career, personal, and social 

development of all students, including students from low-income families, foster youth, homeless youth, 

undocumented youth, and students at all levels of academic, social, and emotional abilities 

 

3. Using multiple sources of information to monitor and improve student behavior and achievement 

 

4. Collaborating and coordinating with school and community resources 

 

5. Promoting and maintaining a safe learning environment for all students by providing restorative justice 

practices, positive behavior interventions, and support services 

 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 

(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

 

6. Intervening to ameliorate school-related problems, including issues related to chronic absences 

 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 

 

7. Using research-based strategies to reduce stigma, conflict, and student-to-student mistreatment and 

bullying 

 

98 of 461



 BP 6164.2(b) 

 

GUIDANCE/COUNSELING SERVICES  (continued) 

 

8. Improving school climate and student well-being 

 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

 

9. Enhancing students' social and emotional competence, character, health, civic engagement, cultural 

legacy, and commitment to lifelong learning and the pursuit of high-quality educational programs 

 
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 

 

10. Providing counseling interventions and support services for students classified as English learners, eligible 

for free or reduced-priced meals, or foster youth, including enhancing equity and access to the education 

system and community services 

 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

 

11. Engaging in continued development as a professional school counselor 
 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 

Educational Counseling 

 

Beginning in grade 7, parents/guardians shall receive a general notice at least once before career counseling and 

course selection so that they may participate in the counseling sessions and decisions.  (Education Code 221.5) 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

The educational counseling program shall include academic counseling in the following areas:  (Education Code 

49600) 

 

1. Development and implementation, with parent/guardian involvement, of the student's immediate and 

long-range educational plans 

 

2. Optimizing progress towards achievement of proficiency standards 

 

3. Completion of the required curriculum in accordance with the student's needs, abilities, interests, and 

aptitudes 

 

4. Academic planning for access and success in higher education programs, including advisement on courses 

needed for admission to public colleges and universities, standardized admissions tests, and financial aid 

99 of 461



 BP 6164.2(c) 

 

 

GUIDANCE/COUNSELING SERVICES  (continued) 

 

 

5. Career and vocational counseling, in which students are assisted in doing all of the following: 

 

a. Planning for the future, including, but not limited to, identifying personal interests, skills, and 

abilities, career planning, course selection, and career transition 

 

b. Becoming aware of personal preferences and interests that influence educational and occupational 

exploration, career choice, and career success 

 

c. Developing realistic perceptions of work, the changing work environment, and the effect of work 

on lifestyle 

 

d. Understanding the relationship between academic achievement and career success, and the 

importance of maximizing career options 

 

e. Understanding the value of participating in career technical education and work-based learning 

activities and programs, including, but not limited to, service learning, regional occupational 

centers and programs, partnership programs, job shadowing, and mentoring experiences 

 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 

(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

 

f. Understanding the need to develop essential employable skills and work habits 

 

g. Understanding the variety of four-year colleges and universities and community college vocational 

and technical preparation programs, as well as admission criteria and enrollment procedures 

 

The district's educational counseling program also may include, but not be limited to, identification of students 

who are at risk of not graduating with the rest of their class, development of a list of coursework and experience 

necessary to assist students to satisfy the curricular requirements for college admission and successfully transition 

to postsecondary education or employment, and counseling regarding available options for a student to continue 

his/her education if he/she fails to meet graduation requirements.  

 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a program of guidance, placement, and follow-up for 

all high school students subject to compulsory continuation education.  (Education Code 48431) 

 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

  

 

100 of 461



 BP 6164.2(d) 

 

 

GUIDANCE/COUNSELING SERVICES  (continued) 

 

No counselor shall unlawfully discriminate against any student. Guidance counseling regarding school programs 

and career, vocational, or higher education opportunities shall not be differentiated on the basis of any protected 

category specified in BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities. 
 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

 

In addition, counselors shall affirmatively explore with students the possibility of careers, or courses leading to 

careers, that are nontraditional for that student's sex. (Education Code 221.5) 

 

For assessing or counseling students, the district shall not use testing or other materials that permit or require 

impermissible or unlawful differential treatment of students.  (5 CCR 4931) 

 

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall have the same access to students for 

recruiting purposes.  (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503; 20 USC 7908) 

 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
 

Personal or Mental Health Counseling 

 

A school counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may provide individualized personal, mental 

health, or family counseling to students in accordance with the specialization(s) authorized by his/her credential. 

Such services may include, but are not limited to, support related to the student's social and emotional 

development, behavior, substance abuse, mental health assessment, depression, or mental illness. As appropriate, 

students and their parents/guardians shall be informed about community agencies, organizations, or health care 

providers that offer qualified professional assistance. 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

101 of 461



 

 BP 6164.2(e) 

 

 

GUIDANCE/COUNSELING SERVICES  (continued) 

 

 

Written parent/guardian consent shall be obtained before mental health counseling or treatment services are 

provided to a student, except when the student is authorized to consent to the service pursuant to Family Code 

6920-6929, Health and Safety Code 124260, or other applicable law. 

 

Any information of a personal nature disclosed to a school counselor by a student age 12 years or older or by 

his/her parent/guardian is confidential and shall not become part of the student record without the written consent 

of the person who disclosed the confidential information. The information shall not be revealed, released, 

discussed, or referred to except under the limited circumstances specified in Education Code 49602.  (Education 

Code 49602) 
 

(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 

A counselor shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and, as appropriate, with the district's legal counsel 

whenever unsure of how to respond to a student's personal problem or when questions arise regarding the possible 

release of confidential information regarding a student. 

 

Crisis Counseling 

 

The Board recognizes the need for a prompt and effective response when students are confronted with a traumatic 

incident.  School counselors shall assist in the development of the comprehensive school safety plan, emergency 

and disaster preparedness plan, and other prevention and intervention practices designed to assist students and 

parents/guardians before, during, and after a crisis. 
 

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 

 

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall identify crisis counseling resources to train district staff in 

effective threat assessment, appropriate response techniques, and/or methods to directly help students cope with 

a crisis if it occurs. 

 

Early identification and intervention plans shall be developed to help identify those students who may be at risk 

for violence so that support may be provided before they engage in violent or disruptive behavior. 

 
(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 

(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 

 

 

 

102 of 461



 

 BP 6164.2(f) 

 

 

GUIDANCE/COUNSELING SERVICES  (continued) 

 

 

Teacher-Based Advisory Program 

 

The Board recognizes that a supportive, ongoing relationship with a caring adult can provide a student with 

valuable advice, enhance student-teacher relationships, and build the student's feelings of connectedness with the 

school. The Board authorizes the development of a teacher-based advisory program in which teachers advise 

students in such areas as academic planning, character development, conflict resolution, and self-esteem. Any 

teacher participating in this program shall be under the supervision of a credentialed school counselor as 

appropriate, receive related information and training, and be subject to this Board policy and law, including 

requirements pertaining to student confidentiality and nondiscrimination. 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

221.5  Prohibited sex discrimination 

44266  Pupil personnel services credential 

48431  Establishing and maintaining high school guidance and placement  program 

49600-49604  Educational counseling 

51250-51251  School age military dependents 

51513  Personal beliefs 

FAMILY CODE 

6920-6929  Consent by minor for treatment or counseling 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

124260  Mental health services; consent by minors age 12 and older 

PENAL CODE 

11166-11170  Reporting known or suspected cases of child abuse 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

5850-5883  Mental Health Services Act 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4930-4931  Counseling 

80049-80049.1  Pupil personnel services credential 

80632-80632.5  Preparation programs for pupil personnel services 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 10 

503  Military recruiter access to directory information 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

7908  Armed forces recruiter access to students and student recruiting information 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67  Family educational rights and privacy 

 
Management Resources next page 

  

 

103 of 461



 

 BP 6164.2(g) 

 

 

GUIDANCE/COUNSELING SERVICES  (continued) 

 

 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

California Results-Based School Counseling and Student Support Guidelines, 2007 

WEB SITES 

American School Counselor Association: http://www.schoolcounselor.org 

California Association of School Counselors:  http://www.schoolcounselor-ca.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, access to military recruiters: http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/hottopics/ht10-09-

02.html 

 

 

Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

adopted:   December 2013   

revised:   March 12, 2014 

revised: June 15, 2016 

 

104 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools 

Board Policy 

Guidance/Counseling Services 
 

BP 6164.2  

Instruction 
 

 

The Governing Board recognizes that a comprehensive counseling program promotes academic 

achievement and serves the diverse needs of all district students.  Counseling staff shall be 

available to meet with students regarding their educational progress toward academic and/or 

career goals and, as appropriate, may discuss social, personal, or other issues that may impact 

student learning. 

 

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all persons employed to provide school 

counseling, school psychology, and/or school social work services shall possess the appropriate 

credential from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing authorizing their employment in such 

positions.  Responsibilities of each position shall be clearly defined in a job description. 

 

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 

 

Academic and Career Counseling 

 

The district's academic counseling program shall be designed to assist students to establish 

immediate and long-range educational plans, achieve academic standards, prepare for the high 

school exit examination, and complete the required curriculum in accordance with their 

individual needs, abilities, and interests.  Insofar as possible, parents/guardians shall be included 

when making educational plans. 

 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

 

Beginning in grade 7, parents/guardians shall receive a general notice at least once before career 

counseling and course selection so that they may participate in the counseling sessions and 

decisions.  (Education Code 221.5) 

 

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

The counseling program for high school students may include, at appropriate grade levels: 

 

1. Information about courses needed for admission to colleges and universities, standardized 

admission tests, financial aid, and scholarships 

105 of 461



 

(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

(cf. 6146.1- High School Graduation Requirements) 

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 

(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency) 

 

2. An opportunity for each student and, if practicable, his/her parent/guardian to meet with a 

counselor to discuss the student's career goals, available educational and career technical 

education options, and community and workplace experiences to support the student's goals 

 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 

(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

 

3. Monitoring of each student's fulfillment of required coursework and progress toward 

promotion and graduation, and notification of the student and his/her parent/guardian of 

remaining academic requirements 

 

(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 

(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 

 

4. Additional specialized counseling services for students identified as at risk of not 

graduating with their class 

 

(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 

(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a program of guidance, placement, 

and follow-up for all high school students subject to compulsory continuation education.  

(Education Code 48431) 

 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

 

No counselor shall unlawfully discriminate against any student.  Guidance counseling regarding 

school programs and career, vocational, or higher education opportunities shall not be 

differentiated on the basis of any protected category specified in BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in 

District Programs and Activities. 

 

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

 

In addition, counselors shall affirmatively explore with students the possibility of careers, or 

courses leading to careers, that are nontraditional for that student's sex. (Education Code 221.5) 

 

106 of 461



For assessing or counseling students, the district shall not use testing or other materials that 

permit or require impermissible or unlawful differential treatment of students.  (5 CCR 4931) 

 

Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall have the same access to 

students for recruiting purposes unless parents have directed us otherwise.  (Education Code 

49603; 10 USC 503; 20 USC 7908) 

 

 (cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 

 

Personal or Mental Health Counseling 

 

A school counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may provide individualized 

personal, mental health, or family counseling to students in accordance with the specialization(s) 

authorized by his/her credential. Such services may include, but are not limited to, support 

related to the student's social and emotional development, behavior, substance abuse, mental 

health assessment, depression, or mental illness. As appropriate, students and their 

parents/guardians shall be informed about community agencies, organizations, or health care 

providers that offer qualified professional assistance. 

 

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

 

Written parent/guardian consent shall be obtained before mental health counseling or treatment 

services are provided to a student, except when the student is authorized to consent to the service 

pursuant to Family Code 6920-6929, Health and Safety Code 124260, or other applicable law. 

 

Any information of a personal nature disclosed to a school counselor by a student age 12 years or 

older or by his/her parent/guardian is confidential and shall not become part of the student record 

without the written consent of the person who disclosed the confidential information. The 

information shall not be revealed, released, discussed, or referred to except under the limited 

circumstances specified in Education Code 49602.  (Education Code 49602) 

 

(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

107 of 461



 

A counselor shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and, as appropriate, with the 

district's legal counsel whenever unsure of how to respond to a student's personal problem or 

when questions arise regarding the possible release of confidential information regarding a 

student. 

 

Crisis Counseling 

 

The Board recognizes the need for a prompt and effective response when students are confronted 

with a traumatic incident.  School counselors shall assist in the development of the 

comprehensive school safety plan, emergency and disaster preparedness plan, and other 

prevention and intervention practices designed to assist students and parents/guardians before, 

during, and after a crisis. 

 

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 

 

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall identify crisis counseling resources to train 

district staff in effective threat assessment, appropriate response techniques, and/or methods to 

directly help students cope with a crisis if it occurs. 

 

Early identification and intervention plans shall be developed to help identify those students who 

may be at risk for violence so that support may be provided before they engage in violent or 

disruptive behavior. 

 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 

(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 

 

Teacher-Based Advisory Program 

 

The Board recognizes that a supportive, ongoing relationship with a caring adult can provide a 

student with valuable advice, enhance student-teacher relationships, and build the student's 

feelings of connectedness with the school. The Board authorizes the development of a teacher-

based advisory program in which teachers advise students in such areas as academic planning, 

character development, conflict resolution, and self-esteem. Any teacher participating in this 

program shall be under the supervision of a credentialed school counselor as appropriate, receive 

related information and training, and be subject to this Board policy and law, including 

requirements pertaining to student confidentiality and nondiscrimination. 

 

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

 

 

 

Legal Reference: 

108 of 461



EDUCATION CODE 

221.5  Prohibited sex discrimination 

44266  Pupil personnel services credential 

48431  Establishing and maintaining high school guidance and placement  program 

49600-49604  Educational counseling 

51250-51251  School age military dependents 

51513  Personal beliefs 

52378-52380  Supplemental School Counseling Program 

FAMILY CODE 

6920-6929  Consent by minor for treatment or counseling 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

124260  Mental health services; consent by minors age 12 and older 

PENAL CODE 

11166-11170  Reporting known or suspected cases of child abuse 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

5850-5883  Mental Health Services Act 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4930-4931  Counseling 

80049-80049.1  Pupil personnel services credential 

80632-80632.5  Preparation programs for pupil personnel services 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 10 

503  Military recruiter access to directory information 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

7908  Armed forces recruiter access to students and student recruiting information 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67  Family educational rights and privacy 

 

Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

California Results-Based School Counseling and Student Support Guidelines, 2007 

WEB SITES 

American School Counselor Association: http://www.schoolcounselor.org 

California Association of School Counselors:  http://www.schoolcounselor-ca.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, access to military recruiters: 

http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/hottopics/ht10-09-02.html 

 

 

 

Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

adopted:  December 2013  Soquel, California 

revised:  March 12, 2014 

109 of 461



MINOR REVISIONS 

March 2016 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
BP 3270 - Sale and Disposal of Books, Equipment and Supplies 

Revise 4th paragraph of BP to more directly reflect law, as follows: 
 

If the Board members who are in attendance at a meeting unanimously find that the value 

of the property is insufficient to defray the costs of arranging a sale, the property may be 

donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the Board or may be disposed 

of by dumping in the local public dump.  (Education Code 17546) 

 

110 of 461



 
   AGENDA ITEM 8.1.9. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 48-15-16 Ordering Election, Requesting County 

Elections to Conduct Election, Requesting Consolidation of the 
Election, and Specifications of the Election Order  

 
MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 48-15-16 as submitted to meet the requirements for the Board of Trustee 
election on November 8, 2016. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This Resolution defines the specification of the election order listing the number of seats being 
vacated, area represented, length of term, responsibility of cost for the Candidate’s Statement 
of Qualification and the length of the statement.  It also requests that the County Elections 
Board conduct the election and consolidate it with the General Election on November 8, 2016.  
 

 
 
 

111 of 461



112 of 461



113 of 461



114 of 461



115 of 461



116 of 461



                          
                       AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.10 
C:\Users\bssec\Documents\RESOLUTN\Res to Accept Summer Bids cover.doc 

 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Resolution # 49-15-16 Authorizing the Superintendent, the 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services & the Director of Finance to 
Accept Construction Bids 

 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:   Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #49-15-16 authorizing the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent, 
Business Services, and the Director of Finance to accept construction bids. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Governing Board normally accepts and awards construction bids.  However, the last Board 
meeting in 2015-16 is on 6/22/16, and the first regular Board meeting in 2016-17 is scheduled 
for 8/17/16.  The Board received a Facilities update on the summer projects on March 23, 2016.  
 
As a prudent measure, should unforeseen conditions or an emergency arise, which may cause 
delay of projects or jeopardize the start of school, the Board is asked to approve a resolution 
authorizing the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent of Business Services and the 
Director of Finance to have the ability to award bids from  6/23/16 through 8/16/16. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

117 of 461



 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 49-15-16 

 
Authorizing the Superintendent, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services and 

Director of Finance to Accept Construction Bids 
 

WHEREAS, effective administration of a school district is dependent upon 
assignment of functional responsibilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School District is 
authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board has no regularly scheduled Board meetings 
scheduled between June 23, 2016 and August 16, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to applicable law, the District intends to continue to accept 

bids and/or proposals for the District to enter into such Contracts (“Bids and/or 
Proposals”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to keep tranactions moving as rapidly as possible, the Board 
intends to authorize the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, and the Director of Finance of Santa Cruz City Schools to accept Bids and/or 
Proposals and to accept and award Contracts between June 23, 2016 and August 16, 
2016, subject to ratification by motion of the Board at a subsequent Board meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 35160 states in part that a school district’s 
governing board “may initiate and carry on any program, activity, or may otherwise act in 
any manner which is not in conflict with or inconsistent with, or preempted by, any law 
and which is not in conflict with the purposes for which school districts are established;” 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 35160.1 states in part that school districts 
“have diverse needs unique to their individual communities and programs…. [and] should 
have the flexibility to create their own unique solutions;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 35160.1 further states in part that school 
districts have “authority to carry on activities and programs, including the expenditure of 
funds for programs and activities which, in the determination of the governing board of 
the school district … are necessary or desirable in meeting their needs and are not 
inconsistent with the purposes for which the funds were appropriated;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 35161 states that “the governing board of  
any school district may execute any powers delegated by law to it or to the district of 
which it is the governing board, and shall discharge any duty imposed by law upon it or 
upon the district of which it is the government board, and may delegate to an officer or 
employee of the district any of those powers or duties.  The governing board, however, 
retains ultimate responsibility over the performance of those powers or duties so 
delegated;” and 

118 of 461



 

 
 WHEREAS, Education Code section 17604 authorizes a school district’s 
governing board, by a majority vote, to delegate to a school district’s superintendent, or to 
such persons as the superintendent may designate, authority to enter into contracts 
subject to the provision that “… no contract made pursuant to the delegation and 
authorization shall be valid or constitute an enforceable obligation against the district 
unless and until the same shall have been approved or ratified by the governing board, 
the approval or ratification to be evidenced by a motion of the board duly passed and 
adopted;” and 
 

WHEREAS, Education Code section 17605 authorizes a school district’s 
governing board, by majority vote, to adopt a rule to delegate to any officer or employee 
of the District as designated, “the authority to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, 
equipment and services.  No rule shall authorize any officer or employee to make any 
purchases involving an expenditure by the district in excess of the amount specified by 
Section 20111 of the Public Contract Code.  The rule shall prescribe the limits of the 
delegation as to time, money, and subject matter.  All transactions entered into by the 
officer or employee shall be reviewed by the governing board every 60 days;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to keep transactions on schedule, the District needs to accept 
Bids and/or Proposals and to accept and award Contracts promptly, subject to ratification 
by the Board at a subsequent Board meeting; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School District 
hereby finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 
 
Section 1. That the above recitals are true and correct.  
 
Section 2. That, for the period of June 23, 2016 through August 16, 2016, the 
Governing Board hereby delegates authority to the Superintendent, the Assistant 
Superintendent, Business Services, and the Director of Finance to accept Bids and/or 
Proposals and to accept and award Contracts, limited to the subject matters and 
monetary limits set forth in Public Contract Code section 20111 et seq., and subject to 
ratification by motion of the Board at a subsequent Board meeting. 
 
Section 3. That Contracts approved by the Superintendent, the Assistanct 
Superintendent, Business Services, and the Director of Finance pursuant to this 
delegation of authority, shall be submitted to the Board for ratification. 
 
Section 4. That the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, 
and the Director of Finance are authorized pursuant to this Resolution to take any action 
and execute any documents that are necessary to carry out, give effect to, and comply 
with the terms and intent of this Resolution. 
 

119 of 461



 

APPROVED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City 
School District on this 15th day of June, 2016, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 

 ABSENT OR NOT VOTING:  
             
       ________________________________ 

President of the Governing Board  
of Santa Cruz City Schools 

 
           
Attested to: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 
of Santa Cruz City Schools 
 

 
        

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item:  _____ 
 

              

 

120 of 461



121 of 461



12
2 

of
 4

61



12
3 

of
 4

61



  AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.12 
SchoolWorks, DecisionInsite, Hamill, Easter Seals, Bay Sch, BALANCE, ABRITE 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contracts and Consultant Services Agreement 
 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:   Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify contracts and consultant services agreements executed pursuant to Board Policy 3300. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On February 23, 2011, the Board of Education delegated authority to enter into contracts on 
behalf of Santa Cruz City Schools and to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment 
and services up to the amounts specified in Public Contract Code 20111 and Education Code 
Section 17605 to the Superintendent of Schools or designees, and required that the Board of 
Trustees ratify contracts within sixty (60) days of incurring the expense. 
 
The following contract is presented for ratification: 

1. Agreements – Business Services 
1. SchoolWorks, Inc. – assistance with State eligibility applications for 

potential State construction and modernization funds. 
2. DecisionInsite – Enrollment projection services, Option B for three years. 

2. Consultant Services Agreement – Human Resources 
1. Scott Hamill – Athletic Trainer Services at Soquel High for 2016-17. 

3. Non Public Agency Contracts – Educational Services/Special Education 
1. Easter Seals – 1:1 Special Circumstance Instructional Aide, Behavior 

Intervention – Implementation Aide, Behavior Inclusion – Design, Health 
Technician Aide, Home & Hospital Teacher, Nurse, Occupational Therapy, 
Special Ed Consultant, Speech Therapy and Sign Language Interpreter 
Support Services for 34 Special Ed students, as mandated in IEPs for 
2016-17. 

2. The Bay School – Basic Educational Programs and Specialized Support 
Services for four Special Ed students, as mandated in IEPs for 2016-17. 

3. BALANCE4KIDS – 1:1 Special Circumstance Instructional Aide, Behavior 
Intervention – Implementation Aide, Behavior Intervention – Design, 
Health Care Aide, Nurse and Sign Language Interpreter Support Services 
for 30 Special Ed students, as mandated in IEPs for 2016-17. 

4. The ABRITE Organization – 1:1 Aide, Behavior Intervention/Supervision, 
Consultation, Training and Assessment services for eight Special Ed 
students as mandated in IEPs or through the process of mediation, for 
2016-17. 

124 of 461



 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.12.1.1 
SchoolWorks Cover 
 
 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Contract Approval SchoolWorks, Inc. 
 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:   Jim Monreal. Assistant Superintendent 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve contract with SchoolWorks, Inc. for assistance with State eligibility applications for 
potential State construction and modernization funds. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
If the State bond measure passes, there will be $3 billion for K-12 new construction and $3 
billion available for modernization for eligible school districts. To be eligible, a district must be 
able to match State funds with district funds, and the district must have its eligibility 
applications approved by Office of Public School Construction.  Santa Cruz City Schools is 
authorized to enter into this agreement by Government Code 53060. 
 
SchoolWorks, Inc.  has a proven track record of acquiring maximum eligible funds from the 
Office of Public School Construction. They also are experts at determining the best application 
submittal strategies and options for maximizing School Facilities Program Eligibility and State 
Funding within the State School Building Program.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The cost to establish New and Modernization Eligibility is projected to be $7,500.00, including a 
base annual fee of $3,000.00 and $4,500.00 to establish New Construction Eligibility (SAB 50-
01, -02 & -03 Forms). Future project specific work will be determined at costs per the fee 
schedule. 
 

These services will be funded by District Capital Facility Funds. 
 

125 of 461



12
6 

of
 4

61



12
7 

of
 4

61



12
8 

of
 4

61



12
9 

of
 4

61



13
0 

of
 4

61



131 of 461



132 of 461



133 of 461



134 of 461



135 of 461



136 of 461



137 of 461



138 of 461



139 of 461



140 of 461



141 of 461



142 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract - Nonpublic Agency 

 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 

 
FROM: Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 

 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 

2016-2017 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that  protect 

the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  Copies of the contracts 

have been  provided under separate cover  for Board review. 

 

 
BACKGROUND: 

Authorized request for: 1:1Special Circumstance Instructional Aide, Behavior Intervention - 

Implementation Aide {Bii), Behavior Inclusion - Design (BID), Health Technician/Aide I& II, 

Home & Hospital Teacher, Nurse - LVN/RN, Occupational Therapy, Special Education 

Consultant, Speech Therapy and Sign Language Interpreter Support Services for 34 students in 

Special Education who require these services. They are provided through Easter Seals Central 

California and are mandated in each student's IEP or through the process of mediation.  

(Contract amount:  $750,500.00)  July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $750,500.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by Stacy O'Farrell,Director of Special Education 

143 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

 
AG EN DA ITEM: Special Education Contract - Nonpublic School 

 
MEETI NG DATE: June 15, 2016 

 
FROM: Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 

 
THROUG H: Kris Munro, Superintendent 

 

 
RECOM MENDATION: 

Approve the attached Nonpublic School contract for new and continuing services through the 

2016-2017 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that  protect 

the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted   Copies of the contract have 

been provided under separate cover for Board review. 

 

 
BACKG ROU ND: 

Authorized request for: Basic Educational Programs and Specialized Support Services for 4 

students in Special Education who require these services. They are provided through The Bay 

School and are mandated in each student's IEP. (Contract amount: $450,270.00) July 1, 2016 

through June 30, 2017. 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $450,270.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by Stacy O'Farrell,Director of Special Education 

144 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract - Nonpublic Agency 

MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 

FROM: Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 

 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 

2016-2017 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that  protect 

the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted   Copies of the contracts 

have been provided under separate cover for Board review. 

 

 
BACKGROUND: 

Authorized  request for:  1:1Special Circumstance Instructional Aide, Behavior Intervention - 

Implementation Aide (Bil & ABA Trained Bil), Behavior Intervention - Design (BID), Health 

Care Aide {I & II), Nurse - LVN/RN and Sign Language Interpreter Support Services for 30 

students in Special Education who require these services. They are provided through 

BALANCE4KIDS and are mandated in each student's IEP or through the process of mediation. 

(Contract amount:  $700,500.00)  July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $700,500.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by Stacy O'Farrell,Director of Special Education 

145 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract - Nonpublic Agency 

 

MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 

 
FROM: Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 

 

THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 

2016-2017 summer and regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect 

the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted   Copies of the contract have 

been provided under separate cover  for Board review. 

 

 
BACKGROUND: 

Authorized request for: One-To-One Aide, Behavior Intervention/Supervision, Consultation, 

Training and Assessment Services for 8 students in Special Education who require these 

services. They are provided through The ABRITE Organization and are mandated in each 

student's IEP or through the process of mediation. {Contract amount: $409,267.00) July 1, 

2016 through June 30, 2017. 

 
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: $409,267.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by Stacy O'Farrell, Director of Special Education 

146 of 461



SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Disposition of Surplus Property 
 

MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 

FROM: Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 

THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in 
accordance with Board Policy 3270 and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, or if 
it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not suitable for 
school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal property 
authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of the district 
or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may delegate to the 
district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to transfer the personal 
property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the auction and after payment has 
been received by the district. 

 

Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of property having 
previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid was 
received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board. (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those 
members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging a 
sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, 
or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board. 

 

Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing board 
has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DOCUMENTS\AGENDA\SURPLUS\SURPLUS COVER.DOC 

AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.13. 147 of 461



SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

MEETING OF JUNE 15, 2016 
 

SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 

Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  

                 
SITE: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 

 
1. HP psc 1210 all-in-one printer N/A  2003 Non-functional $0 
2. HP Laser Jet P1006 N/A  2007 Non-functional, not worth 

repair 
$0 

3. HP LaserJet 4250dtn + 3rd tray 14176   2007 Non-functional $0 
4. Dell Optiplex GX520 computer 13580  2005 Obsolete $0 
5. Toshiba CD-RW drive (separate) N/A  2006 Not needed $0 
6. ESP Surge Suppressor (D5133NT) N/A  N/A Not needed $0 
7. HP Compaq Computer dc 5700 14973  2007 Non-functional, not worth 

repair 
$0 

8. HP Compaq computer dc7700C 14816  2012 Non-functional $0 
9. Dell Computer Dimension 2400 13141  2000 Non-functional $0 
10. HP Keyboard (non-ergo) (KB-0316) N/A  2006 Old, worn $0 
11. Dell Keyboard (non-ergo)(RT7D00) N/A   2006 Old, worn $0 
12. Dell Keyboard (non-ergo)(SK-8110) N/A  2006 Old, worn $0 
13 HP Keyboard (non-ergo) (KB-0316) N/A  2006 Old, worn $0 
14. HP Keyboard (SK-2880) N/A  2006 Old, worn $0 
15. HP Keyboard (KB-0316) N/A  2006 Old, worn $0 
16. HP Keyboard (SK-2880) N/A  2006 Old, worn $0 
17. Brother Fax (IntelliFAX 2920) N/A  2007 Old, worn $0 
18. HP LaserJet 3030 N/A  2005 Non-functional $0 
19. (24) Dell CD-RW Drive N/A  Unknown Obsolete $0 
20. Misc HP computer parts N/A  Unknown Non-functional $0 
21. HP 700/96 Monitor N/A  1990 Obsolete $0 
22. Vodavi 8 button desk phone N/A  2005 Non-functional $0 
23. Dell Latitude Laptop PP11L 13526  2004 Non-functional $0 
24. Dell Latitude Laptop PP11L 13579  2004 Non-functional $0 
25. Dell Latitude Laptop PP11L 13337  2004 Non-functional $0 
26. Dell Latitude Laptop PP11L 13480  2004 Non-functional $0 
27. HP Laptop 6730b 15644  2008 Non-functional $0 
28. Dell Latitude Laptop PP18L 13939  2004 Non-functional $0 
29. Dell Latitude Laptop PP18L 14870  2006 Non-functional $0 
30. HP Laptop 6710b 15065  2005 Non-functional $0 
31. Acer TravelMate 4220 14077  2005 Non-functional $0 
     Total $0 

  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       

148 of 461



  

  

                        

                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  Ad Hoc Facilities Committee Report 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Ad Hoc Facilities Committee was formed in March, 2016 to examine data and collect input 
and ideas from the school community on district wide facilities issues.  The committee was 
charged with developing recommendations to present to the Board of Education to inform the 
Long Range Facilities Master Plan. 
 
Committee members will present a report to the Trustees detailing process, planning 
structures, timeline, data and other input. 

149 of 461



150 of 461



151 of 461



152 of 461



153 of 461



154 of 461



155 of 461



156 of 461



157 of 461



158 of 461



159 of 461



160 of 461



161 of 461



162 of 461



163 of 461



164 of 461



165 of 461



166 of 461



167 of 461



 AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.2 
 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DOCUMENTS\AGENDA\PTOC ANNUAL REPORT COVER.DOC 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Annual Report 
 
MEETING DATE: June 16, 2016 
 
FROM:   Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the annual Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Report. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Members of the Parcel Tax Oversight Committee (PTOC) will present its annual report to the 
Board of Trustees on June 15, 2016. 
 

168 of 461



Measures I, J and P Annual Report – 2015-2016 

 

From: The Parcel Tax Oversight Committee (“PTOC”)   

To:    Santa Cruz City School District Board of Trustees (the “Board”) and the Citizens of Santa Cruz  

The PTOC and The Santa Cruz City School District wish to thank the Santa Cruz voters, who have 
provided incredible support to our schools. Because of the community’s generosity, Santa Cruz City 
School students will continue to receive enriched educational programs. 

Background: 

 The Parcel Tax Measures J, I and P will continue to support: 

Measure I 

School libraries:  Credentialed librarians and other resources to support the development of 
independent research skills and the study of literature by all students. 

Services: Credentialed counselors and other resources to support academic and career 
counseling for all students as well as counseling for at-risk youth. 

Measure J 

a. Retaining high quality teachers in our elementary schools; 
b. Retaining art and music teachers in our elementary schools; 
c. Keeping schools libraries open and served by credentialed librarians, library assistants and 

teachers; and 
d. Providing academic counseling and continuing to improve classroom academics. 

Measure P 

a. Providing the local funding for class size reduction (K-3), which is then matched more than 
six-fold by the State, and preventing a 60% increase in class size in Kindergarten, First, 
Second and Third Grades; 

b. Providing local funding for class size reductions in grades 4-5, so that classes contain a 
maximum of 27 students per class on average, rather than 32; 

c. Funding elementary school science instruction; 
d. Providing early literacy instruction programs for elementary students and funding pre-

kindergarten programs; 
e. Retaining credentialed librarians, library assistants, teachers and other employees; and 
f. Providing arts education teachers and supplies, including music, performing and visual arts. 

  

169 of 461



Membership: 

Allison Endert        - Gault  
Laura   Jones          - Delaveaga  
Glen Schaller          - Appointed by Claudia Vestal  
Greg Brown            - VAPA  
Helayne Ballaban   - GSCFT  
Jane Forbes      - Life Lab 
Janet Gellman      - Santa Cruz High School  
Janet Swann      - Appointed by Deb Tracy-Proulx  
Jodi Mulder             - Appointed by Alison Thompson  
Jolene Kemos          - Branciforte Small Schools  
Barbara Lawrence  - Librarians  
Karan Violante        - SCCCE  
Lacie Gray                - BayView  
Michelle Morton    - Appointed by Deedee Perez-Granados  
Monika Adam         - Appointed by Jeremy Shonick  
Monique Kremer    - Appointed by Sheila Coonerty  
Natasha Flechsig    - Branciforte Middle School 
Shannon Greene    - Harbor High  
     Vacant                 - Counselors 
     Vacant                   -District English Learners Advisory Committee 

Vacant                  - Mission Hill Middle School 
Vacant                  - Soquel High School  

 Vacant         - Westlake Elementary School 

Sue Faix:  Chair       - Appointed by Patty Threet   

Statement:  

Based on the information provided to the PTOC by the District, the PTOC is satisfied that funds received 
for the fiscal year 2015-2016 from Measures I, J and P Parcel Taxes, as approved by voters, were in fact 
budgeted in accordance with the ballot language in said Measures and, if ultimately expended as 
budgeted by the District, those funds will have been spent by the District in accordance with said 
Measures. The PTOC reports that the District is using the Parcel Tax money appropriately. The PTOC 
thanks the Santa Cruz community for its unwavering support of these excellent programs. 

Committee Proceedings: 

The PTOC met: 09/14/2015, 12/14/2015, 3/14/2016, 5/16/2016, and 5/26/2016. 

It has been a busy and productive year. The PTOC members, in coordination with the SCCS District office 
staff, have continued to support changes to PTOC meeting standards, examined Bylaws, the SCCS - PTOC 
website and implementation of the Brown Act protocols. We have worked with the finance office to 
delineate the line-items in the parcel tax summary of services budget. This has given us greater clarity 
on how the monies are distributed. A new training and orientation component is in planning, to begin in 
fall 2016. 

170 of 461



Topics discussed included the funding of counseling secretaries from Parcel Tax monies, the need for 
equitable distribution of Life Lab funds among K-6 students, the need for additional money for Visual 
and Performing Arts (VAPA), the reclassification of an Instructional Assistant position at AFE as a Library 
Assistant, and the number of clerical hours provided to District libraries, in particular those at the high 
school level. 

In January 2016 the PTOC brought to the Board concerns about the inadequate number of clerical hours 
provided to District libraries, in particular those at the high school level.  

The PTOC appreciates that the Board demonstrates its continued commitment to equity by the 
distribution of available funds among Santa Cruz City School’s diverse sites. 

Thank you, again, Santa Cruz! We are ever grateful for your support. 

Respectfully submitted,  

Sue Faix  

PTOC Chair 

 

171 of 461



AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.3 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   Staff Report: Presentation of LCAP 
 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM: Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and annual update provide details 
regarding Local Educational Agencies’ (LEAs’) actions and expenditures to support pupil 
outcomes and overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060, 52066, 
47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5. 
  
Pursuant to Education Code section 52060, the LCAP must describe, for the school 
district and each school within the district, goals and specific actions to achieve those 
goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 
52052 (English Learners, Foster Youth, Low-Income), including pupils with disabilities, 
for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
 
A Public Hearing on the 2016-17 LCAP follows to allow public input prior to being 
submitted for adoption at the June 22nd Board meeting.  After Board adoption, the LCAP 
will be submitted to the County Office of Education for final approval. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

172 of 461



Page 1 of 130

Introduction:

LEA: Santa Cruz City Schools    Contact (Name, Title, Email, Phone Number): Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services, ameeker@sccs.net, (831) 429-
3410    LCAP Year: 2016-17

Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template

During the 2015-16 school year, 6,829 students in kindergarten through 12th grades attended schools in Santa Cruz City Schools District.  Of those, 47 (.6%) were 
Foster Youth (FY), 863 (13%) were English Learners (EL), and 2,833 (41%) were Low Income (LI).  Special Education (SpEd) students (N=881 or 12%) and 
Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students (N=1,044 or 15%) students, while not specified as targeted subgroups for funding purposes, are nevertheless 
important subgroups that are taken into account.  As such, they are included in the “all students” category in the LCAP language.

The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template shall be used to provide details regarding local educational agencies’ (LEAs) 
actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060, 52066, 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5. 
The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, pursuant to Education Code section 52060, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals and 
specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, for 
each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, pursuant to Education Code section 52066, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school and 
program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, including pupils 
with disabilities, who are funded through the county office of education Local Control Funding Formula as identified in Education Code section 2574 (pupils 
attending juvenile court schools, on probation or parole, or mandatorily expelled) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. School 
districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services provided to pupils funded by a school district but 
attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education programs. 

Charter schools, pursuant to Education Code sections 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5, must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils 
and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, for each of the state priorities as applicable and any 
locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels 
served and the nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code.

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool. Accordingly, in developing goals, specific actions, and expenditures, LEAs should carefully consider how 
to reflect the services and related expenses for their basic instructional program in relationship to the state priorities. LEAs may reference and describe actions 
and expenditures in other plans and funded by a variety of other fund sources when detailing goals, actions, and expenditures related to the state and local 
priorities. LCAPs must be consistent with school plans submitted pursuant to Education Code section 64001. The information contained in the LCAP, or annual 

173 of 461



Page 2 of 130
update, may be supplemented by information contained in other plans (including the LEA plan pursuant to Section 1112 of Subpart 1 of Part A of Title I of Public 
Law 107-110) that are incorporated or referenced as relevant in this document.  

For each section of the template, LEAs shall comply with instructions and should use the guiding questions as prompts (but not limits) for completing the 
information as required by statute. Guiding questions do not require separate narrative responses. However, the narrative response and goals and actions should 
demonstrate each guiding question was considered during the development of the plan. Data referenced in the LCAP must be consistent with the school 
accountability report card where appropriate. LEAs may resize pages or attach additional pages as necessary to facilitate completion of the LCAP.

174 of 461



Page 3 of 130

State Priorities

The state priorities listed in Education Code sections 52060 and 52066 can be categorized as specified below for planning purposes, however, school districts and county offices of 
education must address each of the state priorities in their LCAP. Charter schools must address the priorities in Education Code section 52060(d) that apply to the grade levels 
served, or the nature of the program operated, by the charter school.

A. Conditions of Learning: 

Basic: degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned pursuant to Education Code section 44258.9, and fully credentialed in the subject areas and for the pupils they are 
teaching; pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials pursuant to Education Code section 60119; and school facilities are maintained in good repair pursuant 
to Education Code section 17002(d). (Priority 1)

Implementation of State Standards: implementation of academic content and performance standards and English language development standards adopted by the state board 
for all pupils, including English learners. (Priority 2)

Course access: pupil enrollment in a broad course of study that includes all of the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 and subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of 
Section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 7)

Expelled pupils (for county offices of education only): coordination of instruction of expelled pupils pursuant to Education Code section 48926.  (Priority 9)

Foster youth (for county offices of education only): coordination of services, including working with the county child welfare agency to share information, responding to the 
needs of the juvenile court system, and ensuring transfer of health and education records.  (Priority 10)

B. Pupil Outcomes: 

Pupil achievement: performance on standardized tests, score on Academic Performance Index, share of pupils that are college and career ready, share of English learners that 
become English proficient, English learner reclassification rate, share of pupils that pass Advanced Placement exams with 3 or higher, share of pupils determined prepared for 
college by the Early Assessment Program. (Priority 4)

Other pupil outcomes: pupil outcomes in the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 and subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of Education Code section 51220, as 
applicable. (Priority 8)   

C. Engagement: 

Parental involvement: efforts to seek parent input in decision making at the district and each schoolsite, promotion of parent participation in programs for unduplicated pupils 
and special need subgroups.  (Priority 3)

Pupil engagement: school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, high school graduations rates. (Priority 5)

School climate: pupil suspension rates, pupil expulsion rates, other local measures including surveys of pupils, parents and teachers on the sense of safety and school 
connectedness. (Priority 6)

175 of 461



Page 4 of 130
Section 1:  Stakeholder Engagement

Meaningful engagement of parents, pupils, and other stakeholders, including those representing the subgroups identified in Education Code section 52052, is 
critical to the LCAP and budget process. Education Code sections 52060(g), 52062 and 52063 specify the minimum requirements for school districts; Education 
Code sections 52066(g), 52068 and 52069 specify the minimum requirements for county offices of education, and Education Code section 47606.5 specifies the 
minimum requirements for charter schools. In addition, Education Code section 48985 specifies the requirements for translation of documents.

Instructions:  Describe the process used to consult with parents, pupils, school personnel, local bargaining units as applicable, and the community and how this 
consultation contributed to development of the LCAP or annual update. Note that the LEA’s goals, actions, services and expenditures related to the state priority 
of parental involvement are to be described separately in Section 2.  In the annual update boxes, describe the stakeholder involvement process for the review, 
and describe its impact on, the development of the annual update to LCAP goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Guiding Questions:

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in Education 
Code section 42238.01; community members; local bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster 
youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community organizations representing English 
learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement in the development of the LCAP?
3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA 

to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was the information made available?
4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of 

the LEA’s engagement processes?
5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, and 

47606.5, including engagement with representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code section 42238.01?
6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for 

pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the state priorities?

Involvement Process Impact on LCAP
This section provides information about the process of involving stakeholders 
in developing recommendations for the 2016-17 LCAP.  The first section 
provides an overview of the process including meetings and surveys.  The 
second section provides observations of meeting attendance and efforts to 
support stronger participation.  The final section lists the types of information 
including qualitative and quantitative that was shared at the stakeholder 
meetings.

This section begins with information about the process of reviewing 
stakeholder input.  This is followed by a summary of the stakeholder input in 
the three core areas of the LCAP; conditions for learning, pupil outcomes and 
parent and student engagement.  The last section makes the connection 
between stakeholder input and the proposed 2016-17 LCAP.

1.  Process of reviewing stakeholder input:
Input from stakeholders was reviewed with the District Advisory Committee, 

176 of 461



Page 5 of 130

Overview of Process
1.  Stakeholders were involved in reviewing, making recommendations and 
sharing questions regarding the development and implementation of the LCAP.  
This involvement was supported through open public meetings, stakeholder 
input meetings and surveys, both online and through the meeting structures.

a. Open public meetings:
Board of Trustees
Budget Advisory
Community Meeting

b. Stakeholder Input meetings with:
Students
Parents
Staff
Unions
District Advisory Committee

c.  Surveys
Electronic and through scheduled meetings

Stakeholders were involved through surveys, meetings and class visits;

a.  Surveys to parents, students and staff                                                                                   
Nov-Jan. 2015-16
b.  Board Meeting to share survey results                                                                                          
Jan. 13, 2016
c.  District English Learner Advisory                                                                                                   
Jan. 21, 2016
d.  Secondary principal meeting                                                                                                         
Jan. 15, 2016
e.  Elementary principal meeting                                                                                                        
Jan. 21, 2016
f.   District Advisory Committee                                                                                                           
Jan 25, 2016
g.  Budget Advisory Committee                                                                                                          
Jan. 26, 2016
g.   Board meeting on data                                                                                                                   

the Budget Advisory Committee, Board of Trustees and leadership team.   Each 
group had an opportunity to read the responses to multiple-choice questions 
as well as the narrative responses to more open-ended prompts.  In addition, 
leadership and the Budget Advisory committees reviewed the 
recommendations from the DAC based on survey results.

The surveys and meetings were designed to elicit feedback on the three state 
priority areas of the LCAP: Conditions for Learning, Pupil Outcomes and 
Parent/Student Engagement.

2. Summary of input from stakeholders

a.  Conditions for Learning: Facilities, credentialing, state standards and course 
access:
Parents, students and staff communicated the importance of;
Maintaining and improving facilities
Supporting teacher training
Maintaining small class sizes
Increasing access to technology
Supporting curriculum
Increasing the number of students in AP classes (high school)

b.  Pupil Outcomes: standardized tests, English Learner Proficiency and 
reclassification, pass rate on AP, and performance on EAP (Early Assessment 
Program), graduation rate, and number of students completing A-G classes.

Parent, student and staff survey responses indicated the need to provide 
academic support outside the day through tutoring and homework clubs as 
well as during the day through specialized classes and support including tutors.  
In addition, all stakeholders recommended academic counseling through the 
school and counseling for college and career.

Students in particular made note of the importance of bilingual support both 
with instruction and materials.  These students shared their concern about 
access through class meetings and surveys.

Students in the AP and AVID classes reflected on the positive impact of a 
curriculum that helped them set goals beyond high school.

177 of 461



Page 6 of 130

Feb. 9, 2016
i.  Newcomer students                                                                                                                          
Feb. 9, 2016
j.   ELD classes                                                                                                                                    
Feb. 9, 2016
k.  Read 180 classes                                                                                                                           
Feb 16, 2016
l. AVID and AP classes                                                                                                                      
Feb. 18, 2016
m. Leadership meeting                                                                                                                      
Feb. 25, 2016
n. District Advisory Committee                                                                                                           
Feb. 29, 2016
o.  Parent Teacher Association Meeting                                                                                            
March 4, 2016
p.  Leadership meeting                                                                                                                    
March 11, 2016
q. Leadership meeting                                                                                                                     
March 18, 2016
r.  District Advisory Committee                                                                                                        
March 28, 2016
s.  Community Meeting                                                                                                                       
April 11, 2016
t.  Secondary principal meeting                                                                                                          
April 22, 2016
u. Budget Advisory Committee                                                                                                          
April 27, 2016
v.  Elementary principal meeting                                                                                                           
May 2, 2016
w. District Advisory Committee                                                                                                             
May 9, 2016
x.  Board meeting                                                                                                                                
May 11, 2016
y.  Budget Advisory Committee                                                                                                          
May 24, 2016
z.  Board meeting – hearing                                                                                                              
June 15, 2016
Board meeting – approval                                                                                                            

c.  Student and Parent Engagement: attendance, graduation rate, suspension 
and expulsion rates, school climate
Parents, students and staff reported that school personnel, activities and 
supports have a positive impact on student engagement.  In addition, parents 
emphasized the importance of social/emotional counseling supports in school 
and strong encouraged the ongoing support for social workers and PIP aides 
along with full time counselors in elementary schools.

In addition to these supports, parents, students and staff recommended an 
increase in activities to connect students with school.  In secondary, there 
were several recommendations to support increased access to activities and 
athletics outside of school.  For high school, there was a recommendation to 
expand inter mural offerings during the day and increased opportunities to 
participate on athletic teams for students who are new to a sport.  High school 
principals also recommended extra hourly for an inter mural sports or activity 
coordinator.

Teachers and tutors figured prominently in the narrative about school 
strengths.  Students in ELD shared that this class along with tutors and caring 
teachers supporting their learning. Another common theme in student 
response was a reflection on how much their teachers cared about their 
success.

Students had several recommendations for revisions to the plan including 
greater support for facilities, athletics and equipment, more access to 
computers, and less homework.

The DAC reviewed all input and made note of how the current LCAP is meeting 
the needs expressed by stakeholders as well as where there are gaps.

The following are resources provided through the LCAP that were addressed in 
surveys;
Support with outcomes
o AVID
o Cyber High
o ELD and Newcomer sections
o Math support – tutors

178 of 461



Page 7 of 130

June 22, 2016 o Teacher coaching and support

Support with engagement
o Technology
o Homework Support
o AVID field trips
o Middle School after school program
o Inter mural sports

There were also gaps between expressed need and the current plan;
Support with outcomes:
o Spanish speaking tutors and translation
o More math support
o HW support during the day
o Professional development for teachers on Common Core State Standards 
and technology integration
o Support with preparations to go to college - navigating financial aid, 
enrollment and scheduling as well as writing essays for the application process 
to college or university

Support with engagement:
o More technology - computers
o More help with math
o More help with homework
o Concern about racism and discrimination
o Clubs
o Enrichment
o Social Emotional support

2. Observations of meeting attendance and survey response:

The District Advisory Committee (DAC) meetings had attendance between 18-
25 participants.  This year, the DAC also had a representative from the Foster 
Youth Collaborative.  The DELAC meeting in January had higher attendance – 
close to 45 participants as we provided a light dinner.

Impact of input on the 2016-17 LCAP

Based on a review of the input the following represents revisions to the plan as 
well as other funding sources that were established to meet the needs as 
expressed by stakeholders.

179 of 461



Page 8 of 130

Attendance at leadership and budget advisory committee meetings was very 
consistent.  The leadership team includes both certificated and classified staff 
and attendance was close to 45 participants at each meeting.

The budget advisory committee includes representatives from parent groups, 
union, leadership, county office and cabinet.  Between 16-25 members 
attended each meeting.

This was the first year we held a PTA/PTC meeting with parent leaders.  
Unfortunately, only 8 parents came to this meeting.  Plans were made to 
promote the meeting earlier in the year for 2016-17.
Meetings with students happened during their school day and often as part of 
a class meeting.  As a result we had a greater student response this year than 
last.

Surveys were designed to elicit feedback on three core areas of the LCAP: 
conditions for learning, pupil outcomes and parent/student engagement.   All 
surveys were distributed in English and Spanish.  In addition, staff at the DELAC 
meeting transcribed individual responses for parents who were not 
comfortable writing a response on their own.

Another change to the process with eliciting student input was through 
combining a class meeting with time to complete the surveys.  As a result we 
increased the number of student surveys from 29 to 119. Two of our high 
schools surveyed their students as part of the WASC review and we might look 
to create an aligned survey that serves both purposes next year.

We saw a similar increase in participation with parent surveys through 
providing alternate means to complete the survey.  In 2014-15, 448 parents 
completed the survey as compared to 786 this year.  Of these, 39 surveys were 
completed at the DELAC meeting and Gault elementary contributed an 
additional 8 surveys after a parent meeting.   We kept the survey window open 
through March after hearing concerns that there were a disproportionate 
number of surveys coming from the West side schools.

An analysis of the survey participation showed that at our two largest 
elementary schools there was gap in parent participation.  14% of DeLaveaga 

Foundations for Learning

1.  Work on facilities through Long Range Master Facility Planning
Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent of Business established two task 
forces to assess our facility needs and prepare to go out for a bond this fall.

2.  Professional development for teachers
The Educator Effectiveness Funding Grant will provide funds for the next two 
years to support teacher training in the CCSS and NGSS, technology integration 
as well as provide coaching support to veteran teachers who may be 
struggling.

In addition, with a math adoption in high school, the new plan includes a .2 
CPM math coach at each school including the alternative high school and 
release time for math coaching and training in elementary and high school.

3.  Course Access
All three high schools are working to increase the number of AP and honors 
courses at their school and reduce barriers to underrepresented students.

Pupil Outcomes
1.  Increase the number of students going on to college

The recommendation to increase the number of students going on to college 
will be addressed through the Santa Cruz County College Commitment (S4C).  
The plan includes field trips, counseling, informational events, and university 
tutors.  S4C currently provides two field trips a year to a college campus in 4th 
and 7th grade.
The Migrant department is establishing a student club that will also take field 
trips to local universities.

The 2016-17 LCAP includes a recommendation to support the Latino Role 
Model conference on the campus of Cabrillo.

S4C will also provide high school counselors with some additional tools to 
better prepare their students to access post college and career opportunities.

The current LCAP provides for bilingual tutors during the day and through 

180 of 461



Page 9 of 130
parents responded as compared to 19% of Westlake parents.  There were 149 
respondents from east side schools (Gault, DeLaveaga and Monarch), as 
compared to 200 responses from west side schools (Westlake and Bay View).

Similarly, the percentage of participation was slightly lower at the east side 
middle school, Branciforte (9%) as compared with Mission Hill (20%).  At the 
high schools, the range was 12% at Harbor, 16% at Soquel and 20% at Santa 
Cruz High.  Survey participation in the alternative schools was below 1% with 
the exception of Monarch (1.68%).

homework club.  Our plan is to continue to work with both UCSC and Cabrillo 
to ensure that our students have access to this support.

2.  Math support
Secondary
Provide a Math Plus section at each high school.  This will be a flexible 
intervention period for students who are struggling with both classwork and 
homework.

We will continue to provide a full time RtI coordinator at each school who 
helps build the systems for monitoring the progress of students and of the 
program.

Each high school will maintain a homework club with tutors after school and 
during the day.  Every effort will be made to recruit and retain bilingual tutors.

Middle School
An after school program at both sites will provide math support for an hour 
four times a week.  Funds from LCFF and Measure O will support a 
coordinator, learning assistants and supplies.  An RtI coordinator will also 
coordinate progress monitoring and services.

Elementary
A full time math coach will coordinate the math training around for the 
adoption of Eureka Math.  In addition, teachers will be provided with ongoing 
training, release time and coaching support through the Educator Effectiveness 
Funding Grant.

Student and Parent Engagement
1.  Technology
The plan is to increase the number of Chrome books and carts at each school 
site.  In addition, the district has applied for and received a grant from the 
state – Career Technology Education Incentive Grant (CTEIG) that will provide 
funding for a computer science pathway beginning in middle school and 
extending through AP Computer Programming in high school.

The Educator Effectiveness Funding Grant will also provide training for 
teachers in technology integration in their curriculum.

181 of 461



Page 10 of 130

2.  Racism
We will continue our work with Dr. Eddie Fergus to create systems for closing 
the achievement gap.  This work will be funded through the Educator 
Effectiveness Funding Grant and consist of meeting to review our data with 
leadership teams.

In the middle and high schools, Enid Lee will provide coaching on anti-racist 
practices through curriculum and instruction.

The leadership team will monitor the impact of this work through pupil 
outcomes and surveys.

3.  Clubs and Activities
Clubs and their activities are supported by the ASB at each high school.  In 
middle school, the plan is to promote youth development through after school 
programs and in elementary, a grant from the state provides these programs 
in two schools.  DeLaveaga plans to use their Title I and LCFF supplemental to 
support an after school homework club, Listos while Westlake’s parent 
community provides several after school learning opportunities.  The level of 
support from the state is dependent upon the number and percentage of 
students living in poverty.  As Westlake has fewer low-income students they 
receive no Title I support and parent groups fundraise to provide these 
opportunities.

4.  Enrichment
The board voted to increase funding for classroom supplies that led to an 
increase in funds available through the parent clubs to support enrichment.  
Prior to this increase, parent clubs were raising funds for each classroom.

5.  Social Emotional Support
Teachers at two of our schools were trained by Trauma Informed Schools.  This 
training has lead to significant shifts in classroom practice and a reduction in 
referrals to the office.

This training has been shared with all schools with the plan of expanding the 
model over the next three years.

182 of 461



Page 11 of 130
For 2016-17, the LCAP will provide a .8 Positive Behavior and Intervention 
Coach for elementary schools.  This position will help school staff develop 
systems for supporting students both in and out of the classroom.

Information shared at meetings:

a. Cost of programs within the eight state priority areas
b. Data regarding the needs in the eight state priority areas
c.  Allocation of resources (staff, materials, and programs) in the eight state 
priority areas
d. Impact of the programs through analysis of student outcomes.

Information was shared with stakeholders in the three state priority areas.

Foundations for learning:
Percentage of certificated and classified staff who meet the criteria for NCLB.
Number of schools who rate “exemplary” on the FIT reports
Percentage of staff who are trained in Common Core State Standards
Percentage of classes that have access to Common Core State Standards’ 
curriculum

Pupil Outcomes
Data in this section was reported through assessment results in the following 
areas;

CAASPP for grades 3-8 English Language Arts and Math
CELDT scores for all English Learners
Reading scores in grades 2-9 through Scholastic Reading Inventory
Writing scores on local benchmarks for middle school
Percentage of students who meet the A-G requirements in high school
Number and percentage of students who pass Algebra with a C or above
Number of students who enroll in and pass AP classes with a grade of C or 
above

Student and Parent Engagement
Data in this section was reported through attendance rates at each grade span, 
the number of expulsions and parents reporting involvement on district and 

183 of 461



Page 12 of 130
schools committees

--------
Annual Update: Annual Update:
This section provides an update on the progress made toward each goal and 
the effectiveness of actions and services provided through the LCAP. This 
update makes a connection between observations of the progress and 
recommendations for revisions to the plan in subsequent years.  The following 
information was shared with stakeholders as part of our Annual Update.

This section will provide information about how stakeholders were involved in 
updating the LCAP.  This is followed by a reflection on the implementation of 
the 2015-16 LCAP and recommendations from the data.

1.  Stakeholders were formally involved in the development of the LCAP 
update on 26 different occasions in order to promote engagement with the 
measurable outcome data, actions and services rendered, and budget 
expenditures.  Stakeholders made various suggestions for changes.  While 
parts of those meetings were dedicated to explaining LCFF and LCAP and the 
LCAP process, most of those meetings were specifically designed to involve the 
stakeholders in the development of the LCAP update.  The stakeholders groups 
(DAC, Leadership, LCAP Monitoring Team, parents, high school and middle 
school students, leadership, DELAC, PAC, Foster Youth representatives, 
principals, Budget Advisory Committee) reviewed measurable outcome data, 
actions, services, and expenditures.  Upon reviewing the data, the 
stakeholders made suggestions for changes in this year's LCAP.

Goal 1:
96.64% of certificated employees in SCCS meet the criteria for NCLB 
compliance.  This data illustrates the effectiveness of our human resource 
department in both recruiting qualified staff and assisting staff who need 
additional training. This year, we faced the challenge of filling 10 math 
positions and 4 special education positions.  Given this challenge, we had a few 
interns who will be completing their credential in the next two years.  Our plan 
for the coming years is to continue to work with teacher credentialing 
programs to recruit the most qualified candidates for certificated positions.  
For our current staff, we will use our Title II funds to support their ongoing 
training and development.  With a national and local teacher shortage in the 
areas of math and special education, our Assistant Superintendent of Human 
Resources has expanded our participation in recruitment fairs through out 
California in to Oregon.

2.   The 2015-16 LCAP supported new positions, training and resources focused 
on outcomes and engagement for English Learners, Low Income students and 
foster youth.  This section will include information about the process and 
impact of these new positions.

a.  Coaching, monitoring and support:
RtI coordinators at secondary
Curriculum coaches
Walk to Read Coordinators
Learning Assistants

We developed a model for RtI at each secondary that focused on math 
(Integrated Science and math at Harbor).  Coordinators gave assessments and 
monitored student progress in math.  Midway through the year, coordinators 

184 of 461



Page 13 of 130
created an intervention plan that allowed students at 4 of the secondary sites 
to receive additional support as part of their school day.  Between 35 and 50 
students at each school were supported through this intervention.  At Harbor, 
the RtI coordinator created benchmark assessments to monitor students 
progress in the new Integrated Science classes for all 9th graders.

Curriculum coaches supported teachers in developing and implementing units 
for CCSS math, NGSS and ELD.  Coaches focused their work on developing 
understanding of the new standards and next year, we look forward to 
implementing coaching cycles at each site.  In elementary, the Walk to Read 
program is in its fourth year with significant gains to reading scores in 3rd 
grade as measured by the SRI.  RtI coordinators in elementary regularly look at 
data and monitor both student progress and the health of the program

In the 2016-17 LCAP, we plan to maintain these positions and develop stronger 
articulation with the school sites around the role of curriculum coaches.

b.  Targeted support for EL, Low Income and Foster Youth
AVID field trips, stipends and training
Read 180 sections
Newcomer sections
School community coordinator
Homework club
After school program
Credit Recovery
Summer School

b.  Increasing student engagement
Social workers
Social work interns
PIP aides
Full time counselors

Goal 2:
99% of classified staff meet the criteria for NCLB compliance. The human 
resources department conducts extensive assessments and review of 
experience and credentials when hiring classified staff.  The plan for coming 
years is to continue to maintain rigorous protocols that support both the hiring 

185 of 461



Page 14 of 130
and retention of highly qualified staff.

Goal 3:
According to our FIT report, 8 of 13 sites rate as "good" and 5 rate as "fair". 
The facilities department has identified needs that we hope to address in the 
next three years.  The district will continue to support any identified needs 
that pose a safety threat and is in the process of engaging with an outside firm 
to conduct an overview of the extensive facility needs due to aging.  In 
addition, the district is creating a long range facilities master plan through a 
facilities task force and with the support of a consultant.  This master plan will 
guide the next steps toward improving facilities.  The district is also in the 
process of going out for a facilities bond in November.

Goal 4:
100% of students had access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all 
subjects.  Our challenge will be to maintain this access as we adopt new 
instructional materials in English Language Arts and math for the coming two 
years as well as materials to support the Next Generation Science Standards.  
For 2016-17, we are purchasing new math texts for elementary and high 
school.  The new Social Studies framework will be adopted this fall and we 
anticipate publishers will have materials available for adoption in the 2017-18 
school year.

Goal 5:
100% of teachers in core subject areas, (English Language Arts, math, science, 
social studies, world language) received professional development in 
implementation of the CCSS within the past two years.  This training focused 
on the instructional shifts and included some opportunities for unit 
development.  There is tremendous need to address ongoing professional 
development for teachers in the next two years due to the adoption of both 
CCSS and NGSS.  To support teacher learning, the LCAP includes expenditures 
for teacher coaches in the following areas; elementary math, middle school 
core, elementary English Language Development, science, secondary English 
Language Development, secondary math, elementary and secondary Response 
to Intervention coordinators and a technology coach.  Stakeholders and school 
staff recommended maintaining these positions based on data that showed 
that our English Learners are not making progress toward proficiency in 
English, (CELDT AMAO).  There is an gap between the performance of English 

186 of 461



Page 15 of 130
Learners, RFEP and low-income students in local assessments for math and 
English as compared to English Only students and those not living in poverty.   
As the gaps in proficiency reflect inequitable outcomes for student subgroups, 
we will continue to work with consultants to support culturally relevant 
pedagogy in the classroom.

Goal 6:
This goal demonstrates our commitment to ensuring all students will meet the 
A-G requirements by 12th grade.
57% of 12th graders met A-G requirements (goal was 60%) up from 53% in 
2014-15
39% of low-income students met those requirements, (goal was 40%) up from 
35% in 2014-15
0% of EL's met the requirement (goal was 5%) from 8% in 2014-15
The graduation rate was 91.9% (goal was 90.3%)
We decreased the dropout rate to 4.2% (goal was 4.5%)
Clearly, we have more work to do.
We have directed funds in support for when students fail - through credit 
recovery - and support for students who are school-dependent.  The current 
plan maintains those expenditures including certificated staff to support the 
Cyber High credit recovery program.  This program enrolls between 160-200 
students a year who have previously failed a course.  The goal is to maintain 
student progress toward graduation through providing an online course while 
students are concurrently enrolled in their high school program.
The data on these courses shows a 97% completion rate.  Given the success of 
this program, we will continue to fund the release time and computer licenses.
To promote a college-going culture and readiness for the A-G, the LCAP 
provides funds for the Advancement Via Individual Determination, (AVID) 
program at each secondary school.  Funds go to support tutors, field trips and 
teacher stipends.

Goal 7:
78% of 9th graders passed Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try (goal 
was 60%) and 28% of 11th grade students were considered on track in English 
Language Arts, 14% in math, to be considered college-ready according to the 
EAP (goal was 29%).
Our current expenditures support additional, targeted learning for these 

187 of 461



Page 16 of 130
subgroups through increased support during the day.  Each high school will 
have a flexible math intervention class where students can receive targeted 
support.  Bilingual math tutors will also provide support both in class and in 
the intervention period.  Student progress will be monitored by teachers with 
support from the Response to Intervention coordinators at middle and high 
school.  Middle school will offer an after school program with access to math 
intervention software and support from learning assistants.

Goal 8:
80% of 6th-8th grade students were reading at grade level as determined by 
the Scholastic Reading Inventory (SRI) (goal was 78) and 73% of elementary 
RFEP students and 75% of secondary RFEP students were reading at grade 
level on the SRI (goal was 58%).  To better support English Learners, RFEP and 
low-income students, we have allocated funds to provide a section of Read 
180 at each middle school and two high schools.  The LCAP provides funds for 
the section, workbooks and training.  Observations and data analysis show that 
this program is very effective for middle school students.  In the coming year, 
we will be targeting additional professional training for our high school staff 
and there is less evidence of growth within their classes. The director of 
curriculum and assessment worked this spring with each high school assistant 
principal and counselor to review data and make recommendations for 
student placement and teacher support.

Goal 9:
The CAHSEE was suspended by California Legislature effective January 2016. 
Since 2006, the high school exit exam highlighted the inequitable outcomes for 
English Learners as they were primarily the students affected by this 
assessment.  With the suspension of CAHSEE, our district will use the state 
assessment given in 3rd-8th grade and again in 11th grade to monitor student 
proficiency.  In addition, we will review reading proficiency through the 
Scholastic Reading Inventory, given to 2nd through 9th graders and every year 
for English Learners.  To better support all students, the LCAP provides an after 
school coordinator who would assist with using data to identify the students 
who would most benefit from additional support and connect with their 
families.
With both middle school and high school programs, we will be working to 
identify students within the first 6 weeks of school, hold parent meetings and 
create a plan for their support outside of the school day.

188 of 461



Page 17 of 130

Goal 10:
52% of elementary English Learners made one year of growth as measured by 
the CELDT, (goal was 60%)
and 53% of secondary English Learners made one year of growth (goal was 
60%).  As the needs of secondary are very different from elementary students, 
the current LCAP provides an additional English Learner Instructional Resource 
Teacher to differentiate between the two groups.  The LCAP also provides 
sections for a Newcomer Academy and community coordinator.  The data we 
will gather will include local assessments and CELDT.  The goal of the academy 
is to provide newcomer students with access to both language development 
and content they need to graduate.  Tutorials will continue to be supported by 
bilingual staff and college students who can provide a bridge between content 
instruction and language acquisition.

Goal 11:
This goal addresses the number of low income students who pass AP classes 
with a C or higher, the standard universities require when evaluating 
transcripts.  The total number of students meeting this criteria was 158 (goal 
was 190).  To increase the number of students enrolling in and successfully 
completing an AP class, the LCAP provides for four-year planning workshops 
facilitated by counselors.  The current LCAP will maintain this expenditure and 
consider how to increase the number of students who enroll in AP through 
these conversations.

Goal 12:
Each of the schools receiving LCFF supplemental funds reported an increase in 
the opportunities for students to participate in interventions.  In elementary, 
each school created smaller sections for reading intervention after identifying 
students who were not reading at grade level.  In the middle school, both sites 
provided an additional section of Read 180 to reduce class size and provide 
more targeted support.  The high schools also reduced class size for the AVID 
classes and provided tutoring support in the core content areas.
Each school monitors their intervention program and makes adjustments to 
better support student sub groups toward the goal of access to college and 
career.

Goal 13:

189 of 461



Page 18 of 130
The LCAP provides two full time social workers who coordinate services for 
students identified through the site teams as needing this support.  This year, 
secondary schools met monthly to review students of concern with our 
director of student services and social workers.  These monthly meetings 
allowed for early intervention when students were struggling.    In elementary, 
the LCAP supports full time counselors, again with the goal of providing 
additional support for students and their families.  Our counselors also connect 
with social workers to determine what resources are available for students and 
their families.

Progress toward this goal is monitored through the number of expulsions, 
suspensions and the percentage of students with chronic absence.  As of May 
7th, the total number of expulsions for 2015-16 was 13 which is down from 20 
in 2016-17.  There is the possibility that this number will increase over the next 
five weeks of school, however we are hopeful that this downward trend will 
continue.

Chronic absence as defined as missing 10% or more of the school year. The 
following are estimates based on the information available as of May 2016.  
The percentage of students with chronic absence ranges from 12% at Westlake 
to a high of 37% at Costanoa.

Total for High Schools 20%
Total for Middle Schools 18%
Total for Elementary Schools 16%

The 2015-16 school year is a baseline year for the work of our school social 
workers. They began their work in November of 2015. To date they have 
served 76 students in the six secondary schools. Students are referred for a 
variety of reasons including attendance (17), family concerns (11), foster 
placement concerns (5), mental health (6), safety (8), housing, food and 
homelessness (4).
The social workers have established relationships with community based 
programs and resources to serve our students in need. These agencies include 
Children’s Mental Health, Alternative Education, Family and Children’s 
Services, CPS, Substance use, abuse and treatment programs, FosterEd, CASA, 
Second Harvest Food Bank, Homeless Shelter Services, Encompass Community 

190 of 461



Page 19 of 130
Services, Family Services and the Community Resource Center. They serve on 
the Foster Youth Advisory Committee of the County Office of Education.
The social workers have established relationships with each of the school sites 
they serve. They are developing a process by which they can work with the 
counseling team at teach site to monitor student attendance, behavior and 
grades and intervene with those students in need. They will also begin serving 
on the Goal Book team for each foster youth at the sites they serve.
We will use the Social Emotional Health Survey for the students they have 
served as a data point for the effectiveness of their work as well as attendance, 
grades and behavior data.
In addition to social workers we have seven MFT and MSW trainees assigned 
to eight of our sites. The trainees provide Tier 3 services, one on one 
counseling to our most needy students.  As of April 1, the trainees have 
provided 2199 direct service hours to our students.
Interns                  Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Students Served 104 129 127 115 115 126 133
Sessions Provided  256 397 275 226 288 352 405

The Primary Prevention Program serves 108 students in grades K-3. Foster and 
homeless youth receive priority enrollment in the program. In the school 
adjustment scale completed by the classroom teacher, 86% of students show 
improvement during the program.

Goal 14:
We have surveyed parents using an online and paper survey to determine the 
percentage who participate in district level committees.  23.1% of respondents 
participated in 2015-16 which exceeds our goal of 15%.  Our LCAP 
recommends that we increase parent engagement through translation, 
childcare and food for evening meetings.
The LCAP continues to support this recommendation and will monitor the 
participation of parents of English Learners in district committees.

Goal 15
SCCS supports foster youth through collaboration with Foster Youth Services at 
the county office.  The needs of foster youth are addressed through assistant 
principal and counselor meetings.  Key personnel dedicated to supporting 
foster youth include our director of student services, social workers and 

191 of 461



Page 20 of 130
counselors.  SCCS has 47 students identified as foster youth, we track their 
progress and maintain connection with services provided through the county 
and the foster youth liaison.

--------

192 of 461



Page 21 of 130

Section 2:  Goals, Actions, Expenditures, and Progress Indicators

Instructions:

All LEAs must complete the LCAP and Annual Update Template each year.  The LCAP is a three-year plan for the upcoming school year and the two years that 
follow.  In this way, the program and goals contained in the LCAP align with the term of a school district and county office of education budget and multiyear 
budget projections.  The Annual Update section of the template reviews progress made for each stated goal in the school year that is coming to a close, assesses 
the effectiveness of actions and services provided, and describes the changes made in the LCAP for the next three years that are based on this review and 
assessment.

Charter schools may adjust the table below to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is submitted to the school’s authorizer pursuant to 
Education Code section 47604.33.

For school districts, Education Code sections 52060 and 52061, for county offices of education, Education Code sections 52066 and 52067, and for charter 
schools, Education Code section 47606.5 require(s) the LCAP to include a description of the annual goals, for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils, to be 
achieved for each state priority as defined in 5 CCR 15495(i) and any local priorities; a description of the specific actions an LEA will take to meet the identified 
goals; a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific actions; and an annual update to include a review of progress towards the goals and 
describe any changes to the goals.  

To facilitate alignment between the LCAP and school plans, the LCAP shall identify and incorporate school-specific goals related to the state and local priorities 
from the school plans submitted pursuant to Education Code section 64001. Furthermore, the LCAP should be shared with, and input requested from, 
schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, pupil advisory groups, etc.) to facilitate alignment 
between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
the goal.   

Using the following instructions and guiding questions, complete a goal table (see below) for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as 
necessary.

Goal:  Describe the goal: 

When completing the goal tables, include goals for all pupils and specific goals for schoolsites and specific subgroups, including pupils with disabilities, 
both at the LEA level and, where applicable, at the schoolsite level.  The LEA may identify which schoolsites and subgroups have the same goals, and 
group and describe those goals together. The LEA may also indicate those goals that are not applicable to a specific subgroup or schoolsite.

193 of 461



Page 22 of 130
Related State and/or Local Priorities: Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the applicable priority or 
priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, as defined in 5 CCR 15495(i), and any additional local priorities; however, one 
goal may address multiple priorities.

Identified Need: Describe the need(s) identified by the LEA that this goal addresses, including a description of the supporting data used to identify the need(s). 

Schools: Identify the schoolsites to which the goal applies. LEAs may indicate “all” for all schools, specify an individual school or a subset of schools, or specify 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5). 

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: Identify the pupil subgroups as defined in Education Code section 52052 to which the goal applies, or indicate “all” for all pupils.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes: For each LCAP year, identify and describe specific expected measurable outcomes for all pupils using, at minimum, the 
applicable required metrics for the related state priorities. Where applicable, include descriptions of specific expected measurable outcomes for schoolsites and 
specific subgroups, including pupils with disabilities, both at the LEA level and at the schoolsite level.  

The metrics used to describe the expected measurable outcomes may be quantitative or qualitative, although the goal tables must address all required 
metrics for every state priority in each LCAP year. The required metrics are the specified measures and objectives for each state priority as set forth in 
Education Code sections 52060(d) and 52066(d). For the pupil engagement priority metrics, LEAs must calculate the rates specified in Education Code 
sections 52060(d)(5)(B), (C), (D) and (E) as described in the Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template Appendix, sections (a) through 
(d). 

Action/Services:  For each LCAP year, identify all annual actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described goal.  Actions may describe a 
group of services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal.

Scope of Service: Describe the scope of each action/service by identifying the schoolsites covered.  LEAs may indicate “all” for all schools, specify an individual 
school or a subset of schools, or specify grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5).  If supplemental and concentration funds are used to support the 
action/service, the LEA must identify if the scope of service is districtwide, schoolwide, countywide, or charterwide.   

Pupils to be served within identified scope of service: For each action/service, identify the pupils to be served within the identified scope of service.  If the action 
to be performed or the service to be provided is for all pupils, place a check mark next to “ALL.” 

For each action and/or service to be provided above what is being provided for all pupils, place a check mark next to the applicable unduplicated pupil 
subgroup(s) and/or other pupil subgroup(s) that will benefit from the additional action, and/or will receive the additional service. Identify, as applicable, 
additional actions and services for unduplicated pupil subgroup(s) as defined in Education Code section 42238.01, pupils redesignated fluent English 
proficient, and/or pupils subgroup(s) as defined in Education Code section 52052.

194 of 461



Page 23 of 130
Budgeted Expenditures: For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement these actions, including where 
those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified 
using the California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 47606.5.

Guiding Questions:

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”?
2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”? 
3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement” (e.g., parent involvement, pupil engagement, and school 

climate)?
4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual schoolsites been evaluated to inform the development of meaningful district and/or individual schoolsite goals 

(e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 
6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and subgroups as defined in section 52052 that are 

different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?
7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and over the term of the LCAP?
8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop goals to address each state or local priority?
9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual schoolsites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to Education Code section 52052, to specific schoolsites, 

to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?
12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 

195 of 461



Page 24 of 130

GOAL 1:

We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.

100% of certificated staff will be NCLB compliant.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1 X  2     3     4     5     6     7     8     8

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #4

Identified Need : Highly Qualified Teachers

99% (440/441) of certificated employees are NCLB compliant as of 6/3/15.

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of certificated employees will be NCLB compliant

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.

Avoid assigning teachers outside of their credentialed 
subjects whenever feasible.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers (B/CLAD required) 0001-
0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined Base $0
New Teacher Project coaching for beginning teachers 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures 
Title II $80,000 

Release time for professional development. District-
wide

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Other 

196 of 461



Page 25 of 130

LCAP Year 2: 2017-18
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of certificated employees will be NCLB compliant

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.

Avoid assigning teachers outside of their credentialed 
subjects whenever feasible.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers (B/CLAD required) 0001-
0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined Base $0
New Teacher Project coaching for beginning teachers 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures 
Title II $80,000 

Release time for professional development. District-
wide

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of certificated employees will be NCLB compliant

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.  Avoid assigning 
teachers outside of their credentialing area whenever 
feasible.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 

Hire only High Qualified Teachers (B/CLAD required)  1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base 0
New Teacher Project coaching for beginning teachers 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES Title II $80,000

197 of 461



Page 26 of 130
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

198 of 461



Page 27 of 130

GOAL 2:

We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.

100% of classified staff will be NCLB compliant.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1 X  2     3     4     5     6     7     8     8

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #4

Identified Need : Highly Qualified Staff

99% (121/122) of classified instructional employees are NCLB compliant as of 3/6/15.

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All 

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of classified instructional employees will be NCLB compliant

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff.  0001-
0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined Base $0

LCAP Year 2: 2017-18
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of classified instructional employees will be NCLB compliant

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff. LEA-wide X All Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff.  0001-

199 of 461



Page 28 of 130
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined Base $0

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of classified instructional employees will be NCLB compliant

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff.  2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Base 0

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

200 of 461



Page 29 of 130

GOAL 3:

Students will learn in facilities that are conducive to learning.  13/13 (100%) of school facilities will rate 
"exemplary" (100%) on the FIT report.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1 X  2     3     4     5     6     7     8     8

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #5

Identified Need : Good Facilities

13/13 sites rate “good” (90%) or better on the Facility Inspection Tool (FIT), but only 8/13 sites rated "exemplary" (100%).  SCCS would like all 
facilities to be in “exemplary” condition as measured by the FIT.

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

10/13 sites rate “exemplary” on FIT report

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Repair all conditions identified as “poor” or "good" until 
all facilities rate “exemplary” on FIT report.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

On-going maintenance at all facilities. (Resource 8150) 7000-
7439: Other Outgo Base $1,933,270

201 of 461



Page 30 of 130
LCAP Year 2: 2017-18

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

13 out of 13 sites rate "exemplary" on FIT report

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Repair all conditions identified as “poor” or "good" until 
all facilities rate “exemplary” on FIT report.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

On-going maintenance at all facilities. (Resource 8150) 7000-
7439: Other Outgo Base $1,933,270

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

13 out of 13 sites rate "exemplary" on Facility Inspection Tool (FIT)

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Repair all conditions identified as "poor" or "good" until 
all facilities rate "exemplary" on FIT report

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

On-going maintenance at all facilities.   7439 OTHER DEBT 
SERVICE - PRINCIPAL Base $1,933,270

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

202 of 461



Page 31 of 130

GOAL 4:

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.
100% of students will have access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all subjects

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4     5     6     7     8     8

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Identified Need : Sufficient Materials

Textbooks and instructional materials in core subjects need to be Williams compliant and aligned with CCSS, CA ELD standards, and NGSS.  
Many textbooks, while compliant with Williams requirements, were purchased before the new standards were adopted.

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of students will have access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all subjects

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Purchase instructional materials. LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Purchase instructional materials for math adoption in 
elementary and high school ($125,000 Elementary & 
$146,000 for secondary). 0000: Unrestricted Base $271,000

203 of 461



Page 32 of 130
LCAP Year 2: 2017-18

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of students will have access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all subjects

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Purchase instructional materials. LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Purchase instructional materials for social studies/history 
aligned with the CCSS ($100,000 Elementary & $100,000 for 
secondary). 0000: Unrestricted Base $200,000 

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of students will have access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all subjects

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Purchase instructional materials LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Purchase instructional materials for NGSS adoption in 
elementary and secondary 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Base $100,000

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

204 of 461



Page 33 of 130

GOAL 5:

We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.
100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in professional development in implementing CCSS, CA 
ELD Standards, and NGSS.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4     5     6     7     8     8

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #4

Identified Need : Implement Standards

SCCS needs to implement the Common Core State Standards (CCSS) and teachers need to be trained in CCSS.

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in professional development in implementing CCSS, CA ELD Standards, and NGSS.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire 1.73 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on 
implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share 
effective strategies, use a formal coaching cycle, 
including feedback, and facilitate professional 
development sessions regarding CCSS.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $95,974
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $26,083
.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches through EEFG 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Other $56,730
.6 FTE Secondary Math Coaches through EEFG 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Other $13,127
 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental  

Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing 
CA ELD standards.  These TOSAs will support teachers 
in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate 
professional development sessions regarding CCSS.

   LEA-
wide     

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $111,400
1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$33,671
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 

205 of 461



Page 34 of 130
(Specify) (ELIRT) 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I 

$26,977
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I $8,154

Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional 
Learning Community work at secondary schools and 
support math adoption with elementary teams

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

6 days @ $5,000 per day for secondary 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental  $30,000 elementary
6 days @ $5,000 per day for elementary 5800 OTHER SVCS 
& OPER EXPENDITURES Supplemental $30,000

Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $90,048
1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $22,296

Hire .4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS 
ELA in Middle schools.

Middle 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social Studies) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $26,755
.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social Studies) 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $6,844
 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  

Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in 
implementing the Next Generation Science Standards 
(NGSS).

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 

1.0 FTE Science Coach 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $96, 825
1.0 FTE Science Coach 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $19,610

206 of 461



Page 35 of 130
(Specify)

Technology to support student learning.  Chrome books, 
carts and projection.

 LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Technology to support student learning elementary 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental $111,058
Technology to support student learning secondary 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental $162,845

LCAP Year 2: 2017-18
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in professional development in implementing CCSS, CA ELD Standards, and NGSS.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing 
CCSS mathematics standards.  These TOSAs will 
support teachers in various ways: share effective 
strategies, use a formal coaching cycle, including 
feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base $95,974
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Base $26,083
.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches through EEFG 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Other 
.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches through EEFG 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Other $
 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental  

Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing 
CA ELD standards.  These TOSAs will support teachers 
in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate 
professional development sessions regarding CCSS.

   LEA-
wide     

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $111,400
1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$33,671
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I 
$26,977
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title I $8,154

207 of 461



Page 36 of 130
Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional 
Learning Community work at secondary schools and to 
support math adoption at elementary schools

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

6 days @ $5,000 per day 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures Supplemental  $30,000
6 days @ $5,000 per day 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental $30,000

Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $90,046
1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $22,296

Hire .4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS 
ELA in Middle schools.

Middle 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social Studies) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $26,755
.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social Studies) 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $6,844
 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  

Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in 
implementing the Next Generation Science Standards 
(NGSS).

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 FTE Science Coach 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $96,825
1.0 FTE Science Coach 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $19,610

208 of 461



Page 37 of 130
LCAP Year 3: 2018-19

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in professional development in implementing CCSS, CA ELD Standards, and NGSS

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Hire a 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on 
implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways by sharing 
effective strategies, using a formal coaching cycle, 
providing feedback and facilitating professional 
development sessions regarding CCSS. 

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $95,974
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $26,083
.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches through EEFG 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other $
.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches through EEFG 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Other $

Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing 
CA ELD standards.  These TOSAs will support teachers 
in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, provide feedback and facilitate 
professional development sessions regarding CCSS.

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT)  1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $111,400
1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $33,671
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT)  1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Title I 
$26,977
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I $8,154

Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional 
Learning Community work at secondary schools and 
work with elementary schools on math adoption

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

6 days @ $5,000 per day  5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental $30,000
6 days @ $5,000 per day 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental $30,000

Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $90,048
1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE 

209 of 461



Page 38 of 130
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

BENEFITS Supplemental $22,296

Hire .4 TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA 
in middle schools

Middle 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA and Social Studies) TOSA 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
$26,755
.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA and Social Studies) TOSA 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $6,844

Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in 
implementing the Next Generation Science Standards 
(NGSS)

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 FTE Science Coach 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $96,825
1.0 FTE Science Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $19,610

Technology to support student learning.  Chrome books, 
carts and projection

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Technology to support student learning elementary 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental $111,058
Technology to support student learning secondary 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Supplemental $162,845

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

210 of 461



Page 39 of 130

GOAL 6:

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.

80% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements.

80% of LI 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements.

80% of EL 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements.

Increase graduation rate to 100%.

Decrease dropout rate to 0%.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3 X  4 X  5 X  6     7 X  8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Identified Need : College and Career Ready

53% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements.

35% of LI 12th-grade meet A-G requirements.

8% of EL 12th-grade meet A-G requirements.

Graduation and Dropout rates

Cohort graduation rate for 2013-14 = 89.8%

High School dropout rate for 2013-14 = 4.7%

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

211 of 461



Page 40 of 130
LCAP Year 1: 2016-17

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

80% of all 12th meet A-G requirements.

80% of LI 12th meet A-G requirements.

80% of EL 12th meet A-G requirements.

Increase graduation rate by .5% to 90.2% in 2016-17

Decrease high school dropout rate by .2 to 3.7% in 2016-17

Maintain middle school dropout rate of 0% in 2016-17

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Credit Recovery program for students who are credit 
deficient to help them graduate and/or meet A-G 
requirements.

High 
school

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $49,292
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $11,935
Credit Recovery materials @ Ark 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental  $4,100
Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental  $11,070

AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive 
high schools.

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

AVID Tutors & Field Trips  2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $40,000 
AVID Tutors & Field Trips  5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES Supplemental  $10,000
AVID stipends. 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $2,830 

212 of 461



Page 41 of 130
LCAP Year 2: 2017-18

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

85% of all 12th meet A-G requirements.

85% of LI 12th meet A-G requirements.

85% of EL 12th meet A-G requirements.

Increase graduation rate by .5% from 90.2% in 2015-16 to 90.7% in 2017-18

Decrease dropout rate by .2 from 3.7% to 3.5% in 2017-18.

Maintain middle school dropout rate of 0% in 2016-17.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Credit Recovery program for students who are credit 
deficient to help them graduate and/or meet A-G 
requirements.

High 
school

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $49,292
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $11,935
Credit Recovery materials @ Ark 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental  $4,100
Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental  $11,070

AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive 
high schools.

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

AVID Tutors   2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $40,000 
 AVID Tutors and Field trips 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES Supplemental  $10,000
AVID stipends. 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $2,830 

213 of 461



Page 42 of 130
LCAP Year 3: 2018-19

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

90% of all 12th grade students meet A-G requirements
90% of LI 12 grade students meet A-G requirements
90% of EL 12th grade students meet A-G requirements
Increase graduation rate by .5% to 91.7%
Decrease drop out rate to 3.5%
Maintain middle school drop out rate of 0%

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Credit Recovery program for students who are credit 
deficient to help them graduate and/or meet A-G 
requirements

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.6 FTE Credit Recovery  at the Ark  1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $49,292
.6 FTE Credit Recovery at the Ark 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $11,935
Credit Recovery materials at the Ark 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $4,100
Credit recovery contract with Cyber High 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $11,070

AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive 
high schools

Secondar
y

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

AVID Tutors  2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $40,000
AVID stipends 1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 
Supplemental $2,830
AVID field trips 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental $10,000

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

214 of 461



Page 43 of 130

GOAL 7:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.

Teachers will be prepared and have adequate materials to teach Common Core State Standards (CCSS) to 
students that struggle.  Students that struggle will have various opportunities to master CCSS.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4 X  5 X  6     7 X  8     8

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Identified Need : Mathematics

75% of 9th-graders passed Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first attempt.
35% of 11th-grade students are on track to be college ready in ELA, as measured by 2013 Early Assessment Program (EAP).
17% of 11th-grade students are on track to be college ready in math, as measured by 2013 Early Assessment Program (EAP).

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try will increase by 5% from 80% to 85%.

The rate of 11th-grade students considered track to be college ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 40% to 45% in ELA

The rate of 11th-grade students considered track to be college ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 22% to 27% in mathematics.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Summer School with a focus on mathematics and 
reading in elementary, and mathematics in secondary.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Elementary Summer School 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title I $28,856 
Elementary Summer School 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Title I $5,208 
Elementary Summer School 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Title I $5,256
Elementary Summer School 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Title I $4,000
Secondary Summer School 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title I $71,911
Secondary Summer School 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Title I $6,227
Secondary Summer School 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 

215 of 461



Page 44 of 130

Title I $11,596
Secondary Summer School 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Title I $7,500

Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to 
Intervention at each of the secondary schools.

Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental  $345,940
5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $110,960

Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming 
proficient in CCSS mathematics.

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in 
CCSS mathematics. 5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Supplemental  $41,074

Hire .2 FTE at each comprehensive high school to 
provide a flexible math intervention period - .33 at SCHS 
(Math Plus)

    High 
School   

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 for each comprehensive high school 
and .33 at SCHS) 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $56,730
.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 for each comprehensive high school 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $13,127

Homework Clubs at each of the three comprehensive 
high schools

 High 
School 

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $25,866
HW Club benefits for certificated staff 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $4,134

216 of 461



Page 45 of 130

1.0 FTE to coordinate after school support programs at 
both middle schools

 Middle 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 FTE for After School Coordinator (.5 at each middle 
school) 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $32,600
1.0 FTE for After School Coordinator (.5 at each middle 
school) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $7,658

4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After 
School Program

     Middle 
School   

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School 
Program 2900 OTHER CLASS SALARIES-REGULAR  O 
Supplemental $50,358
4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School 
Program 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $9,578

LCAP Year 2: 2017-18
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try will increase by 5% from 85% to 90%.

The rate of 11th-grade students considered track to be college ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 45% to 50% in ELA

The rate of 11th-grade students considered track to be college ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 27% to 32% in mathematics.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Summer School with a focus on mathematics and 
reading in elementary, and mathematics in secondary.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Elementary Summer School 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title I $28,856 
Elementary Summer School 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Title I $5,208 
Elementary Summer School 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Title I $5,256
Elementary Summer School 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Title I $4,000
Secondary Summer School 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title I $71,911

217 of 461



Page 46 of 130

Secondary Summer School 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Title I $6,227
Secondary Summer School 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Title I $11,596
Secondary Summer School 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Title I $7,500

Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to 
Intervention at each of the secondary schools.

Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental  $345,940
5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $110,960

Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming 
proficient in CCSS mathematics.

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in 
CCSS mathematics. 5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Supplemental  $41,074

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try will increase by 5% from 90% to 95%.

The rate of 11th-grade students considered track to be college ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 50% to 55% in ELA

The rate of 11th-grade students considered track to be college ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 32% to 37% in mathematics.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Summer school with a focus on mathematics and 
reading in elementary and mathematics in secondary

LEA-Wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth

Elementary Summer School 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Title I $28,856
Elementary Summer School 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Title I $5,208

218 of 461



Page 47 of 130
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Elementary Summer School 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I $5,256
Elementary Summer School 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Title I $4,000
Secondary Summer School 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Title I $71,911
Secondary Summer School 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Title I $6,227
Secondary Summer School 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I $11,596

Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to 
Intervention at each of the secondary schools

Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators  1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $345,940
5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $110,960

Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming 
proficient in CCSS mathematics

High 
school

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in 
CCSS mathematics.  5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental $41,074

Hire .2 FTE at each comprehensive high school (.33 at 
SCHS) to provide a flexible math intervention period 
(Math Plus)

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 at each comprehensive high school 
and .33 at Santa Cruz High)  1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $56,730
.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 at each comprehensive high school 
and .33 at Santa Cruz High) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $13,127

Homework clubs at each of the three comprehensive High X All HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff 1100 CERT 

219 of 461



Page 48 of 130
high schools School OR:-------

   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $25,866
HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $4,134

1.0 FTE to coordinate after school support programs at 
both middle schools

Middle 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.0 For After School Coordinator (.5 at each middle school) 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental 
$32,600
1.0 For After School Coordinator (.5 at each middle school) 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $7,658

4 Instructional techs to support middle school After 
School Program

Middle 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

4 Instructional techs to support middle school After School 
Program 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $50,358
4 Instructional techs to support middle school After School 
Program 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $9,578

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

220 of 461



Page 49 of 130

GOAL 8:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.
90% of 6th-8th-grade students will read at or above grade level.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4     5     6     7 X  8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Identified Need : Language Arts

79% of 6th-8th-grade students are reading at or above grade level, as determined by the SRI.

68% of 6th-8th-grade Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students are reading at or above grade level, as determined by the SRI.

65% of 9th-grade students are reading at or above grade level, as determined by the SRI

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of 6th-8th-grade students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 84% to 89% as determined by the SRI.

The rate of 6th-8th grade Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 73% to 
78% as determined by the SRI.

The rate of 9th-grade students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 75% in 2015-16 to 80% in 2016-17 as determined by the 
SRI.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and 
two of the three comprehensive high schools to boost 
achievement in reading.

Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.8 FTE Read 180 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $ 63,480
.8 FTE Read 180 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $19,240
Read 180 training, workbooks, licenses 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental  $45,000

221 of 461



Page 50 of 130
LCAP Year 2: 2017-18

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of 6th-8th-grade students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 89% to 94% as determined by the SRI.

The rate of 6th-8th grade Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 78% to 
83% as determined by the SRI.

The rate of 9th-grade students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 80% in 2016-17 to 85% in 2017-18 as determined by the 
SRI.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and 
two of the three comprehensive high schools to boost 
achievement in reading.

Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.8 FTE Read 180 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $63,480 
.8 FTE Read 180 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $19,240
Read 180 training, workbooks, licenses 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental  $45,000

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of 6th-8th-grade students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 94% to 99% as determined by the SRI.

The rate of 6th-8th grade Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 83% to 
88% as determined by the SRI.

The rate of 9th-grade students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% from 85% to 90% as determined by the SRI.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and 
two of the three comprehensive high schools to boost 
achievement in reading

Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 

.8 FTE Read 180 Sections 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $63,480
.8 FTE Read 180 Sections 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $19,240
Read 180 workbooks 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $45,000

222 of 461



Page 51 of 130
(Specify)

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

223 of 461



Page 52 of 130

GOAL 9:

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4 X  5 X  6     7 X  8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Identified Need :
Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

English Learners (ELs) & Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

\ High 
School

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  

Middle 
schools

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Supplemental  

224 of 461



Page 53 of 130
LCAP Year 2: 2017-18

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  

1.0 FTE after-school support programs in the middle 
schools.

Middle 
schools

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.5 FTE coordinator of after-school program at each middle 
school 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $42,154

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

225 of 461



Page 54 of 130

GOAL 
10:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.
The % of English Learners meeting Annual Measurable Achievement Objective #1 (AMAO1) will increase until 
100% meet the target.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3     4 X  5     6     7 X  8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal 3

Identified Need : English Language Development

The percent of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in English = 52%  in 2015-16 (AMAO #1).

The percent of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in English = 53% in 2015-16 (AMAO #1).

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

English Learners (ELs)

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The percent of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in English will increase by 5% from 52% in 2015-16 to 57% in 2016-17.

The percent of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in English will increase by 5% from 53% in 2015-16 to 58% in 2016-17.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
X Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)
Migrant and Immigrant 
students

.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $12,338
.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs 
for English Learners, Low-income students, Migrant students 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $3,915
.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Base $69,911
.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Base $22,181
.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I $20,562

226 of 461



Page 55 of 130

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Title I $6,524

Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to 
increase opportunities for success to recently arrived 
English learners.

Middle 
Schools

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each middle school 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$30,000 
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each middle school 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $10,000

Newcomer support sections at the high school to 
increase opportunities for success to recently arrived 
English learners.

High 
School

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $12,580
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $4,880
. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $12,580
. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $4,880
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $14,273
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $4,590
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $12,580
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $4,880

Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high 
school. (.5 at Branciforte Middle, Mission Hill Middle, 
Harbor, Soquel and Santa Cruz

High 
School

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator at middle school and 
comprehensive high schools 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $77,630
.5 FTE School Community Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $88,510

Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to District-    All Adminstrative Secretary 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 

227 of 461



Page 56 of 130
support ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, Migrants, and Low 
Income students.

wide OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
X Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)
Immigrants & Migrants

Salaries Supplemental  $41,033
Adminstrative Secretary 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $20,455
Site Program Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $20,488
Site Program Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $11,475
Site Program Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Title I $39,419
Site Program Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title 
I $22,078

Professional Development for elementary teachers to 
meet needs of ELs.

Elementar
y

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title III $5,000
Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress Monitoring Group 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title III $5,000

Supplies to support parent engagement in District 
Advisory Committee

    LEA-
wide    

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

EWA's, translation and meeting supplies 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $3,500

LCAP Year 2: 2017-18
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The percent of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in English will increase by 5% to 62% in 2017-2018.

The percent of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in English will increase by 5% to 63% in 2017-2018.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs LEA-wide    All .12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 

228 of 461



Page 57 of 130
staff to support ELs, Migrants, and Low Income students OR:-------

X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
X Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)
Migrant and Immigrant 
students

Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $12,338
.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  $3,915
.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Base $69,911
.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Base $22,181
.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I $20,562
.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Title I $6,524

Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to 
increase opportunities for success to recently arrived 
English learners.

Middle 
Schools

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each middle school 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$30,000 
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each middle school 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  $10,000

Newcomer support sections at the high school to 
increase opportunities for success to recently arrived 
English learners.

High 
Schools

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $12,580
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $4,880
. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $12,580
. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $4,880
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $14,273
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $4,590
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 1000-1999: Certificated 

229 of 461



Page 58 of 130

Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $12,580
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $4,880

Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high 
school (.5 at Branciforte Middle, Mission Hill Middle, 
Harbor, Soquel and Santa Cruz)

Secondar
y

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $77,630
.5 FTE School Community Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $88,510

Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs 
staff to support ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, Migrants, and 
Low Income students.

District-
wide

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
X Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)
Immigrants & Migrant 
students

Adminstrative Secretary 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $41,033
Adminstrative Secretary 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $20,455
Site Program Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $20,488
Site Program Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $11,475
Site Program Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Title I $39,419
Site Program Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Title 
I $22,078

Professional Development for elementary teachers to 
meet needs of ELs.

Elementar
y

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title III $5,000
Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress Monitoring Group 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title III $5,000

230 of 461



Page 59 of 130
LCAP Year 3: 2018-19

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

The percent of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in English will increase by 5% to 67% in 2018-2019.

The percent of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in English will increase by 5% to 68% in 2018-2019.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention LEA-Wide    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
X Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)
Migrant and Immigrant 
students

.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $12,338
.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $3,915
.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base $69,911
.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Base $22,181
.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Title I $20,562
.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and Secondary 
Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention  3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I $6,524

Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to 
increase opportunities for newly arrived English 
Learners

Middle 
Schools

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials (.2 FTE at each middle school) 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
$30,000
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials (.2 FTE at each middle school) 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $10,000

Newcomer support sections at the high school increase 
opportunity for success to recently arrived English 
Learners

High 
School

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial  at Harbor High  1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $12,580
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial  at Harbor High  3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $4,880

231 of 461



Page 60 of 130
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.2 FTE Newcomer ELD support at Harbor High  1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $12,580
.2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support  at Harbor High  3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $4,880
.2 FTE Newcomer Math at Harbor High  1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $12,580
.2 FTE Newcomer Math at Harbor High  3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $4,880
.2 FTE Newcomer Science at Harbor High  1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $12,580
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial  at Harbor High  3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $4,880

Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high 
school

Secondar
y

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator at middle school and 
comprehensive high schools 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental 77,630
2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator at middle school and 
comprehensive high schools 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $88,510

Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to 
support El's, RFEPs, Migrants, and Low Income 
students.

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
X Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)
Immigrants and Migrant 
students

Administrative Secretary 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental $41,033
Administrative Secretary 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $20,455
Site Program Coordinator 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental $20,488
Site Program Coordinator 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $11,475
Site Program Coordinator 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Title I $39,419
Site Program Coordinator 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
$22,078

Professional Development for elementary teachers to 
meet needs of ELs

elementar
y

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 

Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC 1160 TEACHER 
SALARIES-STIPEND Title III $5,000
Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress Monitoring Group 
1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND Title III $5,000

232 of 461



Page 61 of 130
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Supplies to support parent engagement in District 
Advisory Committee

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

EWA's translation and meeting supplies 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $3,500

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

233 of 461



Page 62 of 130

GOAL 
11:

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.

The number of Low Income (LI) students that pass Advanced Placement classes with a grade of C or higher 
will increase by 10 each year.

The percent of students that pass a Career Technical Education (CTE) class with a grade of C or higher will 
increase by 1% each year.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3     4     5     6     7 X  8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal 3

Identified Need : Advanced Placement

140 Low-Income students passed AP classes with a C or higher in 2014-15.

91% of CTE students passed their CTE course with a C or higher in 2014-15.

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

Low-Income (LI)

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The number of LI students that pass an AP exam with a score of C or higher will increase by 10 from 150 to 160.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

High 
School

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  

Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment 
and supplies to offer appealing course options that lead 
to CTE careers. 

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth

Provide sufficient resources to CTE course. 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education $63,890
Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student 

234 of 461



Page 63 of 130
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

groups and coordinate with advisory committees. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education $9,645
Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student 
groups and coordinate with advisory committees. 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education $2,658

Early College Outreach Parent Program K-12    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Migrant parent education 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures Title III $5,000

LCAP Year 2: 2017-18
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The number of LI students that pass an AP exam with a score of C or higher will increase by 10 from 160 to 170

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

        High 
School

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  

Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment 
and supplies to offer appealing course options that lead 
to CTE careers. 

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient

Provide sufficient resources to CTE course. 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education $63,890
Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student 
groups and coordinate with advisory committees. 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education $9,645

235 of 461



Page 64 of 130
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student 
groups and coordinate with advisory committees. 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education $2,658

Early College Outreach Parent Program K-12    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Migrant parent education 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating Expenditures Title III $5,000

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The number of LI students that pass an AP exam with a score of C or higher will increase by 10 from 170 to 180

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Offer a variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment 
and supplies to offer appealing course options that lead 
to CTE college and career

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Provide sufficient resources to CTE courses 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education $63,890
Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student 
groups and coordinate with advisory committees 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education $9,645
Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers to lead student 
groups and coordinate with advisory committees 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education $2,658

Early College Outreach Parent Program K-12    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Migrant parent education  5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title III $5,000

236 of 461



Page 65 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

237 of 461



Page 66 of 130

GOAL 
12:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.

The percent of elementary students that score At or Exceeds Standard on SBAC ELA will increase 5%.

The percent of elementary students that score At or Exceeds Standard on SBAC Mathematics will increase 
5%.

The percent of middle school students that score At or Exceeds Standard on SBAC ELA will increase 5%.

The percent of middle school students that score At or Exceeds Standard on SBAC Mathematics will increase 
5%.

The percent of 11th-grade students that score At or Exceeds Standard on SBAC ELA will increase 5%.

The percent of 11th-grade students that score At or Exceeds Standard on SBAC Mathematics will increase 
5%.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4 X  5     6     7     8 X  8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Identified Need : Site-based Programs

In keeping with the concept of local control, and since each school has unique needs for their target populations, a portion of LCFF 
Supplemental funds is passed on to school sites in order to meet the needs of the target populations specific to each site.  Examples of site 
program expenditures include Response to Intervention Coordinators and Learning Assistants for Walk-to-Read in the elementary schools 
and reduced class size in the secondary classes with a concentration of target populations.

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Each site will report an increase of 5% in opportunities for intervention (either hours or funds) for EL, RFEP, FY, &/or LI students.
The percentage of students that score At or Exceeds Standard in ELA and math will increase 5% each year

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Site-based interventions at each school site. LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils

Elementary site-based interventions:  Walk to Read 
Coordinator at four elementary schools 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental  $320,565

238 of 461



Page 67 of 130
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Elementary site-based interventions: Walk to Read 
Coordinator at four elementary schools 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental  $89,717
Elementary site-based interventions: 8 Walk to Read  
Instructional Techs 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental  $122,800
Elementary site-based interventions: 8 Walk to Read 
Instructional Techs 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental  $11,788
Elementary site-based interventions: Learning assistant at 
Monarch 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental  $11,489
Elementary site-based interventions: Learning assistant at 
Monarch 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$1,103
Elementary site-based interventions  4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental  $173,909
Secondary site-based interventions 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $253,693

LCAP Year 2: 2017-18
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Each site will report an increase of 5% in opportunities for intervention (either hours or funds) for EL, RFEP, FY, &/or LI students.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Site-based interventions at each school site. LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Elementary site-based interventions: Walk to Read 
Coordinator at four elementary schools 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental  $320,565
Elementary site-based interventions: Walk to Read 
Coordinator at four elementary schools 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental  $89,679
Elementary site-based interventions: Learning Assistant at 
Monarch 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental  $11,489
Elementary site-based interventions: Learning Assistant at 
Monarch 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental  $1,103
Elementary site-based interventions 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental  $173,909

239 of 461



Page 68 of 130

Secondary site-based interventions 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental  $253,693
Elementary site-based interventions: 8 Instructional techs for 
Walk to Read at four elementary schools 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental  122,800
Elementary site-based interventions: 8 instructional techs for 
Walk to Read at four elementary schools 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $11,788

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Each site will report an increase of 5% in opportunities for intervention (either hours or funds) for EL, FREP, FY and or LI students

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Site-based interventions at each school site LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Elementary Site-based interventions: Walk to Read 
Coordinator at four elementary schools 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $320,565
Elementary Site-based interventions: Walk to Read 
Coordinator at four elementary schools 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $89,717
Elementary Site-based interventions: Learning Assistant at 
Monarch elementary 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 11,489
Elementary Site-based interventions: Learning Assistant at 
Monarch elementary 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $1,103
Elementary site-based intervention: 8 instructional techs for 
Walk to Read at elementary schools 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental $122,800
Elementary site-based intervention: 8 instructional techs for 
Walk to Read at elementary schools 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $11,788
Elementary site-based interventions 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $173,909
Secondary site-based interventions 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $253,693

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

240 of 461



Page 69 of 130

GOAL 
13:

All SCCS will be motivated learners who leave our system as well-rounded citizens with a broad spectrum of 
interests and abilities.

Reduce suspensions by 10 per year until rate = 0%

Reduce expulsions 2 per year until rate = 0%

Reduce chronic absenteeism rate by .5% per year in elementary school

Reduce chronic absenteeism rate by .5% per year in middle school

Reduce chronic absenteeism rate by .5% per year in high school

Increase attendance rate to 100%

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3     4     5 X  6 X  7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #2

Identified Need : Culture and Climate

Coordination of student services for Foster Youth, homeless students, and other students in order to create a supportive atmosphere in which 
students feel safe, important, known, and valued.

Students suspended in 2013-14 in SCCS = 221 (101 as of 5/14/15 for 2014-15)

Students expelled in 2014-15 as of 5/11/15 in SCCS = 21

Rate of elementary students who are chronically absent in 2014-15 = 10%

Rate of middle school students who are chronically absent 2014-15 = 11%

Rate of high school students who are chronically absent in 2014-15 = 17%

Elementary attendance rate in 2013-14 = 94.44%

Secondary attendance rate in 2013-14 = 93.91%

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

241 of 461



Page 70 of 130
LCAP Year 1: 2016-17

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Suspensions will decrease by 10 from 210 to 200 in  2016-2017.

Expulsions will decrease by 2 from 19 in 2015-16 to 17 in 2016-17.

Elementary chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% from 9.5% in 2015-16 to 9% in 2016-17.

Middle school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% from 10.5% in 2015-16 to 10% in 2016-17.

High school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% from 16.5% in 2015-16 to 16% in 2016-17.

Elementary attendance rate increase by .5% from 95% in 2014-15 to 95.5% in 2015-16.

Secondary attendance rate increase by .5% from 94.5% in 2014-15 to 95% in 2015-16.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Contract with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work 
Interns to ensure academic success by meeting basic 
mental health needs of students.

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Social Work Interns 5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Supplemental  $24,500

PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary 
students and help them adjust to school

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $53,445
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  $5,166

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students 
develop social-emotional skills to succeed in school. (.5 
at comprehensive elementary schools and .2 at 
Monarch)

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors (.5 at comprehensive 
elementary schools and .2 at Monarch 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $158,081
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors 3000-3999: Employee 

242 of 461



Page 71 of 130
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Benefits Supplemental  $45,067

Social workers Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

2.0 FTE Social workers 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $141,00
2.0 FTE Social workers 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $50,790
Student Services supplies 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $1,000
Student Services mileage 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES Supplemental $1,000

.8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of 
Positive Behavior Intervention and Support programs at 
all four elementary schools

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.8 FTE PBIS Coach 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental 60,082
.8 FTE PBIS Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $20,341

.6 FTE Counselor  (.2 at each comprehensive high 
school)

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.6 FTE counselor (.2 at each comprehensive high school) 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
$45,183
.6 FTE counselor (.2 at each comprehensive high school) 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $13,338

243 of 461



Page 72 of 130
LCAP Year 2: 2017-18

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Suspensions will decrease by 10 from 200 to 190 in  2017-2018.

Expulsions will decrease by 2 from 17 to 15 in 2017-18.

Elementary chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% to 8.5% in  2017-2018.

Middle school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% to 9.5% in 2017-2018.

High school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by 5% to 15.5% in 2017-2018.

Elementary attendance rate increase by .5%  to 95.5% in 2017-18.

Secondary attendance rate increase by .5% to 95.5% in 2017-2018.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Contract with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work 
Interns to ensure academic success by meeting basic 
mental health needs of students.

K-12 X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Social Work Interns 5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Supplemental  $24,500

PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary 
students and help them adjust to school

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries Supplemental  $53,445
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  $5,166

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students 
develop social-emotional skills to succeed in school. (.5 
at each elementary and .2 at Monarch)

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors (.5 at each elementary and .2 
at Monarch) 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $177,101
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors 3000-3999: Employee 

244 of 461



Page 73 of 130
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Benefits Supplemental  $83,189

Social workers Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

2.0 FTE Social workers 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $141,00
2.0 FTE Social workers 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $50,790

.8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of 
Positive Behavior Intervention and Support programs at 
all four elementary schools

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.8 FTE PBIS Coach  1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $60,082
.8 FTE PBIS Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $20,341

.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school 
(.2 at each)

High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school (.2 at 
each) 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $45,183
.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school (.2 at 
each) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $13,388

245 of 461



Page 74 of 130
LCAP Year 3: 2018-19

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Suspensions will decrease by 10 from 190 to 180 in 2018-2019.

Expulsions will decrease by 2 from 15 to 13 in 2018-19.

Elementary chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% to 8%  2018-2019.

Middle school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% to 9% in 2018-2019.

High school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by 5% to 15% in 2018-2019.

Elementary attendance rate increase by .5%  to 96% in 2018-19.

Secondary attendance rate increase by .5% to 96% in 2018-2019.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Contract with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work 
Interns to ensure academic success by meeting basic 
mental health needs of students

LEA-wide X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Social Work Interns 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental $24,500

PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary 
students and help them adjust to school

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides  2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES Supplemental $53,445
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) Aides  3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $5,166

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students 
develop social-emotional skills to succeed in school (.5 
at each comprehensive elementary school and .2 at 
Monarch)

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop 
social-emotional skills to succeed in school (.5 at each 
comprehensive elementary school and .2 at Monarch) 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Supplemental $158,081

246 of 461



Page 75 of 130
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop 
social-emotional skills to succeed in school (.5 at each 
comprehensive elementary school and .2 at Monarch) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental $45,067

Social Workers Secondar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

2.0 FTE Social Workers 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $141,00
2.0 FTE Social Workers 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $50,790
2.0 FTE Social Workers 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $1,000
2.0 FTE Social Workers 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES Supplemental $1,000

.8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of 
Positive Behavior Intervention and Support programs at 
all four elementary schools

Elementar
y

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.8 FTE PBIS Coach 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $60,082
.8 FTE PBIS Coach 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $20,341

.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school High 
School

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school (.2 at 
each high school) 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $45,183
.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school (.2 at 
each high school) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $13,338

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

247 of 461



Page 76 of 130

GOAL 
14:

SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse parent community.
Rate of parents reporting involvement in schools will increase by 3% per year.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3 X  4     5     6     7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #6

Identified Need : Parent Involvement

Participate in district-level committees at least occasionally = 17.5%

Participate in parent education offerings at least occasionally = 38%

Participate in official parent organizations at least occasionally = 40%

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

English Learners (EL)

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Participation in district-level committees at least occasionally will increase by 5% from 23% to 28%.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Provide parent education through Latino Role Model 
conference to include information fairs on A-G, college 
admissions, financial aide and application processes

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Latino Role Model Events 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental  $5,000

248 of 461



Page 77 of 130
LCAP Year 2: 2017-18

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Participation in district-level committees at least occasionally will increase by 5% from 28% to 33%.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Provide parent education through Latino Role Model 
conference to include information fairs on A-G, college 
admissions, financial aid and application process

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Latino Role Model Event 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental  $5,000

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Participation in district-level committees at least occasionally will increase by 5% from 33% to 38%.

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Provide parent education through Latino Role Model 
conference to include information fairs on A-G, college 
admissions, financial aid and application processes.

LEA-Wide    All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Latino Role Model Event 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental $5,000

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

249 of 461



Page 78 of 130

GOAL 
15:

We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within our SCCS 
school community.
Collaborate and coordinate with SCCOE Foster Youth Services

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3 X  4     5 X  6 X  7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 2 & 6

Identified Need : Support for Foster Youth: maintenance and support countywide Foster Ed MOU

Schools: AllGoal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

Foster Youth

LCAP Year 1: 2016-17
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Collaborate and coordinate with Foster Youth Services to implement, on a countywide basis, services and programs for Foster Youth

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Participate in the development and implementation of an 
educational plan for Foster Youth

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
X Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Existing personnel [approximately 2 days/year for secondary 
Assistant Principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors 
($2,855)] at each site serve as FY site liaison. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Base $8,736
Existing personnel [approximately 2 days/year for secondary 
Assistant Principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors 
($2,855)] at each site serve as FY site liaison. 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Base $1,240

Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for 
regular communication with Foster Youth Education 
Team

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
X Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district 
liaison for Foster Youth 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $10,118 
.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district 
liaison for Foster Youth 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Base 
$3,349

250 of 461



Page 79 of 130
LCAP Year 2: 2017-18

Expected Annual
Measurable 
Outcomes:

Collaborate and coordinate with Foster Youth Services to implement, on a countywide basis, services and programs for Foster Youth

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Participate in the development and implementation of an 
educational plan for Foster Youth

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
X Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

Existing personnel [approximately 2 days/year for secondary 
Assistant Principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors 
($2,855)] at each site serve as FY site liaison. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Base $8,736
Existing personnel [approximately 2 days/year for secondary 
Assistant Principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors 
($2,855)] at each site serve as FY site liaison. 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Base $1,240

Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for 
regular communication with Foster Youth Education 
Team

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
X Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district 
liaison for Foster Youth 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $10,118 
.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district 
liaison for Foster Youth 3000-3999: Employee Benefits Base 
$3,349

LCAP Year 3: 2018-19
Expected Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Collaborate and coordinate with Foster Youth Services to implement on a countywide basis, services and programs for Foster Youth

Actions/Services Scope of 
Service

Pupils to be served within 
identified scope of 

service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Participate in the development and implementation of an 
educational plan for Foster Youth

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
X Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient

Existing personnel (approximately 2 days/year for secondary 
assistant principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors 
($2,855) at each site to serve as Foster Youth Liaison. 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base $8,736
Existing personnel (approximately 2 days/year for secondary 
assistant principals ($7,121) and elementary counselors 
($2,855) at each site to serve as Foster Youth Liaison. 3000 

251 of 461



Page 80 of 130
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base $1,240

Utilize Foster Youth Goal book Information system for 
regular communication with Foster Youth Education 
Team

LEA-wide    All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
X Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent 
English proficient
   Other Subgroups: 
(Specify)

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district 
liaison for Foster Youth 1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Base $10,118
.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves as the district 
liaison for Foster Youth 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 
$3,349

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

252 of 461



Page 81 of 130

Annual Update

Annual Update Instructions:  For each goal in the prior year LCAP, review the progress toward the expected annual outcome(s) based on, at a minimum, the 
required metrics pursuant to Education Code sections 52060 and 52066. The review must include an assessment of the effectiveness of the specific actions.  
Describe any changes to the actions or goals the LEA will take as a result of the review and assessment. In addition, review the applicability of each goal in the 
LCAP.

Guiding Questions:

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those services result in the desired outcomes?
2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to Education Code section 52052, including, but not 

limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 
3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific schoolsites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the 

desired outcomes?
4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress toward goals in the annual update?
5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How effective were the actions and services in making 

progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences?

253 of 461



Page 82 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 1 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.

100% of certificated staff will be NCLB compliant.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1 X  2     3     4     5     6     7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #4

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of certificated employees will be NCLB compliant Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

96.64% of certificated employees are NCLB compliant

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.

Avoid assigning teachers outside of 
their credentialed subjects whenever 
feasible.

Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers 
(B/CLAD required) 0001-0999: 
Unrestricted: Locally Defined Base 
$0
New Teacher Project coaching for 
beginning teachers 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Title II 
$80,000 

All newly hired teachers working on 
their clear credential had a mentor 
through the New Teacher Project 
through two years.  This past year, we 
struggled to fill positions in math and 
special education which lead to filling a 
few positions with teachers on an intern 
credential.  These teachers had support 
from coaches in our district and should 
be on track to earn their credential in 
two years.

Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers 
(B/CLAD required) 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base 
$0
New Teacher Project coaching for 
beginning teachers 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES Title 
II $80,000

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

254 of 461



Page 83 of 130
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

 7439 OTHER DEBT SERVICE - 
PRINCIPAL Supplemental  

Scope of
Service

District-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

255 of 461



Page 84 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 2 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.

100% of classified staff will be NCLB compliant.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1 X  2     3     4     5     6     7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #4

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All 

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of classified instructional employees will be NCLB 
compliant

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of classified instructional employees are NCLB compliant

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Hire only NCLB-certified classified 
instructional staff

Hire only NCLB-certified classified 
instructional staff.  0001-0999: 
Unrestricted: Locally Defined Base 
$0

Our classified personnel staff screen in 
applicants who meet the criteria for 
positions.  In addition, applicants go 
through testing and interviews which 
ensure that they have the skills and 
knowledge required for their positions.

Hire only NCLB-certified classified 
instructional staff. 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base 
$0

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 

256 of 461



Page 85 of 130

made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

257 of 461



Page 86 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 3 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

Students will learn in facilities that are conducive to learning.  13/13 (100%) of school facilities will rate 
"exemplary" (100%) on the FIT report.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1 X  2     3     4     5     6     7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #5

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

10/13 sites rate “exemplary” on FIT report Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

8/13 sites rate "exemplary" on the FIT report

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Repair all conditions identified as 
“poor” or "good" until all facilities rate 
“exemplary” on FIT report.

On-going maintenance at all 
facilities. (Resource 8150) 7000-
7439: Other Outgo Base $1,933,270

Repairs were made for any conditions 
rated as poor or good.  Our district is 
conducting a long term facilities' master 
plan to determine next steps in 
improving the condition of facilities.

On-going maintenance at all facilities. 
7439 OTHER DEBT SERVICE - 
PRINCIPAL Base $$1,933,270

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 

258 of 461



Page 87 of 130

past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

259 of 461



Page 88 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 4 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.
100% of students will have access to standards-aligned instructional materials in all subjects

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4     5     6     7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of students will have access to standards-aligned 
instructional materials in all subjects

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of students have access to standards-aligned instructional 
materials in all subjects

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Purchase instructional materials. Purchase instructional materials for 

mathematics aligned with the CCSS 
($200,000 Elementary & $200,000 
for secondary). 0000: Unrestricted 
Base $400,000 

We delayed the purchase of 
instructional materials for mathematics 
pending the elementary adoption and 
high school pilot in 2016-17

Delayed purchase of instructional 
materials for mathematics aligned with 
the CCSS for 2016-17  Base $0

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 

260 of 461



Page 89 of 130

past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

261 of 461



Page 90 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 5 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.
100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in professional development in implementing CCSS, CA 
ELD Standards, and NGSS.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4     5     6     7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #4

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in 
professional development in implementing CCSS.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

100% of teachers in core subject areas will participate in 
professional development in implementing CCSS.

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Hire 1.3 FTE TOSAs to coach 
teachers on implementing CCSS 
mathematics standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in 
various ways: share effective 
strategies, use a formal coaching 
cycle, including feedback, and 
facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $78,129
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $29,660
.3 FTE Secondary Math Coach 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $23,624
.3 FTE Secondary Math Coach 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $7,761
 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental  

The elementary math coach supported 
teachers with developing their 
understanding of CCSS math in the first 
half of the year.  The second half of the 
year was devoted to a pilot of two 
different curricula.
The secondary math coach provided 
support to 10 new math teachers.

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $78,129
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach  
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $29,660
.3 FTE Secondary Math Coach 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $23,624
.3 FTE Secondary Math Coach 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$7,761

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All

Scope of
Service

              

   All

262 of 461



Page 91 of 130
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach 
teachers on implementing CA ELD 
standards.  These TOSAs will support 
teachers in various ways: share 
effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, 
and facilitate professional 
development sessions regarding 
CCSS.

1.6101 FTE English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$111,400
1.6101 FTE English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $33,671
.3899 FTE English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title I $26,977
.3899 FTE English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Title I $8,154

This was the first year we had this 
position at both elementary and 
secondary grade spans.  The 
elementary coach provided support to 
ELD teachers using Systematic ELD 
and professional development with the 
new assessment tools.
The secondary coach supported 
teachers in the Newcomer program at 
Harbor High and provided professional 
development for staff at the middle 
schools.

1.6101 FTE English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
$111,400
1.6101 FTE English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $33,671
.3899 FTE English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Title I $26,977
.3899 FTE English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I $8,154

Scope of
Service

   LEA-wide           

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Contract with Enid Lee to coach 
teachers in effective use of 
instructional strategies that promote 
equitable outcomes for all students.

12 days @ $2,000/day Consultation 
with Enid Lee 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental  $24,000

This consultant conducted work with all 
secondary schools, Monarch 
elementary and Costanoa High School.  
She coaches teams at each school 
around equity practices and developed 

12 days @ $2,000/day Consultation 
with Enid Lee 5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental $24,000

263 of 461



Page 92 of 130
an observation protocol for teachers 
and administrators to monitor their 
work.

Scope of
Service

  LEA-wide       

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology 
Coach to assist teachers in integrating 
technology into their lessons in order 
to improve instruction in their content 
area and to teach technology 
standards to their students.

1.0 FTE Education Technology 
Coach 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$65,000
1.0 FTE Education Technology 
Coach 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $29,242

The Education Technology coach 
assisted with our first year of a new 
data system.  He provided individual 
and district level training on this system 
including building reports, scheduling 
assessments and analyzing the data.

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $65,000
1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $29,242

Scope of
Service

Elementary-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Hire 1.4 FTE TOSAs to support 
implementation of CCSS ELA in 
Elementary and Middle schools.

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & 
Social Studies) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $25,919
.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & 
Social Studies) 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  

These coaches focused on CCSS 
English Language Arts instruction in 
elementary and middle schools.  The 
elementary academic coach supported 
development of systems for targeted 
reading intervention.  The middle 
school coaches provided professional 
development on CCSS writing.

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & 
Social Studies) 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $25,919
.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & 
Social Studies) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $12,000

264 of 461



Page 93 of 130

$12,000
1.0 Elementary Academic Coach 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $60,687
1.0 Elementary Academic Coach 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $28,630

1.0 Elementary Academic Coach 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $60,687
1.0 Elementary Academic Coach 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$28,630

Scope of
Service

Elementary & Middle 
Schools

      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist 
teachers in implementing the Next 
Generation Science Standards 
(NGSS).

1.0 FTE Science Coach 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $65,000
1.0 FTE Science Coach 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$29,242

The science coach supported the 
Integrated Science program at one high 
school and the articulation around this 
pathway beginning in middle school.   

1.0 FTE Science Coach 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $65,000
1.0 FTE Science Coach 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$29,242

Scope of
Service

Secondary      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 

265 of 461



Page 94 of 130

services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

266 of 461



Page 95 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 6 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.

80% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements.

80% of LI 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements.

80% of EL 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements.

Increase graduation rate to 100%.

Decrease high school dropout rate to 0%.

Decrease middle school dropout rate to 0%.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3 X  4 X  5 X  6     7 X  8     

8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

60% of all 12th meet A-G requirements.

40% of LI 12th meet A-G requirements.

15% of EL 12th meet A-G requirements.

Increase graduation rate by .5% from 89.8% in 2013-14 to 90.3% 
in 2014-15.

Decrease high school dropout rate by .5 from 4.7% in 2013-14 to 
4.2% in 2014-15.

Maintain middle school dropout rate of 0% in 2013-14 at 0%  in 
2014-15.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

57% of all 12th grade students met the requirements for A-G in 
2014-15
39% of Low Income 12th grade students met the requirements 
for A-G in 2014-15
0% of English Learners met the requirements for A-G in 2014-15
The graduation rate increased from 89-8% in 2013-14 to 91.9% 
in 2014-15
The drop out rate decreased .5% from 4.7% in 2013-14 to 4.2% 
in 2014-15

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Credit Recovery program for students 
who are credit deficient to help them 
graduate and/or meet A-G 
requirements.

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $40,650
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 

Credit recovery through Cyber High 
was offered students at all three 
comprehensive high schools and 
Costanoa and the Ark.  

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $40,650
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark 3000 

267 of 461



Page 96 of 130

3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $13,193
Credit Recovery materials @ Ark 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $4,100
Credit Recovery contract with Cyber 
High 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental  $11,070

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$13,193
Credit Recovery materials @ Ark 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $4,100
Credit Recovery materials @ Ark 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $11,070

Scope of
Service

High school      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

AVID classes at middle schools and 
comprehensive high schools.

AVID Tutors 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$18,000 
AVID Tutors  3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $2,555
AVID stipends. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $2,863
AVID Field Trips 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental  $10,000

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth

268 of 461



Page 97 of 130
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

269 of 461



Page 98 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 7 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.

Teachers will be prepared and have adequate materials to teach Common Core State Standards (CCSS) to 
students that struggle.  Students that struggle will have various opportunities to master CCSS.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4 X  5 X  6     7 X  8     

8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on 
the first try will increase by 5% from 75% to 80%.

The rate of 11th-grade students considered track to be college 
ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 35% to 40% in ELA

The rate of 11th-grade students considered track to be college 
ready by the EAP will increase by 5% from 17% to 22% in 
mathematics.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

78% of 9th graders passed Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the 
first try in 2014-15
28% of 11th grade students were considered on track to be 
college ready by the EAP in English Language Arts
14% of 11th grade students were considered on track to be 
college ready by the EAP in mathematics

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Summer School with a focus on 
mathematics and reading in 
elementary, and mathematics in 
secondary.

Elementary Summer School 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $28,856 
Elementary Summer School 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $5,208 
Elementary Summer School 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $5,256
Elementary Summer School 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $4,000
Secondary Summer School 1000-

Elementary summer school served 
incoming 2nd-4th grade students who 
were struggling with number sense.
The middle school program provided 
targeted assistance to incoming 6th-8th 
grade students.
The high school program supported 
credit recovery and a bridge to the 
Algebra standards

Elementary Summer School 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $28,856
Elementary Summer School 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $5,208 
Elementary Summer School 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$5,256
Elementary Summer School 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $4,000
Secondary Summer School 1100 

270 of 461



Page 99 of 130

1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $71,911
Secondary Summer School 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $6,227
Secondary Summer School 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $11,596
Secondary Summer School 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $7,500

CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $71,911
Secondary Summer School 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $6,227
Secondary Summer School 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$11,596
Secondary Summer School 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $7,500

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate 
Response to Intervention at each of 
the secondary schools.

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $345,940
5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $110,960

Each middle and high school RtI 
coordinator created progress 
monitoring systems in math and/or 
science that allowed teachers to identify 
struggling students early on and 
provide targeted support.

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $345,940
5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$110,960

Scope of
Service

Secondary      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

271 of 461



Page 100 of 130
Hire math tutors to assist students in 
becoming proficient in CCSS 
mathematics.

Hire math tutors to assist students in 
becoming proficient in CCSS 
mathematics. 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental  $41,074

Schools were able to hire math tutors 
mid way through the school year.  The 
tutors provided support during the day 
and at homework club after school.

ire math tutors to assist students in 
becoming proficient in CCSS 
mathematics. 5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental $41,074

Scope of
Service

High School      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

272 of 461



Page 101 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 8 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.
90% of 6th-8th-grade students will read at or above grade level.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4     5     6     7 X  8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of 6th-8th-grade students reading at or above grade 
level will increase 5% from 79% to 84% as determined by the 
SRI.

The rate of 6th-8th grade Reclassified Fluent English Proficient 
(RFEP) students reading at or above grade level will increase 5% 
from 68% to 73% as determined by the SRI.

The rate of 9th-grade students reading at or above grade level will 
increase 6% from 69% in 2014-15 to 75% in 2015-16 as 
determined by the SRI.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

79% of 6th-8th grade students were reading at or above grade 
level as measured by the SRI.
73% of elementary RFEP students and 75% of secondary RFEP 
students were reading at or above grade level as measured by 
the SRI
The percentage of 9th grade students reading at or above grade 
level was not available at the time of publication.

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
 Read 180 sections at each of the 
middle schools and comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in 
reading.

1.13 FTE Read 180 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $63,855 
1.13 FTE Read 180 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$27,700
Read 180 training, workbooks, 
licenses 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental  $45,000

Read 180 classes at the secondary 
schools provided year long support in 
reading comprehension for students 
whose scores indicate they read below 
grade level.  

1.13 FTE Read 180 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $63,855
1.13 FTE Read 180 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $27,700
Read 180 training, workbooks, 
licenses 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental $45,000

Scope of
Service

Secondary      Scope of
Service

              

273 of 461



Page 102 of 130
X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

274 of 461



Page 103 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 9 

from prior 
year 

LCAP:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.

65% of ELs will pass CAHSEE ELA in 10th-grade.

75% of ELs will pass CAHSEE Math in 10th-grade.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4 X  5 X  6     7 X  8     

8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

English Learners (ELs) & Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The rate of ELs passing the CAHSEE ELA in 10th grade will 
increase by 6% from 19% to 25%.

The rate of ELs will pass CAHSEE Math in 10th grade will 
increase by 6% from 44% to 50%

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The CAHSEE was suspended by the California Legislature in 
January 2016.  The expenditures in this goal will be added to 
goal 8 for 2016-17

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Homework Clubs at comprehensive 
high schools.

High School Homework Clubs 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $26,856
High School Homework Clubs 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $3,813

All three comprehensive high schools 
provided after school support for 
students with credentialed teachers and 
tutors.

High School Homework Clubs 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $26,856
High School Homework Clubs 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$3,813

Scope of
Service

High School      

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

275 of 461



Page 104 of 130

1.0 FTE after-school support 
programs in the middle schools.

. 5 FTE Coordinator of after-school 
program at each middle school 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $42,154

Scope of
Service

Middle schools      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

276 of 461



Page 105 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 10 
from prior 

year 
LCAP:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.
The % of English Learners meeting Annual Measurable Achievement Objective #1 (AMAO1) will increase until 
100% meet the target.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3     4 X  5     6     7 X  8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal 3

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

English Learners (ELs)

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The percent of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in 
English will increase by 5% from 55% in 2014-15 to 60% in 2015-
16.

The percent of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in 
English will increase by 5% from 58% in 2014-15 to 63% in 2015-
16.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The percent of elementary ELs making one year's growth in 
English decreased from 55% in 2014-15 to 52% in 2015-16
The percent of secondary ELs making one year's growth in 
English decreased from 58% in 2014-15 to 53% in 2015-16

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Department of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs staff to support 
ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, Migrants, 
and Low Income students.

.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity 
& Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $12,338
.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity 
& Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$3,915
.68 FTE Director of Academic Equity 
& Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 

.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $12,338
.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $3,915
.68 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base 
$69,911

277 of 461



Page 106 of 130

Base $69,911
.68 FTE Director of Academic Equity 
& Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Base $22,181
.2 FTE Director of Academic Equity 
& Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries Title 
I $20,562
.2 FTE Director of Academic Equity 
& Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Title I $6,524

.68 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Base $22,181
.2 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Title I 
$20,562
.2 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English 
Learners, Low-income students, 
Migrant students 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I $6,524

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Newcomer support sections at the 
middle schools to increase 
opportunities for success to recently 
arrived English learners.

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE 
@ each middle school 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $30,000 
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE 
@ each middle school 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$10,607

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ 
each middle school 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $30,000
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ 
each middle school 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $10,607

Scope of
Service

Middle Schools      

   All

Scope of
Service

              

   All

278 of 461



Page 107 of 130
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Newcomer support sections at the 
high school to increase opportunities 
for success to recently arrived English 
learners.

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $12,580
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $4,880
. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $12,580
. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental  $4,880
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $14,273
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $4,590
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy 
Science 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$12,580
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy 
Science 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $4,880

Newcomer sections provided access to 
core curriculum and English Language 
Development for new arrivals to our 
high school.

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $12,580
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $4,880
. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $12,580
. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$4,880
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $14,273
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $4,590
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $12,580
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $4,880

Scope of
Service

High School      

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth

279 of 461



Page 108 of 130
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Newcomer and EL support at the high 
school to increase opportunities for 
success to recently arrived English 
learners.

.5 FTE School Community 
Coordinator 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$14,522
.5 FTE School Community 
Coordinator 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $23,024

The community coordinator provided 
support to newcomers and their families 
at Harbor High. This staff member also 
worked closely with the social workers 
to ensure students and families were 
connected with resources in the 
community.

.5 FTE School Community 
Coordinator 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $14,522
.5 FTE School Community 
Coordinator 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $23,024

Scope of
Service

High School      

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Department of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs staff to support 
ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, Migrants, 
and Low Income students.

Adminstrative Secretary 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $41,033
Adminstrative Secretary 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$20,455
Site Program Coordinator 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $20,488
Site Program Coordinator 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $11,475
Site Program Coordinator 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 
Title I $39,419
Site Program Coordinator 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits Title I 
$22,078

The administrative secretary and site 
program coordinators complete the 
administrative tasks related to program 
monitoring and compliance in 
accordance with the guidelines for 
LCFF and Title I expenditures.

Adminstrative Secretary 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $41,033
Adminstrative Secretary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$20,455
Site Program Coordinator 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $20,488
Site Program Coordinator 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$11,475
Site Program Coordinator 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Title I $39,419
Site Program Coordinator 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
$22,078

280 of 461



Page 109 of 130

Scope of
Service

District-wide      

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
X Other Subgroups: (Specify)
Migrants & Immigrants

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Professional Development for 
elementary teachers to meet needs of 
ELs.

Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Title III $5,000
Teacher stipends to attend EL 
Progress Monitoring Group 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Title III $5,000

Teachers participating in these groups 
received a stipend.  The groups met 
monthly to revise the assessment tools 
and monitor English Learner progress.

Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Title III $5,000
Teacher stipends to attend EL 
Progress Monitoring Group 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Title III $5,000

Scope of
Service

K-5      

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

281 of 461



Page 110 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 11 
from prior 

year 
LCAP:

All students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.

The number of Low Income (LI) students that pass Advanced Placement classes with a grade of C or higher 
will increase by 10 each year.

The percent of students that pass a Career Technical Education (CTE) class with a grade of C or higher will 
increase by 1% each year.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3     4     5     6     7 X  8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal 3

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

Low-Income (LI)

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The number of LI students that pass an AP exam with a score of 
C or higher will increase by 10 from 140 to 150.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The number of Low Income students who passed an AP exam 
with a score of C or higher was 158 in 2014-15.  The data for 
2015-16 will be available by the end of June 2016
We are in the process of revising the course sequence and 
descriptions for CTE courses.  Once completed we will be able 
to report the number of students taking and passing a CTE 
course with a grade of C- or higher.

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
4-year Planning Workshops Increase enrollment of Low-Income 

students in AP classes through 4-
year planning workshops. 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $4,476
Increase enrollment of Low-Income 
students in AP classes through 4-
year planning workshops. 3000-
3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $635

All three high schools offered these 
workshops to help student set goals for 
college and career.

Increase enrollment of Low-Income 
students in AP classes through 4-year 
planning workshops. 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $4,476
Increase enrollment of Low-Income 
students in AP classes through 4-year 
planning workshops. 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$635

Scope of
Service

High School      

   All

Scope of
Service

              

   All

282 of 461



Page 111 of 130
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Offer variety of CTE courses with 
adequate equipment and supplies to 
offer appealing course options that 
lead to CTE careers. 

Provide sufficient resources to CTE 
course. 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education $63,890
Stipends and hourly pay for CTE 
teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory 
committees. 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Carl D. Perkins 
Career and Technical Education 
$9,645
Stipends and hourly pay for CTE 
teachers to lead student groups and 
coordinate with advisory 
committees. 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education $2,658

Scope of
Service

High School      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Early College Outreach Parent 
Program

Migrant parent education  5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures Title I 
$5,000

283 of 461



Page 112 of 130

Scope of
Service

K-12      

   All
OR:-------
X Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

284 of 461



Page 113 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 12 
from prior 

year 
LCAP:

We will eliminate achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS school 
community.

The percent of elementary students that score 3 or higher on SBAC ELA will increase 1%.

The percent of elementary students that score 3 or higher on SBAC Mathematics will increase 1%.

The percent of middle school students that score 3 or higher on SBAC ELA will increase 1%.

The percent of middle school students that score 3 or higher on SBAC Mathematics will increase 1%.

The percent of 11th-grade students that score 3 or higher on SBAC ELA will increase 1%.

The percent of 11th-grade students that score 3 or higher on SBAC Mathematics will increase 1%.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2 X  3     4 X  5     6     7     8 X  8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 1 & 3

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

The percent of elementary, middle, and 11th grade students that 
score 3 or higher on SBAC ELA  and mathematics will increase 
1%.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

For the 2014-15 CAASPP assessment, 50% of elementary 
students scored a 3 or higher on the English Language Arts 
assessment and 52% scored a 3 or higher on the math 
assessments.  62% of secondary students scored a 3 or higher 
on the English Language Arts assessment and 43.9% scored a 
3 or higher on the math assessment.

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Site-based interventions at each 
school site.

Elementary site-based interventions 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $40,596
Elementary site-based interventions 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $189,679
Elementary site-based interventions 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $42,077

Each school identified supplemental 
services to support English Learners, 
Low Income students, Foster Youth and 
students with an IEP.  These services 
included reading instruction, learning 
assistants to provide small group 
support, additional technology and 
release time for teachers to monitor 
their students' progress and share best 
practices.

lementary site-based interventions 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $40,596
lementary site-based interventions 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental $189,679
lementary site-based interventions 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $42,077

285 of 461



Page 114 of 130

Elementary site-based interventions 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $88,136
Secondary site-based interventions 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $105,585
Secondary site-based interventions 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $42,906
Secondary site-based interventions 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental  $135,592

lementary site-based interventions 
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $88,136
Secondary site-based interventions 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Supplemental $105,585
Secondary site-based interventions 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental $42,906
Secondary site-based interventions 
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental $135,592

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

286 of 461



Page 115 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 13 
from prior 

year 
LCAP:

All SCCS will be motivated learners who leave our system as well-rounded citizens with a broad spectrum of 
interests and abilities.

Reduce suspensions by 10 per year until rate = 0%

Reduce expulsions 2 per year until rate = 0%

Reduce chronic absenteeism rate by .5% per year in elementary school

Reduce chronic absenteeism rate by .5% per year in middle school

Reduce chronic absenteeism rate by .5% per year in high school

Increase attendance rate to 100%

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3     4     5 X  6 X  7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #2

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

All

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Suspensions will decrease by 11 from 221 in 2013-14 to 210 in 
2014-15.

Expulsions will decrease by 2 from 21 in 2014-15 to 19 in 2015-
16.

Elementary chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% from 
10% in 2014-15 to 9.5% in 2015-16.

Middle school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% 
from 11% in 2014-15 to 10.5% in 2015-16.

High school chronic absenteeism rate will decrease by .5% from 
17% in 2014-15 to 16.5% in 2015-16.

Elementary attendance rate increase by .56% from 94.44% in 
2013-14 to 95% in 2014-15.

Secondary attendance rate increase by .59% from 93.91% in 
2013-14 to 94.5% in 2014-15.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

There were 150 out of school suspensions for 2015-16 as of 
May 2016.
This is down from 221 in 2014-15
The number of expulsions in 2015-16 decreased from 20 to 14
The chronic absenteeism rate as at 16% in elementary, 18% in 
middle school and 20% in high school.
The overall attendance rate for 2015-16 was not available at the 
time of publishing this report.

287 of 461



Page 116 of 130

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Contract with SCCCS Youth Services 
for Social Work Interns to ensure 
academic success by meeting basic 
mental health needs of students.

Social Work Interns 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental  $24,500

Social work interns were supervised by 
counselors in the elementary schools 
and district social workers in secondary.  
They provided support to students 
identified through their school 
Coordination of Services Team.

Social Work Interns 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental $24,500

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or 
homeless primary students and help 
them adjust to school

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project 
(PIP) Aides 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental  
$53,445
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project 
(PIP) Aides 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Supplemental  $5,166

PIP aides provided early intervention 
for primary students identified through a 
screening tool and recommendation 
from classroom teacher

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project 
(PIP) Aides 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental $53,445
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project 
(PIP) Aides 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental $5,166

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

288 of 461



Page 117 of 130
2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors to 
help students develop social-
emotional skills to succeed in school.

2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental  $177,101
2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Supplemental  $83,189

Full time counselors at our elementary 
schools support the climate and culture 
work at each site.

2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $177,101
2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$83,189

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

2.0 FTE Social workers to support 
students and families.

2.0 FTE Social workers 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental  $141,00
2.0 FTE Social workers 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Supplemental  
$50,790

Social workers provided support to 
students identified by the counseling 
teams at each secondary site.

2.0 FTE Social workers 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental $141,00
2.0 FTE Social workers 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 
$50,790

Scope of
Service

Secondary      

X All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

289 of 461



Page 118 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

290 of 461



Page 119 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 14 
from prior 

year 
LCAP:

SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse parent community.
Rate of parents reporting involvement in schools will increase by 3% per year.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3 X  4     5     6     7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goal #6

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

English Learners (EL)

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Participation in district-level committees at least occasionally will 
increase by 2.5% from 17.5% to 20%.

Participation in parent education offerings at least occasionally 
will increase by 1.7% 38.3% to 40%.

Participation in official parent organizations at least occasionally 
will increase by 2.2% from 47.8% to 50%.

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

23.1% of parents who participated in the district LCAP survey 
indicated that they participate in district level committees, parent 
education and parent organizations.

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
English tutoring to parents of ELs to 
enable them to support their children 
in school.

Community Based English Tutoring 
(CBET) @ Adult Education 5700-
5799: Transfers Of Direct Costs 
Supplemental  $8,276 

English tutors were provided through 
Adult Education to parents of our 
English Learners.

Community Based English Tutoring 
(CBET) @ Adult Education 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
$8,276 

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
X English Learners
   Foster Youth
X Redesignated fluent English 

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient

291 of 461



Page 120 of 130
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

292 of 461



Page 121 of 130

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

Original 
GOAL 15 
from prior 

year 
LCAP:

We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within our SCCS 
school community.
Collaborate and coordinate with SCCOE Foster Youth Services

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1     2     3 X  4     5 X  6 X  7     8     8  

COE only:  9     10     0

Local : Specify District Goals 2 & 6

Schools: All      Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil 
Subgroups:

Foster Youth

Expected 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Collaborate and coordinate with Foster Youth Services to 
implement, on a countywide basis, services and programs for 
Foster Youth

Actual 
Annual

Measurable 
Outcomes:

Our director of student services participation with Foster Youth 
Services to support the implementation of a countywide 
program.

LCAP Year: 2015-16
Planned Actions/Services Actual Actions/Services

Budgeted Expenditures Estimated Actual Annual Expenditures
Participate in the development and 
implementation of an educational plan 
for Foster Youth

Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site 
serve as FY site liaison. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $8,736
Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site 
serve as FY site liaison. 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Base $1,240

The Director of Student Services 
worked with the county to implement an 
aligned Foster Youth program to 
support students in our schools.

Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site 
serve as FY site liaison. 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. Base 
$8,736
Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site 
serve as FY site liaison. 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base $1,240

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners

293 of 461



Page 122 of 130
X Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book 
Information system for regular 
communication with Foster Youth 
Education Team

.1 FTE Director of Student Services 
serves as the district liaison for 
Foster Youth 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $10,118 
.1 FTE Director of Student Services 
serves as the district liaison for 
Foster Youth 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits Base $3,349

Scope of
Service

LEA-wide      

   All
OR:-------
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
X Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English 
proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

Scope of
Service

              

   All
OR:
   Low Income pupils
   English Learners
   Foster Youth
   Redesignated fluent English proficient
   Other Subgroups: (Specify)

What changes in actions, 
services, and expenditures will be 
made as a result of reviewing 
past progress and/or changes to 
goals?

Complete a copy of this table for each of the LEA’s goals in the prior year LCAP. Duplicate and expand the fields as necessary.

294 of 461



Page 123 of 130

Section 3: Use of Supplemental and Concentration Grant funds and Proportionality

A. In the box below, identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner 
pupils as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a)(5). 

Describe how the LEA is expending these funds in the LCAP year. Include a description of, and justification for, the use of any funds in a districtwide, schoolwide, 
countywide, or charterwide manner as specified in 5 CCR 15496. 

For school districts with below 55 percent of enrollment of unduplicated pupils in the district or below 40 percent of enrollment of unduplicated pupils at a schoolsite in the 
LCAP year, when using supplemental and concentration funds in a districtwide or schoolwide manner, the school district must additionally describe how the services 
provided are the most effective use of funds to meet the district’s goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas.  (See 5 CCR 15496(b) for guidance.) 

Total amount of Supplemental and Concentration grant funds calculated: $3,870,779
$1,573,942 Elementary
$2,296,837 Secondary
$3,870,779 Total SCCS

Based upon FCMAT’s Local Control Funding Formula Calculator, SCCS estimates that in the 2016-17 LCAP year it will receive $1,573,942 in Supplemental funding and $0 in 
Concentration funding for the elementary district, and $2,296,837 in Supplemental funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the secondary district, for a grand total of 
$3,870,779 in Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding.  The percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income 
Students) must be increased or improved over services for all students is 4.12% for the elementary district and 3.63% for the secondary district, or 3.8% for the entire K-12th 
district.  The goals enumerated above are designed to serve that purpose.  Some goals specifically target English Learners (e.g. English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
and Newcomer Program).  Other goals specifically target Foster Youth (e.g. collaborate with Foster Ed & implement Goal Book).  Many goals are designed to provide assistance 
precisely in those areas where low-income students are more likely to struggle (e.g. summer school, Read 180, AVID, Homework Support, Credit Recovery, PIP, Counselors, 
Social Work Interns).  Of course, the term “unduplicated pupils” masks the reality that many students belong to more than one category.  Furthermore, some students that 
struggle don’t fall into any of these 3 categories (e.g. Special Education students, some RFEP students).  For these reasons, many programs are designed to improve services for 
students that struggle, regardless of the reasons for their difficulties or the demographic categories they may or may not belong to.  An example of this is the site discretionary 
funding that will enable schools to control the ways in which they can best meet the needs of their students.  All of these programs are above and beyond the core educational 
program provided to all students in the district.

B. In the box below, identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all pupils in the 
LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, demonstrate how the services provided in the LCAP year for low income pupils, foster youth, and English learners provide 
for increased or improved services for these pupils in proportion to the increase in funding provided for such pupils in that year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a)(7). 
An LEA shall describe how the proportionality percentage is met using a quantitative and/or qualitative description of the increased and/or improved services for 
unduplicated pupils as compared to the services provided to all pupils.

295 of 461



Page 124 of 130
3.8 %

Unduplicated Pupils
The percentage by which services for all unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) must be increased or improved over services for all 
students is 4.12% for the elementary district and 3.63% for the secondary district, or 3.8% for the entire K-12 district.  The increase and/or improved services to each of the 
three targeted populations is enumerated below.

Foster Youth
Supporting the Foster Ed Initiative, even assuming there were additional dollars granted for them specifically (as opposed to FY automatically being included in the LI count), 
represents the single greatest proportional investment for a sub-population. This is justified because of the significant achievement gap demonstrated between students in 
foster care and all of other students, including subpopulations such as those in special education, low-income or English language learners. Therefore the proportionality, both 
in terms of quantitative expenditures and qualitative time and effort, will be greater than their small enrollment number (N=47 or .6%).  Collaborating with other LEAs in SC 
County in the Foster Ed initiative led by the COE, and implementing the MOU will be an improvement in services that exceeds the required 3.8% increase.

English Learners
At 13% (N=863) of enrollment, English Learners represent a significant minority of SCCS students.  In terms of the achievement gap, their demonstrated need is much greater 
than their numbers.  In addition to the challenge of learning a second language while learning the rigorous content curriculum, ELs may also confront cultural differences that 
can impede success.  English learners in SCCS are usually also low-income students, and as such often struggle with economic barriers.  For these reasons, an increase in 
services that exceeds the 3.8% target is justified.

Low-Income Students
A large minority (N=2,833 or 41%) of SCCS students qualifies for free/reduced meals.  These students, on average, achieve well below their peers who are not challenged by 
poverty, necessitating an investment in programs that address their needs.  AVID, Read 180, Summer School, PIP, Social Work Interns, and site-based programs are designed to 
address the types of challenges that LI's frequently encounter in an academic setting.  As mentioned above, LI students frequently also belong to other subgroups.  All FY and 
migrant students are automatically part of the LI subgroup.  There is also a large overlap with the EL and immigrant subgroups.  Especially considering the compounded 
challenges, an increase in services that exceeds the 3.8% increase is justified.

The 2015-16 LCAP allocation was $3,318,150 ($1,200,701 for elementary and ($2,117,449 for secondary), while the 2016-17 LCAP allocation is $3,870,779 ($573,942 for 
elementary and $2,296, 837 for secondary), for an overall increase of $552,629).  As seen in the attached spreadsheet showing the 2016-17 LCAP budget detail, there are 
several expenditures that are new in this year's LCAP as compared to last year's LCAP.  Column K on that spreadsheet indicates which positions and other expenditures are 
new, and therefore represent how services in the new LCAP year for unduplicated students provide increased or improved services in proportion to the increase in funding 
provided for such pupils in the LCAP year.  Those services include: part time School Community Coordinators at all secondary schools, a .8 PBIS coach for elementary and Math 
Plus intervention sections at the high schools.  All of these services are new in the coming LCAP year and constitute a proportional increase in services for the targeted 
populations.

296 of 461



Page 125 of 130

Section 4: Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source

2015-16
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2015-16
Annual 
Update
Actual

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
2016-17-
2018-19 

Total

All Funding Sources 5,643,363.00 3,139,861.00 6,389,423.00 5,995,243.00 6,266,488.00 18,651,154.0
0

Base 2,448,805.00 102,068.00 2,319,805.00 2,370,862.00 2,148,805.00 6,839,472.00
Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education

76,193.00 0.00 76,193.00 76,193.00 76,193.00 228,579.00

Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other 0.00 0.00 69,857.00 0.00 0.00 69,857.00
Supplemental 2,899,651.00 2,824,079.00 3,564,300.00 3,188,920.00 3,689,722.00 10,442,942.0

0
Title I 128,714.00 123,714.00 264,268.00 264,268.00 256,768.00 785,304.00
Title II 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 240,000.00
Title III 10,000.00 10,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 45,000.00

Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type

2015-16
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted

2015-16
Annual 
Update 
Actual

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
2016-17-
2018-19 

Total

All Expenditure Types 5,643,363.00 3,139,861.00 6,389,423.00 5,995,243.00 6,266,488.00 18,651,154.0
0

0000: Unrestricted 400,000.00 0.00 271,000.00 200,000.00 0.00 471,000.00
0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 1,602,848.00 0.00 1,024,637.00 1,047,350.00 0.00 2,071,987.00
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 0.00 1,580,222.00 854,366.00 771,770.00 1,899,695.00 3,525,831.00
1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,830.00 12,830.00
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 0.00 370,021.00 166,889.00 134,289.00 500,697.00 801,875.00
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 430,175.00 0.00 283,450.00 362,004.00 0.00 645,454.00
2900 OTHER CLASS SALARIES-REGULAR  O 0.00 0.00 50,358.00 0.00 0.00 50,358.00
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 4,880.00 716,370.00 169,681.00 136,299.00 759,357.00 1,065,337.00
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 720,052.00 0.00 597,633.00 621,525.00 0.00 1,219,158.00
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 359,288.00 0.00 309,469.00 135,560.00 0.00 445,029.00
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 0.00 295,398.00 532,096.00 427,602.00 934,065.00 1,893,763.00
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures

24,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 0.00 0.00 11,000.00 10,000.00 11,000.00 32,000.00
5700-5799: Transfers Of Direct Costs 8,276.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 0.00 177,850.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 215,574.00 285,574.00
5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures

160,574.00 0.00 150,574.00 180,574.00 0.00 331,148.00

5900: Communications 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

297 of 461



Page 126 of 130
Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type

2015-16
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted

2015-16
Annual 
Update 
Actual

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
2016-17-
2018-19 

Total

6000-6999: Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7000-7439: Other Outgo 1,933,270.00 0.00 1,933,270.00 1,933,270.00 0.00 3,866,540.00
7439 OTHER DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,933,270.00 1,933,270.00

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source

2015-16
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted

2015-16
Annual 
Update 
Actual

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
2016-17-
2018-19 

Total

All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 5,643,363.0
0

3,139,861.0
0

6,389,423.0
0

5,995,243.0
0

6,266,488.0
0

18,651,154.
00

0000: Unrestricted Base 400,000.00 0.00 271,000.00 200,000.00 0.00 471,000.00
0001-0999: 
Unrestricted: Locally 
Defined

Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Base 88,765.00 0.00 88,765.00 184,739.00 0.00 273,504.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Carl D. Perkins Career 
and Technical Education

9,645.00 0.00 9,645.00 0.00 0.00 9,645.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Other 0.00 0.00 56,730.00 0.00 0.00 56,730.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Supplemental 1,446,899.0
0

0.00 711,191.00 704,305.00 0.00 1,415,496.0
0

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Title I 47,539.00 0.00 148,306.00 148,306.00 0.00 296,612.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Title III 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 20,000.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Base 0.00 78,647.00 0.00 0.00 88,765.00 88,765.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Carl D. Perkins Career 
and Technical Education

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,645.00 9,645.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Supplemental 0.00 1,444,036.0
0

854,366.00 771,770.00 1,652,979.0
0

3,279,115.0
0

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Title I 0.00 47,539.00 0.00 0.00 148,306.00 148,306.00

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Title III 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1160 TEACHER 
SALARIES-STIPEND

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,830.00 2,830.00

1160 TEACHER 
SALARIES-STIPEND

Title III 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

298 of 461



Page 127 of 130
Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source

2015-16
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted

2015-16
Annual 
Update 
Actual

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
2016-17-
2018-19 

Total

2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Supplemental 0.00 330,602.00 166,889.00 134,289.00 449,843.00 751,021.00

2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Title I 0.00 39,419.00 0.00 0.00 50,854.00 50,854.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Carl D. Perkins Career 
and Technical Education

0.00 0.00 0.00 9,645.00 0.00 9,645.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Supplemental 390,756.00 0.00 232,596.00 301,505.00 0.00 534,101.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Title I 39,419.00 0.00 50,854.00 50,854.00 0.00 101,708.00

2900 OTHER CLASS 
SALARIES-REGULAR  O

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 50,358.00 0.00 0.00 50,358.00

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Base 0.00 23,421.00 0.00 0.00 26,770.00 26,770.00

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Carl D. Perkins Career 
and Technical Education

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,658.00 2,658.00

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Supplemental 4,880.00 656,193.00 169,681.00 136,299.00 676,321.00 982,301.00

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Title I 0.00 36,756.00 0.00 0.00 53,608.00 53,608.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Base 26,770.00 0.00 26,770.00 52,853.00 0.00 79,623.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Carl D. Perkins Career 
and Technical Education

2,658.00 0.00 2,658.00 2,658.00 0.00 5,316.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Other 0.00 0.00 13,127.00 0.00 0.00 13,127.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Supplemental 653,868.00 0.00 501,470.00 512,406.00 0.00 1,013,876.0
0

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Title I 36,756.00 0.00 53,608.00 53,608.00 0.00 107,216.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Carl D. Perkins Career 
and Technical Education

63,890.00 0.00 63,890.00 63,890.00 0.00 127,780.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Supplemental 295,398.00 0.00 234,079.00 60,170.00 0.00 294,249.00

299 of 461



Page 128 of 130
Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source

2015-16
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted

2015-16
Annual 
Update 
Actual

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
2016-17-
2018-19 

Total

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Title I 0.00 0.00 11,500.00 11,500.00 0.00 23,000.00

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Carl D. Perkins Career 
and Technical Education

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 63,890.00 63,890.00

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Supplemental 0.00 295,398.00 532,096.00 427,602.00 766,175.00 1,725,873.0
0

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures

Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures

Supplemental 24,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL 
& CONFERENCES

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 11,000.00 10,000.00 11,000.00 32,000.00

5700-5799: Transfers Of 
Direct Costs

Supplemental 8,276.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

Supplemental 0.00 97,850.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 130,574.00 200,574.00

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

Title II 0.00 80,000.00 0.00 0.00 80,000.00 80,000.00

300 of 461



Page 129 of 130
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN AND ANNUAL UPDATE APPENDIX

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 52060 and 52066, the following shall 
apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 30) who are 
chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when 
the total number of days a pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the 
total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays 
and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, section 1039.1.

(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time 
grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult education high school diploma or passed 
the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time 
grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

301 of 461



Page 130 of 130

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was suspended during the academic year (July 1 – 
June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled during the academic year (July 1 – 
June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

01-13-15 [California Department of Education]

302 of 461



District LCAP Expenditures By Funding Source

Santa Cruz City Schools

Funding Source: Base

Proposed Expenditure Amount ActionObject Code
Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers 
(B/CLAD required)

$0.00 Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.Avoid assigning teachers outside of their 
credentialed subjects whenever feasible.

0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

Hire only NCLB-certified classified 
instructional staff.

$0.00 Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

On-going maintenance at all facilities. 
(Resource 8150)

$1,933,270.00 Repair all conditions identified as “poor” or "good" until all facilities rate “exemplary” on 
FIT report.

7000-7439: Other Outgo

Purchase instructional materials for 
mathematics aligned with the CCSS 
($200,000 Elementary & $200,000 for 
secondary).

$400,000.00 Purchase instructional materials.0000: Unrestricted

.68 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English Learners, 
Low-income students, Migrant students

$69,911.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.68 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English Learners, 
Low-income students, Migrant students

$22,181.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve as 
FY site liaison.

$8,736.00 Participate in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve as 
FY site liaison.

$1,240.00 Participate in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves 
as the district liaison for Foster Youth

$10,118.00 Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for regular communication with 
Foster Youth Education Team

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves 
as the district liaison for Foster Youth

$3,349.00 Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for regular communication with 
Foster Youth Education Team

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 1 of 33

303 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers 
(B/CLAD required)

$0.00 Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.Avoid assigning teachers outside of their 
credentialed subjects whenever feasible.

0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

Hire only NCLB-certified classified 
instructional staff.

$0.00 Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

On-going maintenance at all facilities. 
(Resource 8150)

$1,933,270.00 Repair all conditions identified as “poor” or "good" until all facilities rate “exemplary” on 
FIT report.

7000-7439: Other Outgo

Purchase instructional materials for math 
adoption in elementary and high school 
($125,000 Elementary & $146,000 for 
secondary).

$271,000.00 Purchase instructional materials.0000: Unrestricted

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$69,911.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$22,181.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve as 
FY site liaison.

$1,240.00 Participate in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve as 
FY site liaison.

$8,736.00 Participate in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves 
as the district liaison for Foster Youth

$10,118.00 Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for regular communication with 
Foster Youth Education Team

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves 
as the district liaison for Foster Youth

$3,349.00 Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for regular communication with 
Foster Youth Education Team

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers 
(B/CLAD required)

$0.00 Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.Avoid assigning teachers outside of their 
credentialed subjects whenever feasible.

0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

Hire only NCLB-certified classified 
instructional staff.

$0.00 Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff.0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 2 of 33

304 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
On-going maintenance at all facilities. 
(Resource 8150)

$1,933,270.00 Repair all conditions identified as “poor” or "good" until all facilities rate “exemplary” on 
FIT report.

7000-7439: Other Outgo

Purchase instructional materials for social 
studies/history aligned with the CCSS 
($100,000 Elementary & $100,000 for 
secondary).

$200,000.00 Purchase instructional materials.0000: Unrestricted

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach $26,083.00 Hire 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach $95,974.00 Hire 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$22,181.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, Migrants, 
and Low Income students

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$69,911.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, Migrants, 
and Low Income students

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve as 
FY site liaison.

$8,736.00 Participate in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Existing personnel [approximately 2 
days/year for secondary Assistant 
Principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855)] at each site serve as 
FY site liaison.

$1,240.00 Participate in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves 
as the district liaison for Foster Youth

$3,349.00 Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for regular communication with 
Foster Youth Education Team

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves 
as the district liaison for Foster Youth

$10,118.00 Utilize Foster Youth Goal Book Information system for regular communication with 
Foster Youth Education Team

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Hire only High Qualified Teachers (B/CLAD 
required)

$0.00 Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.  Avoid assigning teachers outside of their 
credentialing area whenever feasible.

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Hire only NCLB-certified classified 
instructional staff.

$0.00 Hire only NCLB-certified classified instructional staff2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 3 of 33

305 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
On-going maintenance at all facilities. $1,933,270.00 Repair all conditions identified as "poor" or "good" until all facilities rate "exemplary" on 

FIT report
7439 OTHER DEBT 

SERVICE - PRINCIPAL

Purchase instructional materials for NGSS 
adoption in elementary and secondary

$100,000.00 Purchase instructional materials4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$69,911.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.68 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$22,181.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Existing personnel (approximately 2 
days/year for secondary assistant 
principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855) at each site to serve 
as Foster Youth Liaison.

$1,240.00 Participate in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Existing personnel (approximately 2 
days/year for secondary assistant 
principals ($7,121) and elementary 
counselors ($2,855) at each site to serve 
as Foster Youth Liaison.

$8,736.00 Participate in the development and implementation of an educational plan for Foster 
Youth

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves 
as the district liaison for Foster Youth

$10,118.00 Utilize Foster Youth Goal book Information system for regular communication with 
Foster Youth Education Team

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.1 FTE Director of Student Services serves 
as the district liaison for Foster Youth

$3,349.00 Utilize Foster Youth Goal book Information system for regular communication with 
Foster Youth Education Team

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

$9,288,277.00Base Total Expenditures:

Funding Source: Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education

Proposed Expenditure Amount ActionObject Code
Provide sufficient resources to CTE course. $63,890.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 

course options that lead to CTE careers.
4000-4999: Books And 

Supplies

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers 
to lead student groups and coordinate with 
advisory committees.

$9,645.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 
course options that lead to CTE careers.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 4 of 33

306 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers 
to lead student groups and coordinate with 
advisory committees.

$2,658.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 
course options that lead to CTE careers.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Provide sufficient resources to CTE course. $63,890.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 
course options that lead to CTE careers.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers 
to lead student groups and coordinate with 
advisory committees.

$2,658.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 
course options that lead to CTE careers.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers 
to lead student groups and coordinate with 
advisory committees.

$9,645.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 
course options that lead to CTE careers.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers 
to lead student groups and coordinate with 
advisory committees.

$9,645.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 
course options that lead to CTE careers.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Provide sufficient resources to CTE course. $63,890.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 
course options that lead to CTE careers.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers 
to lead student groups and coordinate with 
advisory committees.

$2,658.00 Offer variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer appealing 
course options that lead to CTE careers.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Provide sufficient resources to CTE courses $63,890.00 Offer a variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer 
appealing course options that lead to CTE college and career

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers 
to lead student groups and coordinate with 
advisory committees

$2,658.00 Offer a variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer 
appealing course options that lead to CTE college and career

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Stipends and hourly pay for CTE teachers 
to lead student groups and coordinate with 
advisory committees

$9,645.00 Offer a variety of CTE courses with adequate equipment and supplies to offer 
appealing course options that lead to CTE college and career

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

$304,772.00Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Total Expenditures:

Funding Source: Other

Proposed Expenditure Amount ActionObject Code
.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches 
through EEFG

$56,730.00 Hire 1.73 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 5 of 33

307 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.6 FTE Secondary Math Coaches through 
EEFG

$13,127.00 Hire 1.73 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches 
through EEFG

$0.00 Hire 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches 
through EEFG

$0.00 Hire a 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics 
standards.  These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways by sharing effective 
strategies, using a formal coaching cycle, providing feedback and facilitating 
professional development sessions regarding CCSS.

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.6 FTE Secondary Math CPM Coaches 
through EEFG

$0.00 Hire a 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics 
standards.  These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways by sharing effective 
strategies, using a formal coaching cycle, providing feedback and facilitating 
professional development sessions regarding CCSS.

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

$69,857.00Other Total Expenditures:

Funding Source: Supplemental 

Proposed Expenditure Amount ActionObject Code
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach $78,129.00 Hire 1.3 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  

These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.3 FTE Secondary Math Coach $7,761.00 Hire 1.3 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach $29,660.00 Hire 1.3 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.3 FTE Secondary Math Coach $23,624.00 Hire 1.3 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 6 of 33

308 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$33,671.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$111,400.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

12 days @ $2,000/day Consultation with 
Enid Lee

$24,000.00 Contract with Enid Lee to coach teachers in effective use of instructional strategies that 
promote equitable outcomes for all students.

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating 

Expenditures
1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach $65,000.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach to assist teachers in integrating technology 

into their lessons in order to improve instruction in their content area and to teach 
technology standards to their students.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach $29,242.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach to assist teachers in integrating technology 
into their lessons in order to improve instruction in their content area and to teach 
technology standards to their students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social 
Studies)

$12,000.00 Hire 1.4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in Elementary and Middle 
schools.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 Elementary Academic Coach $60,687.00 Hire 1.4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in Elementary and Middle 
schools.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social 
Studies)

$25,919.00 Hire 1.4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in Elementary and Middle 
schools.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

1.0 Elementary Academic Coach $28,630.00 Hire 1.4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in Elementary and Middle 
schools.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 FTE Science Coach $29,242.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the Next Generation 
Science Standards (NGSS).

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 FTE Science Coach $65,000.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the Next Generation 
Science Standards (NGSS).

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark $40,650.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High $11,070.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 7 of 33

309 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Credit Recovery materials @ Ark $4,100.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 

and/or meet A-G requirements.
4000-4999: Books And 

Supplies

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark $13,193.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

AVID Tutors $2,555.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

AVID stipends. $2,863.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

AVID Tutors $18,000.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

AVID Field Trips $10,000.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
Elementary Summer School $5,208.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 

mathematics in secondary.
2000-2999: Classified 

Personnel Salaries

Secondary Summer School $71,911.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Elementary Summer School $28,856.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Elementary Summer School $5,256.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Elementary Summer School $4,000.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Secondary Summer School $6,227.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Secondary Summer School $11,596.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Secondary Summer School $7,500.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 8 of 33

310 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators $345,940.00 Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at each of the secondary 

schools.
1000-1999: Certificated 

Personnel Salaries

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators $110,960.00 Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at each of the secondary 
schools.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Hire math tutors to assist students in 
becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics.

$41,074.00 Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics.5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
1.13 FTE Read 180 $63,855.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and comprehensive high schools to 

boost achievement in reading.
1000-1999: Certificated 

Personnel Salaries

1.13 FTE Read 180 $27,700.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and comprehensive high schools to 
boost achievement in reading.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Read 180 training, workbooks, licenses $45,000.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and comprehensive high schools to 
boost achievement in reading.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

High School Homework Clubs $26,856.00 Homework Clubs at comprehensive high schools.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

High School Homework Clubs $3,813.00 Homework Clubs at comprehensive high schools.3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

. 5 FTE Coordinator of after-school 
program at each middle school

$42,154.00 1.0 FTE after-school support programs in the middle schools.2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English Learners, 
Low-income students, Migrant students

$3,915.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English Learners, 
Low-income students, Migrant students

$12,338.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each 
middle school

$30,000.00 Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase opportunities for success 
to recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each 
middle school

$10,607.00 Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase opportunities for success 
to recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 9 of 33

311 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math $14,273.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 

recently arrived English learners.
1000-1999: Certificated 

Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math $4,590.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.5 FTE School Community Coordinator $14,522.00 Newcomer and EL support at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

.5 FTE School Community Coordinator $23,024.00 Newcomer and EL support at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Adminstrative Secretary $20,455.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Adminstrative Secretary $41,033.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Site Program Coordinator $20,488.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Site Program Coordinator $11,475.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Increase enrollment of Low-Income 
students in AP classes through 4-year 
planning workshops.

$635.00 4-year Planning Workshops3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 10 of 33

312 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Increase enrollment of Low-Income 
students in AP classes through 4-year 
planning workshops.

$4,476.00 4-year Planning Workshops1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Elementary site-based interventions $42,077.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Secondary site-based interventions $42,906.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Elementary site-based interventions $40,596.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Elementary site-based interventions $88,136.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Elementary site-based interventions $189,679.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Secondary site-based interventions $105,585.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Secondary site-based interventions $135,592.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Social Work Interns $24,500.00 Contract with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work Interns to ensure academic 
success by meeting basic mental health needs of students.

5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) 
Aides

$53,445.00 PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) 
Aides

$5,166.00 PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors $83,189.00 2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors $177,101.00 2.4 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

2.0 FTE Social workers $14,100.00 2.0 FTE Social workers to support students and families.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 11 of 33

313 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
2.0 FTE Social workers $50,790.00 2.0 FTE Social workers to support students and families.3000-3999: Employee 

Benefits

Community Based English Tutoring (CBET) 
@ Adult Education

$8,276.00 English tutoring to parents of ELs to enable them to support their children in school.5700-5799: Transfers Of 
Direct Costs

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach $26,083.00 Hire 1.73 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach $95,974.00 Hire 1.73 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics standards.  
These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a 
formal coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development 
sessions regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$33,671.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$111,400.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach $22,296.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach $90,048.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social 
Studies)

$26,755.00 Hire .4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in Middle schools.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social 
Studies)

$6,844.00 Hire .4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in Middle schools.3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 FTE Science Coach $19,610.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the Next Generation 
Science Standards (NGSS).

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark $49,292.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High $11,070.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 12 of 33

314 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark $11,935.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 

and/or meet A-G requirements.
3000-3999: Employee 

Benefits

Credit Recovery materials @ Ark $4,100.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

AVID stipends. $2,830.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

AVID Tutors & Field Trips $10,000.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL 
& CONFERENCES

AVID Tutors & Field Trips $40,000.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators $110,960.00 Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at each of the secondary 
schools.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators $345,940.00 Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at each of the secondary 
schools.

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Hire math tutors to assist students in 
becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics.

$41,074.00 Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics.5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
.8 FTE Read 180 $63,480.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 

high schools to boost achievement in reading.
1000-1999: Certificated 

Personnel Salaries

.8 FTE Read 180 $19,240.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in reading.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Read 180 training, workbooks, licenses $45,000.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in reading.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$12,338.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.12 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English Learners, 
Low-income students, Migrant students

$3,915.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each 
middle school

$10,000.00 Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase opportunities for success 
to recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

6/9/2016 6:31:57 AM 13 of 33

315 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each 
middle school

$30,000.00 Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase opportunities for success 
to recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math $14,273.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math $4,590.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator at 
middle school and comprehensive high 
schools

$77,630.00 Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high school. (.5 at Branciforte Middle, 
Mission Hill Middle, Harbor, Soquel and Santa Cruz

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

.5 FTE School Community Coordinator $88,510.00 Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high school. (.5 at Branciforte Middle, 
Mission Hill Middle, Harbor, Soquel and Santa Cruz

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Adminstrative Secretary $41,033.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, 
Migrants, and Low Income students.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Adminstrative Secretary $20,455.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, 
Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Site Program Coordinator $11,475.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, 
Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 14 of 33

316 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Site Program Coordinator $20,488.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, 

Migrants, and Low Income students.
2000-2999: Classified 

Personnel Salaries

Elementary site-based interventions: Walk 
to Read Coordinator at four elementary 
schools

$89,717.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Elementary site-based interventions: 8 
Walk to Read  Instructional Techs

$122,800.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Elementary site-based interventions: 
Learning assistant at Monarch

$11,489.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Elementary site-based interventions: 
Learning assistant at Monarch

$1,103.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Elementary site-based interventions: 8 
Walk to Read Instructional Techs

$11,788.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Elementary site-based interventions $173,909.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Elementary site-based interventions:  Walk 
to Read Coordinator at four elementary 
schools

$320,565.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Social Work Interns $24,500.00 Contract with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work Interns to ensure academic 
success by meeting basic mental health needs of students.

5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) 
Aides

$53,445.00 PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) 
Aides

$5,166.00 PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors $45,067.00 2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school. (.5 at comprehensive elementary schools and .2 at Monarch)

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors (.5 at 
comprehensive elementary schools and .2 
at Monarch

$158,081.00 2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school. (.5 at comprehensive elementary schools and .2 at Monarch)

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

2.0 FTE Social workers $14,100.00 Social workers1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 15 of 33

317 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
2.0 FTE Social workers $50,790.00 Social workers3000-3999: Employee 

Benefits

Latino Role Model Events $5,000.00 Provide parent education through Latino Role Model conference to include information 
fairs on A-G, college admissions, financial aide and application processes

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$111,400.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$33,671.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

6 days @ $5,000 per day $30,000.00 Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional Learning Community work at 
secondary schools and to support math adoption at elementary schools

5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach $22,296.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach3000-3999: Employee 

Benefits

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach $90,046.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social 
Studies)

$26,755.00 Hire .4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in Middle schools.2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA & Social 
Studies)

$6,844.00 Hire .4 FTE TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in Middle schools.3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.0 FTE Science Coach $96,825.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the Next Generation 
Science Standards (NGSS).

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

1.0 FTE Science Coach $19,610.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the Next Generation 
Science Standards (NGSS).

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark $49,292.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Credit Recovery contract with Cyber High $11,070.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 16 of 33

318 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.6 FTE Credit Recovery @ Ark $11,935.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 

and/or meet A-G requirements.
3000-3999: Employee 

Benefits

Credit Recovery materials @ Ark $4,100.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

AVID Tutors $40,000.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

AVID Tutors and Field trips $10,000.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL 
& CONFERENCES

AVID stipends. $2,830.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators $110,960.00 Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at each of the secondary 
schools.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators $345,940.00 Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at each of the secondary 
schools.

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Hire math tutors to assist students in 
becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics.

$41,074.00 Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics.5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
.8 FTE Read 180 $63,480.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 

high schools to boost achievement in reading.
1000-1999: Certificated 

Personnel Salaries

.8 FTE Read 180 $19,240.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in reading.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Read 180 training, workbooks, licenses $45,000.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in reading.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

.5 FTE coordinator of after-school program 
at each middle school

$42,154.00 1.0 FTE after-school support programs in the middle schools.2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$3,915.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, Migrants, 
and Low Income students

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$12,338.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, Migrants, 
and Low Income students

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 17 of 33

319 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each 
middle school

$10,000.00 Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase opportunities for success 
to recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials .2 FTE @ each 
middle school

$30,000.00 Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase opportunities for success 
to recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math $14,273.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Math $4,590.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

. 2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial @ HH $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

. 2 FTE Newcomer Academy Science $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school to increase opportunities for success to 
recently arrived English learners.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.5 FTE School Community Coordinator $88,510.00 Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high school (.5 at Branciforte Middle, 
Mission Hill Middle, Harbor, Soquel and Santa Cruz)

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator $77,630.00 Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high school (.5 at Branciforte Middle, 
Mission Hill Middle, Harbor, Soquel and Santa Cruz)

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Adminstrative Secretary $41,033.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Adminstrative Secretary $20,455.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 18 of 33

320 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Site Program Coordinator $20,488.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 

Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.
2000-2999: Classified 

Personnel Salaries

Site Program Coordinator $11,475.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Elementary site-based interventions: 
Learning Assistant at Monarch

$11,489.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Secondary site-based interventions $253,693.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Elementary site-based interventions: 
Learning Assistant at Monarch

$1,103.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Elementary site-based interventions: 8 
Instructional techs for Walk to Read at four 
elementary schools

$122,800.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Elementary site-based interventions: Walk 
to Read Coordinator at four elementary 
schools

$320,565.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Elementary site-based interventions: Walk 
to Read Coordinator at four elementary 
schools

$89,679.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Elementary site-based interventions $173,909.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Social Work Interns $24,500.00 Contract with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work Interns to ensure academic 
success by meeting basic mental health needs of students.

5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) 
Aides

$5,166.00 PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) 
Aides

$53,445.00 PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors $83,189.00 2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school. (.5 at each elementary and .2 at Monarch)

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors (.5 at each 
elementary and .2 at Monarch)

$177,101.00 2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school. (.5 at each elementary and .2 at Monarch)

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 19 of 33

321 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
2.0 FTE Social workers $14,100.00 Social workers1000-1999: Certificated 

Personnel Salaries

2.0 FTE Social workers $50,790.00 Social workers3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Latino Role Model Event $5,000.00 Provide parent education through Latino Role Model conference to include information 
fairs on A-G, college admissions, financial aid and application process

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

$8,569,998.00Supplemental  Total Expenditures:

Funding Source: Supplemental

Proposed Expenditure Amount ActionObject Code
6 days @ $5,000 per day for elementary $30,000.00 Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional Learning Community work at 

secondary schools and support math adoption with elementary teams
5800 OTHER SVCS & 

OPER EXPENDITURES

Technology to support student learning 
secondary

$162,845.00 Technology to support student learning.  Chrome books, carts and projection.4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Technology to support student learning 
elementary

$111,058.00 Technology to support student learning.  Chrome books, carts and projection.4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 for each 
comprehensive high school and .33 at 
SCHS)

$56,730.00 Hire .2 FTE at each comprehensive high school to provide a flexible math intervention 
period - .33 at SCHS (Math Plus)

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 for each 
comprehensive high school

$13,127.00 Hire .2 FTE at each comprehensive high school to provide a flexible math intervention 
period - .33 at SCHS (Math Plus)

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

HW Club benefits for certificated staff $4,134.00 Homework Clubs at each of the three comprehensive high schools3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff $25,866.00 Homework Clubs at each of the three comprehensive high schools1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

1.0 FTE for After School Coordinator (.5 at 
each middle school)

$32,600.00 1.0 FTE to coordinate after school support programs at both middle schools2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

1.0 FTE for After School Coordinator (.5 at 
each middle school)

$7,658.00 1.0 FTE to coordinate after school support programs at both middle schools3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 20 of 33

322 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
4 Instructional Techs to support middle 
school After School Program

$9,578.00 4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School Program3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

4 Instructional Techs to support middle 
school After School Program

$50,358.00 4 Instructional Techs to support middle school After School Program2900 OTHER CLASS 
SALARIES-REGULAR  O

EWA's, translation and meeting supplies $3,500.00 Supplies to support parent engagement in District Advisory Committee4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Secondary site-based interventions $253,693.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Student Services supplies $1,000.00 Social workers4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Student Services mileage $1,000.00 Social workers5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL 
& CONFERENCES

.8 FTE PBIS Coach $20,341.00 .8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Support programs at all four elementary schools

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.8 FTE PBIS Coach $60,082.00 .8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Support programs at all four elementary schools

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.6 FTE counselor (.2 at each 
comprehensive high school)

$45,183.00 .6 FTE Counselor  (.2 at each comprehensive high school)1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.6 FTE counselor (.2 at each 
comprehensive high school)

$13,338.00 .6 FTE Counselor  (.2 at each comprehensive high school)3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

6 days @ $5,000 per day $30,000.00 Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional Learning Community work at 
secondary schools and to support math adoption at elementary schools

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

Elementary site-based interventions: 8 
instructional techs for Walk to Read at four 
elementary schools

$11,788.00 Site-based interventions at each school site.3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.8 FTE PBIS Coach $60,082.00 .8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Support programs at all four elementary schools

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.8 FTE PBIS Coach $20,341.00 .8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Support programs at all four elementary schools

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 21 of 33

323 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive 
high school (.2 at each)

$13,388.00 .6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school (.2 at each)3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive 
high school (.2 at each)

$45,183.00 .6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school (.2 at each)1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach $95,974.00 Hire a 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics 
standards.  These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways by sharing effective 
strategies, using a formal coaching cycle, providing feedback and facilitating 
professional development sessions regarding CCSS.

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach $26,083.00 Hire a 1.6 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CCSS mathematics 
standards.  These TOSAs will support teachers in various ways by sharing effective 
strategies, using a formal coaching cycle, providing feedback and facilitating 
professional development sessions regarding CCSS.

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$33,671.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, provide feedback and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

1.6101 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$111,400.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, provide feedback and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

6 days @ $5,000 per day $30,000.00 Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional Learning Community work at 
secondary schools and work with elementary schools on math adoption

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

6 days @ $5,000 per day $30,000.00 Contract with Core Collaborative to support Professional Learning Community work at 
secondary schools and work with elementary schools on math adoption

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach $22,296.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach $90,048.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Education Technology Coach1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA and Social 
Studies) TOSA

$26,755.00 Hire .4 TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in middle schools1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.4 FTE Middle School Core (ELA and Social 
Studies) TOSA

$6,844.00 Hire .4 TOSAs to support implementation of CCSS ELA in middle schools3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

1.0 FTE Science Coach $19,610.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the Next Generation 
Science Standards (NGSS)

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 22 of 33

324 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
1.0 FTE Science Coach $96,825.00 Hire 1.0 FTE Science Coach to assist teachers in implementing the Next Generation 

Science Standards (NGSS)
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 

SALARIES-REG.

Technology to support student learning 
elementary

$111,058.00 Technology to support student learning.  Chrome books, carts and projection4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Technology to support student learning 
secondary

$162,845.00 Technology to support student learning.  Chrome books, carts and projection4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

.6 FTE Credit Recovery at the Ark $11,935.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Credit Recovery materials at the Ark $4,100.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

.6 FTE Credit Recovery  at the Ark $49,292.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Credit recovery contract with Cyber High $11,070.00 Credit Recovery program for students who are credit deficient to help them graduate 
and/or meet A-G requirements

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

AVID Tutors $40,000.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

AVID stipends $2,830.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools1160 TEACHER 
SALARIES-STIPEND

AVID field trips $10,000.00 AVID classes at middle schools and comprehensive high schools5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL 
& CONFERENCES

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators $345,940.00 Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at each of the secondary 
schools

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

5.0 FTE RTI Coordinators $110,960.00 Hire 5.0 FTE TOSAs to coordinate Response to Intervention at each of the secondary 
schools

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Hire math tutors to assist students in 
becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics.

$41,074.00 Hire math tutors to assist students in becoming proficient in CCSS mathematics5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 at each 
comprehensive high school and .33 at 
Santa Cruz High)

$56,730.00 Hire .2 FTE at each comprehensive high school (.33 at SCHS) to provide a flexible math 
intervention period (Math Plus)

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 23 of 33

325 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.73 Math Plus FTE (.2 at each 
comprehensive high school and .33 at 
Santa Cruz High)

$13,127.00 Hire .2 FTE at each comprehensive high school (.33 at SCHS) to provide a flexible math 
intervention period (Math Plus)

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff $4,134.00 Homework clubs at each of the three comprehensive high schools3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

HW Club extra hourly for certificated staff $25,866.00 Homework clubs at each of the three comprehensive high schools1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

1.0 For After School Coordinator (.5 at 
each middle school)

$32,600.00 1.0 FTE to coordinate after school support programs at both middle schools2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

1.0 For After School Coordinator (.5 at 
each middle school)

$7,658.00 1.0 FTE to coordinate after school support programs at both middle schools3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

4 Instructional techs to support middle 
school After School Program

$9,578.00 4 Instructional techs to support middle school After School Program3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

4 Instructional techs to support middle 
school After School Program

$50,358.00 4 Instructional techs to support middle school After School Program2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

.8 FTE Read 180 Sections $63,480.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in reading

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.8 FTE Read 180 Sections $19,240.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in reading

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Read 180 workbooks $45,000.00 Read 180 sections at each of the middle schools and two of the three comprehensive 
high schools to boost achievement in reading

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$12,338.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.12 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$3,915.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials (.2 FTE at each 
middle school)

$10,000.00 Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase opportunities for newly 
arrived English Learners

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.4 FTE Newcomer tutorials (.2 FTE at each 
middle school)

$30,000.00 Newcomer support sections at the middle schools to increase opportunities for newly 
arrived English Learners

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 24 of 33

326 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial  at Harbor High $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school increase opportunity for success to 

recently arrived English Learners
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 

SALARIES-REG.

.2 FTE Newcomer ELD Support  at Harbor 
High

$4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school increase opportunity for success to 
recently arrived English Learners

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.2 FTE Newcomer Science at Harbor High $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school increase opportunity for success to 
recently arrived English Learners

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial  at Harbor High $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school increase opportunity for success to 
recently arrived English Learners

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.2 FTE Newcomer ELD support at Harbor 
High

$12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school increase opportunity for success to 
recently arrived English Learners

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.2 FTE Newcomer Math at Harbor High $12,580.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school increase opportunity for success to 
recently arrived English Learners

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.2 FTE Newcomer Math at Harbor High $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school increase opportunity for success to 
recently arrived English Learners

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.2 FTE Newcomer Tutorial  at Harbor High $4,880.00 Newcomer support sections at the high school increase opportunity for success to 
recently arrived English Learners

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator at 
middle school and comprehensive high 
schools

$77,630.00 Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high school2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

2.5 FTE School Community Coordinator at 
middle school and comprehensive high 
schools

$88,510.00 Support for EL's and their parents at middle and high school3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Administrative Secretary $41,033.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support El's, RFEPs, Migrants, and 
Low Income students.

2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Administrative Secretary $20,455.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support El's, RFEPs, Migrants, and 
Low Income students.

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Site Program Coordinator $11,475.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support El's, RFEPs, Migrants, and 
Low Income students.

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Site Program Coordinator $20,488.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support El's, RFEPs, Migrants, and 
Low Income students.

2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 25 of 33

327 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
EWA's translation and meeting supplies $3,500.00 Supplies to support parent engagement in District Advisory Committee4300 MATERIALS & 

SUPPLIES

Elementary Site-based interventions: Walk 
to Read Coordinator at four elementary 
schools

$89,717.00 Site-based interventions at each school site3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Elementary Site-based interventions: 
Learning Assistant at Monarch elementary

$11,489.00 Site-based interventions at each school site2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Elementary site-based intervention: 8 
instructional techs for Walk to Read at 
elementary schools

$122,800.00 Site-based interventions at each school site2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Elementary site-based intervention: 8 
instructional techs for Walk to Read at 
elementary schools

$11,788.00 Site-based interventions at each school site3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Secondary site-based interventions $253,693.00 Site-based interventions at each school site4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Elementary Site-based interventions: Walk 
to Read Coordinator at four elementary 
schools

$320,565.00 Site-based interventions at each school site1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Elementary Site-based interventions: 
Learning Assistant at Monarch elementary

$1,103.00 Site-based interventions at each school site3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Elementary site-based interventions $173,909.00 Site-based interventions at each school site4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Social Work Interns $24,500.00 Contract with SCCCS Youth Services for Social Work Interns to ensure academic 
success by meeting basic mental health needs of students

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) 
Aides

$53,445.00 PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school

2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

1.5 FTE Primary Intervention Project (PIP) 
Aides

$5,166.00 PIP Aides to serve Foster and/or homeless primary students and help them adjust to 
school

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help 
students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school (.5 at each 
comprehensive elementary school and .2 
at Monarch)

$45,067.00 2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school (.5 at each comprehensive elementary school and .2 at Monarch)

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 26 of 33

328 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help 
students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school (.5 at each 
comprehensive elementary school and .2 
at Monarch)

$158,081.00 2.2 FTE Elementary Counselors to help students develop social-emotional skills to 
succeed in school (.5 at each comprehensive elementary school and .2 at Monarch)

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

2.0 FTE Social Workers $14,100.00 Social Workers1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

2.0 FTE Social Workers $1,000.00 Social Workers4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

2.0 FTE Social Workers $1,000.00 Social Workers5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL 
& CONFERENCES

2.0 FTE Social Workers $50,790.00 Social Workers3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.8 FTE PBIS Coach $20,341.00 .8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Support programs at all four elementary schools

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

.8 FTE PBIS Coach $60,082.00 .8 FTE PBIS Coach to support the implementation of Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Support programs at all four elementary schools

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive 
high school (.2 at each high school)

$45,183.00 .6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive 
high school (.2 at each high school)

$13,338.00 .6 FTE Counselor at each comprehensive high school3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Latino Role Model Event $5,000.00 Provide parent education through Latino Role Model conference to include information 
fairs on A-G, college admissions, financial aid and application processes.

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

$4,772,595.00Supplemental Total Expenditures:

Funding Source: Title I

Proposed Expenditure Amount ActionObject Code
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$8,154.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 27 of 33

329 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$26,977.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.2 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English Learners, 
Low-income students, Migrant students

$6,524.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.2 FTE Director of Academic Equity & 
Categorical Programs for English Learners, 
Low-income students, Migrant students

$20,562.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Site Program Coordinator $39,419.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Site Program Coordinator $22,078.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Migrant parent education $5,000.00 Early College Outreach Parent Program5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$26,977.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$8,154.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Elementary Summer School $5,256.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Secondary Summer School $6,227.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Elementary Summer School $28,856.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Elementary Summer School $5,208.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Elementary Summer School $4,000.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 28 of 33

330 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Secondary Summer School $71,911.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 

mathematics in secondary.
1000-1999: Certificated 

Personnel Salaries

Secondary Summer School $11,596.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Secondary Summer School $7,500.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$20,562.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$6,524.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Site Program Coordinator $22,078.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, 
Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Site Program Coordinator $39,419.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support ELs, RFEPs, Immigrants, 
Migrants, and Low Income students.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$26,977.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$8,154.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, including feedback, and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Elementary Summer School $5,208.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Secondary Summer School $71,911.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Secondary Summer School $6,227.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Secondary Summer School $7,500.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Elementary Summer School $28,856.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 29 of 33

331 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Elementary Summer School $4,000.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 

mathematics in secondary.
4000-4999: Books And 

Supplies

Secondary Summer School $11,596.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Elementary Summer School $5,256.00 Summer School with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary, and 
mathematics in secondary.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$20,562.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, Migrants, 
and Low Income students

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$6,524.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, Migrants, 
and Low Income students

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Site Program Coordinator $39,419.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Site Program Coordinator $22,078.00 Department of Academic Equity & Categorical Programs staff to support ELs, RFEPs, 
Immigrants, Migrants, and Low Income students.

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$26,977.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, provide feedback and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.3899 FTE English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT)

$8,154.00 Hire 2.0 FTE TOSAs to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards.  These 
TOSAs will support teachers in various ways: share effective strategies, use a formal 
coaching cycle, provide feedback and facilitate professional development sessions 
regarding CCSS.

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Elementary Summer School $28,856.00 Summer school with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary and 
mathematics in secondary

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

Elementary Summer School $5,256.00 Summer school with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary and 
mathematics in secondary

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Secondary Summer School $6,227.00 Summer school with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary and 
mathematics in secondary

2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Elementary Summer School $4,000.00 Summer school with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary and 
mathematics in secondary

4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES

Secondary Summer School $11,596.00 Summer school with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary and 
mathematics in secondary

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 30 of 33

332 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools
Elementary Summer School $5,208.00 Summer school with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary and 

mathematics in secondary
2000 >CLASS 

PERSONNEL SALARIES

Secondary Summer School $71,911.00 Summer school with a focus on mathematics and reading in elementary and 
mathematics in secondary

1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$20,562.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG.

.2 FTE Co-Directors of Elementary and 
Secondary Curriculum, Assessment and 
Intervention

$6,524.00 Department of Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

Site Program Coordinator $39,419.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support El's, RFEPs, Migrants, and 
Low Income students.

2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES

Site Program Coordinator $22,078.00 Curriculum, Assessment and Intervention staff to support El's, RFEPs, Migrants, and 
Low Income students.

3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS

$914,018.00Title I Total Expenditures:

Funding Source: Title II

Proposed Expenditure Amount ActionObject Code
New Teacher Project coaching for 
beginning teachers

$80,000.00 Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.Avoid assigning teachers outside of their 
credentialed subjects whenever feasible.

5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
New Teacher Project coaching for 
beginning teachers

$80,000.00 Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.Avoid assigning teachers outside of their 
credentialed subjects whenever feasible.

5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
New Teacher Project coaching for 
beginning teachers

$80,000.00 Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.Avoid assigning teachers outside of their 
credentialed subjects whenever feasible.

5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
New Teacher Project coaching for 
beginning teachers

$80,000.00 Hire only Highly Qualified Teachers.  Avoid assigning teachers outside of their 
credentialing area whenever feasible.

5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 31 of 33

333 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools

$320,000.00Title II Total Expenditures:

Funding Source: Title III

Proposed Expenditure Amount ActionObject Code
Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress 
Monitoring Group

$5,000.00 Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet needs of ELs.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC $5,000.00 Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet needs of ELs.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC $5,000.00 Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet needs of ELs.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress 
Monitoring Group

$5,000.00 Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet needs of ELs.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Migrant parent education $5,000.00 Early College Outreach Parent Program5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC $5,000.00 Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet needs of ELs.1000-1999: Certificated 

Personnel Salaries

Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress 
Monitoring Group

$5,000.00 Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet needs of ELs.1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Migrant parent education $5,000.00 Early College Outreach Parent Program5800: 
Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 

Expenditures
Teacher stipends to attend EL PLC $5,000.00 Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet needs of ELs1160 TEACHER 

SALARIES-STIPEND

Teacher stipends to attend EL Progress 
Monitoring Group

$5,000.00 Professional Development for elementary teachers to meet needs of ELs1160 TEACHER 
SALARIES-STIPEND

Migrant parent education $5,000.00 Early College Outreach Parent Program5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 32 of 33

334 of 461



Santa Cruz City Schools

$55,000.00Title III Total Expenditures:

Santa Cruz City Schools Total Expenditures: $24,294,517.00

6/9/2016 6:31:58 AM 33 of 33

335 of 461



336 of 461



337 of 461



338 of 461



339 of 461



340 of 461



341 of 461



AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.4 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:    Public Hearing:  Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM: Angela Meeker, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The 2016-17 LCAP is being presented now for a Public Hearing to give the community an 
opportunity to comment and provide input prior to our submitting it to the Board of Education 
for approval, at the June 22nd Board meeting.  After Board adoption, the LCAP will be submitted 
to the County Office of Education for final approval. 
 
The full 2016-17 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) is available for review on our 
district website:   
 
www.sccs.net/departments/educational_services/academic_equity_and_categorical_programs 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

342 of 461

http://www.sccs.net/departments/educational_services/academic_equity_and_categorical_programs


 

 
 

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 
APPROVAL OF THE LOCAL CONTROL AND 

ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN FOR  
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 

 
 DATE:  WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2016   

 TIME:  7:00 P.M.   

 LOCATION:  Board Room 
 Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz 
 

The purpose of the hearing is to provide a public forum for community input regarding  
the adoption of the Local Control and Accountability Plan 

 
You are invited to attend. 

 
 

The complete LCAP document will be available for review on the SCCS district website: 
 
www.sccs.net/departments/educational_services/academic_equity_and_categorical_programs 
 

343 of 461

http://www.sccs.net/departments/educational_services/academic_equity_and_categorical_programs


AGENDA ITEM:  8.3. 5 
1617 prelim budget cover 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Presentation of the 2016-17 Budget and Certifications 
 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:   Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
INFORMATION: 
This is an information item.  The budget will be presented for action at the June 22, 2016 Board 
meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools is on a single budget adoption cycle.  This means the Board adopts a 
budget by June 30th.  The preliminary budget being presented to the Governing Board is based on 
current law.  It is fully anticipated that the Governor will reach a compromise with the Legislature 
by the June deadline, which may require adjustments to our revenue projections.  Once the details 
of the budget are released, the District will revise its budget and provide the Board with a fiscal 
impact on its regularly scheduled meeting of August 17, 2016. 
 
Highlights of Revenue & Expenditure Assumptions 
 
General Fund (01) 
 
Revenues 
The General Fund is used to account for the general operating revenues and expenses of the 
District.  

 Elementary District is Basic Aid. It should be $828,837 above LCFF Revenue.  The State 
applies an on-going “Fair Share” reduction of $1.5 million in 2016-17, narrowing the 
differential to $671,163. 

 Elementary property taxes are projected to increase by 2.0%.   
 2016-17 Secondary LCFF Revenue income is based on P2 ADA of 3,905  
 Measure I projected income is $1,309,794 
 Measure J projected income is $1,369,735  
 Measure P projected income is $1,676,565  
 Measure O projected income is $2,400,000  
 Contributions to Restricted Maintenance & Special Ed are $15.1 million 

344 of 461



AGENDA ITEM:  8.3. 5 
1617 prelim budget cover 

Expenditures 
Negotiations with employee bargaining units are on-going, and this budget accounted for the 
following adjustments impacting total compensation: 
 

 Projected step and column increases of 1.5%  for certificated  
 Projected step costs at 2.0% for classified 
 Includes $250,000 transfer to the Cafeteria Fund. 

  

The 2016-17 Budget reflects an unrestricted deficit of ($1,465,965) or about 2.7% of total 
expenditures and transfers out, with an estimated ending fund balance of $5,106,066, 
which is equivalent to a 6.73% reserve. 
 
General Fund Three-Year Projection 
The three-year budget projection is shown on the General Fund summary page with the 
current year, the budget year, and two future years.  The 3-year projection assumptions are 
in the budget document, and are based on the current law. 

 
The most significant assumptions are: 

  LCFF GAP Funding Percentages 
 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
54.84% 19.30% 34.25% 

 
   Continues the on-going 8.92% Fair Share reduction 
   Elementary District is projected to remain in Basic Aid status 
   The Revenue for Measures I, J, O and P as stated on previous page  
   Health and welfare benefit cost increases for certificated employees is projected 

4.0% for 2016-17 and 6% for 2017-18 and 2018-19. 
   

 The General Fund operating surplus/deficit and unrestricted reserve is summarized as follows: 
 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Unrestricted Operating 

Surplus/(Deficit)
    (1,465,965)        (1,557,387)       (2,289,400)

Unrestricted Reserve      5,106,066          3,548,679         1,259,279 
% Unrestricted Reserve 6.73% 4.21% 1.05%  

 
Summary 
The current operating budget and multiyear projections are fully aligned to the Local Control 
Funding Formula, as this budget was prepared utilizing State Budget Assumptions, not an actual 
Budget Act. It is anticipated that when the 2016-17 budget is adopted by the Governor, there will 
be changes to the revenue for our district.  We will have 45 days to make adjustments to the State 
on any material changes within our budget.  Under the Local Control Funding Formula, it is 
expected that SCCS will incrementally move toward 2007-08 funding levels by 2020-21.  The 
Governing Board will receive an update on the fiscal impact of the State’s Enacted Budget, as 
information becomes available (trailer bills), and on its next regularly scheduled meeting of August 
17, 2016. 
 
 

345 of 461



AGENDA ITEM:  8.3. 5 
1617 prelim budget cover 

Cafeteria Fund (13) 
The Cafeteria Fund (CF) is used to account for all revenues and expenses associated with the 
preparation and serving of breakfasts and lunches to students in the District, during the regular 
school year and during summer school. 
 
The 2016-17 Cafeteria Fund budget includes a transfer of $250k from the General Fund.  Total 
expenditures are projected to be approximately $2.0 million.  The estimated ending balance for 
2016-17 is $583. 
 
Deferred Maintenance Fund (14) 
The Deferred Maintenance Fund (DMF) is used to account for revenues and expenses 
associated with the State Deferred Maintenance program.  There currently is no State match to 
Deferred Maintenance as the State has built it into LCFF.  We will continue to spend down on 
any remaining projects. 
 
Special Reserve Fund Post Employment Benefits (20) 
This is a relatively new fund, first established in 2007-08, to set up a reserve to fund the 
District’s GASB 45 Other Post Employment Benefits liability.  The District is now on a “pay-as-
you-go” basis, and is no longer attempting to fund the OPEB obligation.   
 
Building Fund (21) 
The revenue to this fund comes from property tax "pass through" from the City of Santa Cruz 
and County of Santa Cruz Redevelopment agencies.  
 
In 2016-17, the Building Fund has an available balance of approximately $5.1 million. 
 
Capital Facilities Fund (25) 
This fund is used to account for Developer Fee revenue and expenditures from these funds.  These 
funds are used to acquire, install or relocate, and equip portable classrooms.  Developer Fee 
revenue is projected at $228,700. 

 
Foundation Trust Funds (72-93) 
This fund incorporates over 20 different student scholarship accounts for different schools.  
The District holds these funds in trust for the schools. 

346 of 461



34
7 

of
 4

61



34
8 

of
 4

61



34
9 

of
 4

61



35
0 

of
 4

61



35
1 

of
 4

61



35
2 

of
 4

61



35
3 

of
 4

61



35
4 

of
 4

61



35
5 

of
 4

61



35
6 

of
 4

61



35
7 

of
 4

61



35
8 

of
 4

61



35
9 

of
 4

61



36
0 

of
 4

61



36
1 

of
 4

61



36
2 

of
 4

61



36
3 

of
 4

61



36
4 

of
 4

61



36
5 

of
 4

61



36
6 

of
 4

61



36
7 

of
 4

61



36
8 

of
 4

61



36
9 

of
 4

61



37
0 

of
 4

61



37
1 

of
 4

61



37
2 

of
 4

61



37
3 

of
 4

61



37
4 

of
 4

61



37
5 

of
 4

61



37
6 

of
 4

61



37
7 

of
 4

61



37
8 

of
 4

61



37
9 

of
 4

61



38
0 

of
 4

61



38
1 

of
 4

61



38
2 

of
 4

61



38
3 

of
 4

61



38
4 

of
 4

61



38
5 

of
 4

61



38
6 

of
 4

61



38
7 

of
 4

61



38
8 

of
 4

61



38
9 

of
 4

61



39
0 

of
 4

61



39
1 

of
 4

61



39
2 

of
 4

61



39
3 

of
 4

61



39
4 

of
 4

61



39
5 

of
 4

61



39
6 

of
 4

61



39
7 

of
 4

61



39
8 

of
 4

61



39
9 

of
 4

61



40
0 

of
 4

61



40
1 

of
 4

61



40
2 

of
 4

61



40
3 

of
 4

61



40
4 

of
 4

61



40
5 

of
 4

61



40
6 

of
 4

61



40
7 

of
 4

61



40
8 

of
 4

61



40
9 

of
 4

61



41
0 

of
 4

61



41
1 

of
 4

61



41
2 

of
 4

61



41
3 

of
 4

61



41
4 

of
 4

61



41
5 

of
 4

61



41
6 

of
 4

61



41
7 

of
 4

61



41
8 

of
 4

61



41
9 

of
 4

61



42
0 

of
 4

61



42
1 

of
 4

61



42
2 

of
 4

61



42
3 

of
 4

61



42
4 

of
 4

61



42
5 

of
 4

61



42
6 

of
 4

61



42
7 

of
 4

61



42
8 

of
 4

61



42
9 

of
 4

61



43
0 

of
 4

61



43
1 

of
 4

61



43
2 

of
 4

61



43
3 

of
 4

61



43
4 

of
 4

61



43
5 

of
 4

61



43
6 

of
 4

61



437 of 461



438 of 461



439 of 461



440 of 461



441 of 461



442 of 461



443 of 461



444 of 461



445 of 461



446 of 461



AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6 
    C:\USERS\BSSEC\DOCUMENTS\AGENDA\PUB HEARING BUDG 1617.DOC 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing on 2016-17 Adopted Budget 
 
MEETING DATE: June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:   Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board is required by AB 1200 to conduct a public hearing on the 2016-17 Adopted Budget 
to allow for public comment prior to the Board approving the budget.  Approval of the 
Adopted Budget will take place in Open Session at the Regular Meeting on June 22, 2016. 
Notice of this hearing was published in the Santa Cruz Sentinel.  The public notice also 
indicated the availability of the 2016-17 budget in the Business Office. 
 

447 of 461



448 of 461



 AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.7 
 
Public Hearing Intent to Enter into Energy Services Contract cover 

 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Public Hearing  - Intent to Enter into Energy Services Contract, 

Pursuant to Government Code Sections 4217.10 – 4217.18 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2016 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
  
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of this public hearing is to receive public comment on the proposed Resolution to 
Enter into an Energy Services Contract with Climatec LLC for the implementation of energy 
conservation services, in accordance with Government Code Sections 4217.10 through 
4217.18. 
 
The attached Public Notice advising of the time and place of the meeting, and including a 
general explanation of the matter to be considered, was posted at District sites in June 1, 2016. 
Resolution # 50-15-16, authorizing District staff to enter into an agreement with Climatec LLC, 
is covered in Agenda Item 8.3.8. 
 
 
 
 

 

449 of 461



45
0 

of
 4

61



45
1 

of
 4

61



45
2 

of
 4

61



45
3 

of
 4

61



45
4 

of
 4

61



45
5 

of
 4

61



45
6 

of
 4

61



45
7 

of
 4

61



458 of 461



459 of 461



460 of 461



461 of 461


	Agenda 6-15-16 Final
	Minutes 5-25-16 Rev.AT
	Minutes of the Special Closed Session 6-1-16 Final
	Minutes of the Regular Meeting.Annual Board Governance Study Session 6-1-16 Rev.AT
	Cover - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions.docx
	Attachment - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions
	Cover - Item 8.1.2 - Classified Personnel Actions
	Attachment - Item 8.1.2 - Classified Personnel Actions
	purchase orders over $2500 cover
	purchase orders over $2500 list
	Bid award Brazos Urethane
	Vendor warrants cover
	Vendor warrants report
	Cvr Gifts 6.15.16
	Cover - Item 8.1.6 - Classified Job Reclassifications
	Attachment - Item 8.1.6 - Classified Job Reclassifications - Data & Assessment Specialist
	h.gjdgxs
	Attachment - Item 8.1.6 - Classified Job Reclassifications - Instructional Tech-Elementary Intervention
	Cvr LEA Plan Addendum  6.15.16
	Elementary LEA Plan Addendum
	Cvr Board Policy Updates
	SCCS Policy Guidesheet Partial.March.April.2016
	BP 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
	BP 1312.3 current
	BP 3515.2 Disruptions
	BP 3515.7 Firearms on School Grounds
	BP 3553 Free and Reduced Price Meals
	BP 3553 current
	BP 5146 Married.Pregnant.Parenting Students
	BP 5146 current
	BP 6164.2 Guidance.Counseling Services
	BP 6164.2 current
	SCCS POLICY MINOR REVISIONS MARCH 2016
	Cvr Resolution 48-15-16 Ordering Election Nov. 2016
	Resolution 48-15-16 Ordering November 2016 Election for Board Seats
	Res to Accept Summer Bids cover
	Res - Delegate Auth to Award Bids Summer 2016
	Res - District Signature Authorization cover
	Res - District Signature Authorization - Patrick Gaffney
	Contracts cover
	SchoolWorks Cover
	Contract - SchoolWorks
	Decision Insite Contract
	CSA Scott Hamill
	NPA Easter Seals Contract
	NPA Bay School Contract
	NPA BALANCE4KIDS Contract
	NPA ABRITE Organization Contract
	Cvr Surplus
	Surplus IT Computers etc
	SITE: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT
	Cvr Ad Hoc Facilities Report
	Ad Hoc Facilities #2
	PTOC annual report cover
	PTOC annual report 2015-16
	Staff Report - Presentation of LCAP cover
	2016-17 LCAP
	LCAP #2
	Public Hearling - LCAP  cover
	Notice of Public Hearing.LCAP
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
	The purpose of the hearing is to provide a public forum for community input regarding
	the adoption of the Local Control and Accountability Plan
	You are invited to attend.

	1617 prelim budget cover
	2016-17 Preliminary Budget
	1617 budget presentation2
	Public hearing 1617 Budget cover
	Public Notice - 2016-17 budget
	Public Hearing Intent to Enter into Energy Services Contract cover
	Public Hearing Notice - Energy Service Contract
	Res - Energy Service Contract to Climatec
	Prop 39 #2



